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SUBS .

FOUNDED BY FIREMEN

The franchise is for the establishment and operation of a restaurant which offers and serves
large-portion hot submarine style sandwiches in a unique fire-fighting atmosphere and decorum at an
economical price under the FIREHOUSE SUBS® trade name and business system (a “FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant” or “Restaurant”).

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a single FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant
ranges from $94:78392,255 to $1;006,366.824,846. These totals include the following amounts in Ttem 5
that must be paid to us or our affiliates: an initial franchise fee of $20,000; the fee for a mural ranges from
$3,000 to $4;7604.600; and the MIS System Fee ranges from $100 to $1,200. If you sign an Area
Development Agreement (the “Development Agreement”), you will also pay a Development Fee equal to
$10,000 times the number of Restaurants to be developed. The portion of the Development Fee allocable to
each Restaurant (which is $10,000 for each Restaurant) will be credited against the initial franchise fee for
that Restaurant. The total investment necessary to develop from 2 to 6 Restaurants is $+06,783104,255 to
$1,064,366.892.846.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and
Development Agreement and other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all
accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified
the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosure in different formats, contact Greg Delks, 12735 Gran Bay
Parkway, Suite 150, Jacksonville, Florida 32258; (904) 606-51455145.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure
Document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and
this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help
you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 877-FTC-HELP, or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Date of Issuance: Mareh24:2047April 10, 2018
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STATE COVER PAGE

Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a state franchise
administrator before offering or selling in your state. REGISTRATION OF A FRANCHISE BY A STATE
DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE RECOMMENDS THE FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED THE
INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit “R” for information about the franchisor or
about franchising in your state.

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW
UNCONDITIONALLY AFTER THE INITIAL TERM EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A NEW
AGREEMENT WITH DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER TO CONTINUE TO
OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO
RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN
ORDER TO RENEW.

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise.

1. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REQUIRE YOU
TO RESOLVE DISPUTES WITH US BY ARBITRATION ONLY IN FLORIDA AND BY
LITIGATION ONLY IN FLORIDA. OUT OF STATE ARBITRATION AND LITIGATION
MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT FOR
DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO ARBITRATE WITH US IN
FLORIDA AND TO SUE US IN FLORIDA THAN IN YOUR HOME STATE.

2. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT STATE THAT
FLORIDA LAW GOVERNS THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND THE
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, AND THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE THE SAME
PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS LOCAL LAW; YOU MAY WANT TO COMPARE
THESE LAWS.

3. WE AND OUR AFFILIATES MAY ESTABLISH FIREHOUSE SUBS RESTAURANTS
AND OTHER FOOD SERVICE FACILITIES ANYWHERE, AND MAY ESTABLISH
OTHER CHANNELS OF DISTRIBUTION AND SELL OR DISTRIBUTE ANY
PRODUCT OR SERVICE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC, UNDER THE SAME AND/OR
DIFFERENT TRADEMARK, IN COMPETITION WITH THE FRANCHISE.

4.

5-YOUR SPOUSE MUST ALSO SIGN A PERSONAL GUARANTEE MAKING YOUR
SPOUSE INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR YOUR FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS UNDER
THE AGREEMENT. THE GUARANTEE WILL PLACE YOUR SPOUSE’S MARITAL
AND PERSONAL ASSETS AT RISK IF YOUR FRANCHISE FAILS.

5. 6-THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE
We use the services of one or more FRANCHISE BROKERS or referral sources to assist us in selling
our franchise. A franchise broker or referral source represents us, not you. We pay this person a fee
for selling our franchise or referring you to us. You should be sure to do your own investigation of the
franchise.

Effective Date: See the next page for state effective dates.

(SEE EXHIBIT “T” FOR STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA AND RIDERS)
(FOR STATE AGENCIES AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS, SEE EXHIBIT “R”)
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EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state,
or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota,
New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the following
states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates:

STATE EFFECTIVE DATE
California Registered Effective: —, 20472018
Hawaii N/A
Illinois Registered Effective: AprH-72601+7
2018
Indiana Registered Effective: August 26,23, 26462017
Maryland
Michigan Registered Effective July 23, 26462017
Minnesota Registered Effective: —, 20172018
New York Registered Effective: —, 20472018
North Dakota Registered Effective: Apri3;2617 .
2018
Rhode Island Registered Effective: —, 20172018
South Dakota Registered Effective: July 28, 26462017
Virginia Registered Effective: —, 20472018
Washington Registered Effective: —, 20172018
Wisconsin Registered Effective: Mareh 27,2017 -amended-
Mareh34,2017April 13, 2018
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THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS
THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE
FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE
PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

1. Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
relating to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall
not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all
claims.

2. A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise before the expiration of its
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice
thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

3. A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized
materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to
compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years; and (ii)
the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially
the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does
not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

4. A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

5. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This
shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

6. A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right
of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(a) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(b) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.
(©) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with

all lawful obligations.
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(d) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed
transfer.

7. A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as
a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a
provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or
appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise
agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

8. A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has
been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and
other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled.
At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise
G. Mennen Williams Building
525 West Ottawa, 1st Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM 1.
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

The Franchisor and any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates

The Franchisor is FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC, referred to as “we,” “us,” or “our.” We
also do business under the name “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants.” “You” means a person who buys
the right to operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant from us. If you are a corporation, partnership or
other entity, certain provisions of our Franchise Agreement also will apply to your owners. This
Disclosure Document will indicate when your owners also are covered by a particular provision.

We are a Florida limited liability company organized by filing Articles of Organization with the
Florida Department of State on November 16, 2004, but we were not organized until December 1, 2004.
Our current principal business address is 12735 Gran Bay Parkway, Suite 150, Jacksonville, Florida
32258. Our agent in this state for service of process is, if applicable, disclosed in Exhibit “R.” We
conduct business under our corporate name and under the trade and service marks “FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Est. 1994 and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS® and Design,” and “FIREHOUSE SUBS®”
and associated logos, designs, symbols and trade dress (the “Marks”). See Item 13.

Our parent and sole member is Firechouse Restaurant Group, Inc. (“FRG”). FRG is a Florida
corporation incorporated on February 20, 1995. Its principal business address is the same as ours: 12735
Gran Bay Parkway, Suite 150, Jacksonville, Florida 32258. FRG’s agent for service of process is Chris
Sorensen at 12735 Gran Bay Parkway, Suite 150, Jacksonville, Florida 32258. FRG has no obligations to
franchisees and does not provide any services to franchisees. FRG has licensed us the right to use all of
its Marks in connection with our franchising activities. See Item 13. Prior to a reorganization
establishing us as a wholly owned subsidiary, FRG was the franchisor of FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants and sold 219 FIREHOUSE SUBS® franchises, of which 178 were open and operating. FRG
offered franchises from February 20, 1995 until December 26, 2004.

Some of our affiliates that relate to our and FRG’s operations are:

Where Date No. Rests.
Name Type Formed Formed Operated Principal Address
1. | Firehouse Subs, Inc. Corporation | Florida 06/20/94 3 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
(“FSI”) Suite 150
Jacksonville, F: 32258
2. FRG of Florida, LLC | Limited Florida 12/29/00 26 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
(“FRG Florida™) Liability Suite 150
Company Jacksonville, FL. 32258
3. FHS, LLP Limited Florida 05/05/97 1 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
Liability Suite 150
Partnership Jacksonville, FL 32258
4. Firehouse-Five, Inc. Corporation | Florida 07/19/95 1 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
Suite 150
Jacksonville, FL 32258
5. The Queen’s Corporation | Florida 11/10/97 1 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
Firehouse, Inc. Suite 150
Jacksonville, FL 32258
6. FRG of 1 LL Limi Florida 07/06/17 5 12735 Gran Bay Parkway
» N - Liabili Sui ;
Company Jacksonville, FI, 32258
1
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Where Date No. Rests.
Name Type Formed | Formed | Operated Principal Address
1.6 | Capital 94, LLC Limited Florida 04/14/04 Not 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
: (“Capital 94”) Liability Applicable | Suite 150
Company Jacksonville, FL. 32258
8.7 | Firehouse Subs Corporation | Florida 06/05/01 Not 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
: System Fund, Inc. Applicable | Suite 150
(“FSSF”) Jacksonville, FL. 32258
9. 8 | Firehouse Subs Corporation | Florida 01/29/03 Not 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
: Market Fund, Inc. Applicable | Suite 150
(“FSMF”) Jacksonville, FL. 32258
10.9 | Firehouse Subs of Unlimited | British 02/20/14 None 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
: Canada ULC (“FH Liability Columbia, Suite 150
Canada”) Company Canada Jacksonville, FL 32258
And
2100 - 40 King Street West
Toronto, Ontario,
Canada MS5H 3C2

The first 56 affiliates named above own and operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. FSSF administers the
System Fund and FSMF administers the Co-op. FH Canada offers, sells and services franchises in Canada.
Except for FH Canada, none of our affiliates have offered, and do not currently offer, franchises for this or any
other lines of business; nor sell products or services to our franchisees, except that: (a) Capital 94 provides
lending services under the Equipment Financing Program (see Item 10); and (b) FH Canada is currently
offering franchises in Canada.

FIREHOUSE SUBS® System

We and our affiliates have expended considerable time and effort developing a sandwich
restaurant system specializing in serving large portion hot submarine style sandwiches, in a unique
fire-fighting atmosphere and decorum, at an economical price (a “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant” or
a “Restaurant”). FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operate under the service marks and trade name
“FIREHOUSE SUBS® Est. 1994 and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS® and design,” “FIREHOUSE
SUBS” and under distinctive business formats, methods, procedures, designs, layouts, signs, equipment,
menus, recipes, trade dress, standards and specifications, all of which we may improve, further develop or
otherwise modify from time to time (the “System”). We use, promote and license in the operation of a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant the Marks, certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial
symbols, including the trade and service marks “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Est. 1994 and design,”
“FIREHOUSE SUBS® and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS” and other associated logos, designs,
artwork and trade dress, trademarks, service marks, commercial symbols, and e-names, which have
gained and continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and may create, use and license additional
trademarks, service marks, e-names and commercial symbols in conjunction with the operation of
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants (collectively, the “Marks”).

Our Unit Franchise Program

In this Disclosure Document we grant a franchise for the right to own and operate a FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant (the “Franchise”) at a single location to persons who meet our qualifications and who
are willing to undertake the investment and effort. The Franchise will be granted for a single location that
we approve. FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operate under the Marks and under the System. Our
current form of Franchise Agreement is attached as Exhibit “C.”

- 2.
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QOur Area Development Program

In this Disclosure Document, we also grant to persons who meet our qualifications and who are
willing to undertake the investment and effort the right to develop, within a predetermined time frame,
and operate Restaurants at multiple locations within a specific geographical area (“Area Developer(s)”).
Our standard form of Development Agreement (the “Development Agreement”) is attached as Exhibit
“D.” See Items 5 and 12. Each Restaurant is operated under a separate Franchise Agreement (Exhibit
“C”).

Market Growth Program

For a limited time, we are offering certain incentives to encourage growth of FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants in certain metropolitan areas; first in the Northeast territory (the “NE_Growth
Market”) and second in the Midwest territory (the “MW Growth Market”) focused on existing and new
Area Developers (the “Growth Program™). To encourage the development of multiple Restaurants in a_
NE Growth Market, we are offering discounted Development Fees and Royalties. To be eligible_in the
NE Growth Market, the Area Developer must commit to open at least 5 Restaurants (in addition to any
previous commitment). The current NE Growth Market consists of the following: the states of New
Jersey, New Hampshire, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Maine, Connecticut; and the standard metropolitan
statistical areas of: New York, New York; Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; and Boston, Massachusetts. T__CL

ligible in the M thMarktth Area Developer must commit t natlat Restaurant

We may designate new, or

remove, Growth Markets We may cancel the Growth Program, or gng portion of it, at any time, but not
on a retroactive basis for transactions entered into before cancellation.

QOur Area Representative Program

In a separate Disclosure Document, we have been granting to persons who own or will own a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant franchise and meet our qualifications and who are willing to undertake
the investment and effort, the right to operate an area representative business since the Reorganization Date.
Prior to the Reorganization Date, FRG offered Area Representative franchises from April 1, 2005. Area
Representative Businesses solicit and screen prospective franchisees for the right to own and operate
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant franchises (the “Franchises”) under Franchise Agreements which are
between us and the franchisee (the Area Representative is not a party). Area Representative Businesses
assist us in rendering certain services to franchisees, including making the Area Representative Business’
franchised Restaurant available for training franchisees and their employees; overseeing the development
and construction process for franchise restaurants; conducting regular visits to determine the franchisee’s
compliance with our operation and System standardsStandards; and conducting regular consultation
meetings with franchisees. The Area Representative Business also renders certain services directly to us,
including delivery of annual business plans; regular reports on business activities; collection of moneys
due us by Franchisees; and other activities that we may deem necessary from time to time. We have sold
43 area representative businesses. See Exhibit “O” for information on any Area Representatives in your
city and state.

Our Business

We began offering franchises in January 2005. We do not engage in other business activities and
have not offered franchises in other lines of business, except our Area Representative Program.
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Competition

You will be competing with other Restaurants, casual restaurants, fast food restaurants, full
service restaurants, grocery stores and specialty stores that offer food and food-related products. These
restaurants and similar businesses may be associated with national or regional chains or may be local
independent restaurants and other businesses. You also will be competing with other food service outlets
that feature products and services that differ from those offered by FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants.
Your products and services will be offered to the general public, to individual consumers, for on-site
consumption and carry out; not delivery. The market for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants is developed
in some areas and developing in other areas, depending on the number of this type of restaurant in the
particular area.

Regulations

There are no regulations specific to the industry in which FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants
operate, although you must comply with all local, state and federal, health and environmental laws that
apply to restaurant operations. You will also be required to comply with workers’ compensation, equal
protection and workplace safety laws and regulations, labor laws, including Title VII, and the ADA.

ITEM 2.
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Founder, Executive Chairman, President and Director: Robin O. Sorensen

Mr. Sorensen has been our Executive Chairman and President, and a Director, since December
2004. Mr. Sorensen, a former firefighter, is the co-founder of the Firehouse Subs System, along with his
brother Chris Sorensen, and has been President and a Director of FRG since 1995. Mr. Sorensen also
serves in similar roles for many of our affiliates since their inception.

Founder, Vice President and Director: Chris Sorensen

Mr. Sorensen has been our Vice President and a Director since December 2004. Mr. Sorensen is
the co-founder of the Firehouse Subs System, along with his brother Robin Sorensen, and has been FRG’s
Vice President since 1995. Mr. Sorensen also serves in similar roles for many of our affiliates since their
inception.

Controller/Treasurer and Director: Stephen Joost

Mr. Joost has been our Controller/Treasurer and a Director since December 2004. In July of
2011, he relinquished his duties as Chief Financial Officer to serve on the Jacksonville City Council. He
has been Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Director of Franchise Operations of FRG since
1995.

Chief Executive Officer: Don Fox

Mr. Fox has been our Chief Executive Officer since December 2009. Before that, Mr. Fox served
as Chief Operating Officer from May 2005 to December 2009.

Chief Financial Officer of FRG: Vincent Burchianti

Mr. Burchianti was promoted to Chief Financial Officer of FRG in July 2011. He served as Vice
President of Finance and Technology from March 2007 to July 2011. Prior to that, he was our Corporate
Controller from January 27, 2001 to March 2007.

- 4-
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Member of Board of Directors: Timothy K. Goss

Mr. Goss has been a member of our Board of Directors since September 2007. He has also been
the Managing Member of Southeastern Interstate Group, one of our Area Representatives, in Charlotte,
North Carolina since January 2004. He has been President of Professional Restaurant Group, one of our
Area Representatives, in Charlotte, North Carolina since June 1997 (See Exhibit “O”).

Vice President Supply Chain Services: Matthew P. Riddleberger

Mr. Riddleberger was promoted to Vice President of Supply Chain Services of FRG in September
2011. Prior to then, he was our Director of Purchasing between July 2006 and September 2011.

Vice President of Field Operations: Margaret Rose

Ms. Rose was promoted to Vice President of Field Operations in December 2012. Previously,
she was our Director of Company Operations from November 2008 to December 2012. Prior to that, she
was our Manager of Franchise Compliance since April 2, 2007.

Vice President of Financial Services: Mary Rawlins

Ms. Rawlins was promoted to Vice President of Financial Services for FRG in December 2012.
Previously she was our Controller from March 2007 to December 2012. Prior to that from January 13,
2003, she was our Assistant Controller.

Vice President of Global and Non-Traditional Development: Gregory P. Delks

Mr. Delks became our Vice President of Global and Non-Traditional Development in January 2017.
He was promoted to Vice President of Franchise Development in June of 2013. Prior to then, he was our
Director of Franchise Development from November 27, 2006 to June 2013.

Vice President of Real Estate Services: John S. Namey

Mr. Namey was promoted to Vice President of Real Estate Services in June of 2013. Prior to then, he
was our Director of Real Estate from February 2005 to June 2013.

Vice President of Operations Services: Richard Goodman

Mr. Goodman was promoted to Vice President of Operations Services in December of 2013. Prior to
then, he was our Director of Operations Services from November 2011 to December 2013. From December
1976 through February 2011, he was Director of Global OPS Strategy and Execution with the Burger King
Corporation.

Vice President of Quality Assurance: John Raulerson

Mr. Raulerson became our Vice President of Quality Assurance for FRG in January 2017. He
was promoted to Vice President of Technical Services for FRG in July of 2015. He was our Senior
Director of Technical Services from December of 2013 to July 2015. Prior to then, he served as Manager

- 5-
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of Technical Services from August 2006 to September 2007, and then our Director of Technical Services
from September 2007 to December 2013.

Vice President of Brand Marketing: Kristen Majdanics

Ms. Majdanics was promoted to_Vice President of Marketing in May of 2017. She was
previously the Vice President of Brand Marketing for FRG in July 2015. She was our Senior Director of

Branding Marketing from December of 2013 to July 2015. Prior to then, she was our Director of Brand
Marketing from March 2011 to December 2013. Before that, from January 2008 to March 2011, she
served as our Manager of Brand Marketing.

Vice President of Information Technology: Robert Jakoby

Mr. Jakoby was hired as Vice President of Information Technology for FRG in July of 2015.
Prior to joining FRG, he was the IT Leader at Lucky’s Market in Niwot, Colorado from August 2014 to
April 2015. He also was CIO of Smashburger in Denver, Colorado between August 2012 and April 2014
and served as VP of IT for Rock Bottom Brewery/Craftworks in Louisville, Colorado from June 2009 to
February 2012.

Yice President of Human Resources: Alex Costas

Mr. Costas was hired as Vice President of Human Resources for FRG in February of 2016. Prior
to joining FRG, he has been the Principal of his own firm, Costas Consulting International, LLC,
Jacksonville Beach, Florida since January 1993. From May 1998 to December 2014, he held a number of
roles with Florida Blue (BlueCross BlueShield of Florida), Jacksonville, Florida including Organization
Development Consultant, Human Resources Director, and Strategy Consultant.

Senior Director of Company Operations: Michael Branson

Mr. Branson was promoted to Senior Director of Company Operations for FRG Florida in
January 2017. From November 2012 to January 2017, he was its Director of Company Operations.
Previously, he was District Manager for FRG Florida from September 2006 to November 2012.

Corporate Controller: Sheri Kohler

MssMs. Kohler was promoted to Corporate Controller for FRG in December 2012. Previously,
she was our Assistant Controller from March 2008 to December 2012, having previously served as our
Accounting Manager from June 2005 to March 2008, and our Cash Management Accountant from
December 2003 to June 2005.

Director of Franchise Administration: Kristen Moore
Ms. Moore was promoted to Director of Franchise Administration for us in December 2012.
Previously, she was our Manager of Franchise Administration from January 2006 to December 2012; prior to

that from May 2002 to January 2006, she was our Franchise Coordinator and from May 2000 to May 2002,
she was FRG’s Administrative Assistant.

Director of Field Marketing: Marisa Burton

MrsMs. Burton was promoted to Director of Field Marketing for us in November 2012.
Previously, she was one of our Regional Marketing Managers from August 2010 to November 2012,
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Director of Real Estate Services: Kristen Akel

MrsMs. Akel was promoted to Director of Real Estate Services for us in December 2013. Prior to
then, she was our Manager of Real Estate Services from October 2007 to December 2013.

Director of Reporting and Analytics: Danny Walsh

Mr. Walsh was promoted to Director of Reporting and Analytics for FRG in December 2013.
Previously, he was FRG’s Senior Manager of Reporting and Analytics from November 2012 to December
2013, and its Financial Reporting Manager from June 2006 to November 2012. Prior to then, he was
FRG’s Financial Analyst from January 2004 to June 2006. Before then, he was FRG’s FIRE Marshal
from February 2003 to January 2004.

Director of Digital Content: Melissa Lee

M=esMs. Lee was promoted to Director of Digital Content for us in December 2014. Previously,
she was our Senior Manager of Social Media from December 2013 to December 2014. Prior to that, she
was our Manager of Social Media from January 2010 to December 2013, after serving as
Communications Coordinator from January 2008 to January 2010.

Director of Construction Services: Richard Elkins

Mr. Elkins was promoted to Director of Construction Services for us in December 2014.
Previously, he was our Manager of Construction Services from January 2012 to December 2014. He-was-

mobeplesedmrion oo D0 0

Director of ise Financial Fi i i : Ronda Wilson

Ms. Wilson’s title changed to Director of Franchise Financial Compliance October 2017, She
was premeted-to-Director of Financial Field Operations for us #from December 2643-2013 to October

2017. Previously, she was FRG’s Senior Accounting Manager from December 2011 to December 2013.
Prior to that, she served as the Accounting Manager of FRG from October 2005 to December 2011.

Director of Operations Services: Marisa McLaughlin

MesMs. McLaughlin was promoted to Director of Operations Services for us in August of 2015.
Prior to then, she was our Project Manager of Operations Services from May 2013 until August of 2015.
From April of 2011 through May of 2013, she was Director of Training, HR and Restaurant Systems with
Xfinity Live! in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Director of Supply Chain Services: Pete Carantza

Mr. Carantza was promoted to Director of Supply Chain Services for FRG in December of 2015.
Prior to then, he was FRG’s Senior Manager of Procurement from January 2014 to December 2015.
From April 2011 to January 2014, he was FRG’s Director of Sales for Variety Foods.
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Director of Franchise Development: Brent Greenwood

Mr. Greenwood was promoted to Director of Franchise Development for us in December of 2015.
He was our Senior Manager of Franchise Development from December 2013 to December 2015. Prior to
then, he was our Manager of Franchise Development from August 2008 to December 2013.

Director of Franchise Operations: David Berlin

Mr. Berlin was promoted to Director of Franchise Operations for us in October 2014. Prior to
that, he was our Franchise Business Manager from August 2012 through October 2014. From November
2007 to August 2012, he was Vice President of Operations for Cruisers Grill in Jacksonville, Florida.

Director of Quality Assurance: Stephen Lowe

Mr. Lowe was promoted to Director of Quality Assurance for FRG in January 2017. Prior to
then, he was its Senior Quality Assurance Manager from January 2013 to January 2017 and our Quality
Assurance Manager between January 2007 and January 2013.

Director of Catering: Risa Rappaport

Ms. Rappaport became our Director of Catering in June of 2016. Prior to joining us, she was
Area Manager for Guckenheimer in San Mateo, California from July 2015 and April 2016. Between
April 2014 and May 2015, she was Director of Operations for TGIFridays in Dallas, Texas. She was
Vice President of Operations for &Pizza in Washington D.C. between March 2013 and February 2014.
From February 2007 until April 2013, she was Director of Operations with La Madeleine Restaurants in
Dallas, Texas.

Franchise Business Manager: Richard L. Griggs

Mr. Griggs has been our Franchise Business Manager since October 16, 2006.

Franchise Business Manager: Richard Highers

Mr. Highers has been our Franchise Business Manager since February 2012. From February 1999
to February 2012, he was Director of Operations for Centurion Foods, Inc., a Burger King franchisee in
Atlanta, Georgia.
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Franchise Business Manager: Donna Cannizzo

Ms. Cannizzo has been a Franchise Business Manager for us since January 31, 2013. Prior to
that, from June 2011 to November 2012, she was a Director of Franchise Performance for Burger King
Corporation in the Midwest Region based in Illinois.

Franchise Business Manager: Stephen Kaplan

Mr. Kaplan has been a Franchise Business Manager for us since March 16, 2015. Previously, he
was our Implementation Manager from May 2014 to March 2015. Prior to that, from February 2012 to
May 2014, he was Director of Operations for Salsarita’s in Charlotte, North Carolina.

Franchise Business Manager: Shauna Cozzens

Ms. Cozzens has been our Franchise Business Manager since February 2015. Prior to that, from
May 2014 through February 2015, she was the Customer Relations Manager for City Market (Kroger) in
Grand Junction, Colorado. From January 2012 through May 2014, she was the General Manager and
Member of Living at Home, LLC, a home décor business in Grand Junction, Colorado.

Franchise Business Manager: Jovon Silkert

Mr. Silkert was promoted to Franchise Business Manager in December 2016. Prior to then, he
was District Manager for FRG Florida between July 2011 and December 2016.

Senior Manager of Franchise Contracts: Lindsay Milton

Ms. Milton was promoted to Senior Manager of Franchise Contracts for us in January of 2016.
She was our Manager of Franchise Administration from March 2013 to January 2016. Prior to then, she
was our Assistant Manager of Franchise Administration from January 2012 to March 2013. She was our
Franchise Administration Assistant from May 2010 to January 2012.

Manager of Global and Non-Traditional Operations: Shane Mitchell

Mr. Mitchell was promoted to Manager of Global and Non-Traditional Operations in January
2017. Prior to then, he was our Franchise Business Manager from July 2011 to January 2017. Previously,
he was our Manager of Training from October 2008 to July 2011. Prior to that, he was a General Manager
of FRG Florida from April 2004 to October 2008.

Assistant Controller: Heather Richardson

-M#esMs. Richardson was promoted to Assistant Controller for FRG in December 2013. Prior to
then, she was FRG’s Financial Services Manager from October 2011 to December 2013. She was FRG’s
Corporate Accountant from January 2010 to October 2011.

QB\138202.00002\+66095895-5510095895.63



See Exhibit “O” for information on any Area Representatives in your city and state.

ITEM 3.
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Diselosure Document-Item.
See California Addendum in Exhibit “T.”

ITEM 4.
BANKRUPTCY

On March 14, 2005, Richard L. Griggs, one of our Franchise Business Managers (see Item 2),
filed for protection under Chapter 13 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (US Bankruptcy Court for the Middle
District of Florida, Case No.8:05-bk-04480-KRM). Mr. Griggs made his last bankruptcy payment in
April 2010, was discharged on July 19, 2010 and the case was closed on October 15, 2010.

On September 30, 2009, Mr. Robert Jakoby, FRG’s Vice President of Information Technology
(see Item 2) filed for protection under Chapter 7 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (US Bankruptcy Court for
the District of Colorado (Denver), Case No. 09-30618-MER). Mr. Jakoby was discharged on January 28,
2010 and the case terminated July 19, 2012.

See Exhibit “O” for information on any Area Representatives in your city and state.
Other than these 2 actions, no bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5.
INITIAL FEES

Application Deposit

We require prospective franchisees to pay us a deposit of $2,500 (the “Deposit”). The Deposit is
not refundable, but it will be applied to the initial franchise fee. We hold and apply the Deposit in
accordance with our Application and Deposit Agreement (the “Deposit Agreement”). A copy of it is
attached as Exhibit “B.” You must pay the Deposit when you sign the Deposit Agreement. We carefully
evaluate all prospective franchise owners and the markets in which they want to operate. As part of this
evaluation, you must work at least 50 hours in a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant without compensation.
This work does not constitute training of any type. The Deposit helps ensure that applicants are serious
before we undertake those evaluation efforts.

Initial Franchise Fee

Your initial franchise fee is $20,000. You must pay the initial franchise fee in a lump sum (less
the Deposit) when you sign the Franchise Agreement. In consideration for this initial franchise fee, we
grant you a franchise to operate a Restaurant in an exclusive Territory and provide you with initial
training. If you do not satisfactorily complete training, we will terminate the franchise agreement. The
initial franchise fee is fully earned and nonrefundable. We use the fee to provide training and other
services to our franchisees.

- 10 -
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Mural

Every FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant displays a mural that we commission for that Restaurant.
Although we own all copyrights to the artwork, you must purchase the mural either from us or the artist
we commission to paint it. The mural’s cost ranges from $3,000 to $4,700 and is payable when ordered.
It is not refundable.

Management Information System Fee

You must pay us an annual Management Information System Fee (the “MIS System Fee”) of
$1,200 for use of our mandated management information system (“MIS System™). The MIS System Fee
is due annually even if the Restaurant has not yet opened. Upon signing your Agreement, you must pay
us a proportionate share of the MIS System Fee to cover the period from the date of the Agreement through
December 31 of that year. For example, if the Agreement Effective Date is August 1, then you must
immediately pay us $500 to cover the period August 1 through December 31. The MIS System Fee is not
refundable.

Area Development Program

We charge a Development Fee for you to obtain the exclusive right to open multiple Restaurants
in a pre-determined area in a specific amount of time under the Development Agreement. The amount
paid is equal to 7 of the initial franchise fee times the number of Restaurants scheduled to be developed.
During 264+6;2017, the Development Fees ranged from $+6;000-0- to $46;606-50,000. You must pay the
Development Fee in a lump sum when you sign the Development Agreement. The Development Fee is
fully earned and non-refundable. As an accommodation for payment of the Development Fee, the Initial
Franchise Fee for each Restaurant to be developed is reduced to 2 of the then-current initial franchise fee
and is payable each time you sign a Franchise Agreement for a Restaurant to be developed under the
Development Agreement.

Growth Program

While the NE Growth Program is in effect, we are eliminating the Development Fee for the first 5
Restaurants (the “NE Incentive Restaurants™)_in the NE Growth Market you commit to open. So, as an
example, if you are eligible and commit to open 8 Restaurants, then the Development Fee will be $30,000
($10,000 x (8 — 5)). Of course, when you sign the Franchise Agreement for each Restaurant (including
for the Incentive Restaurants), you must pay the $10,000 initial franchise fee then due. We also reduce
Royalties for a 2-year period for Incentive Restaurants to 3% of Gross Sales (and to 4% of Gross Sales for
already open Restaurants by existing Area Developers who commit to open up to 5 additional Restaurants
to those previously committed).

hile the M rowth Program is in eff re eliminating the D lmnF for the fir:

If eligible for the Growth Program, you and we will sign the appropriate addendum for each
market and vour current status: NE Growth Incentive Addendum for new Area Developments-ex; the NE
Growth Incentive Amendment for Existing Area Developers; MW _Growth Incentive Addendum for new_

- 11 -
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Area Developers: or MW Growth Incentive Amendment for new Area Developers (the forms of which
are attached as Exhibits E-+-andl, E-2, E-3, or E-4, respectively).

Except as otherwise stated above, all fees are charged on a uniform basis.

ITEM 6.
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty 6% of Gross Sales? Payable the 3 We may require you to pay the
per Accounting Period® | day of Accounting | royalties by electronic transfer. See
Reduced to 3% of Gross | Period® Note 1.
Sales during the first 2
years of operation for
each Incentive
Restaurant you open’
MIS System $1,200 Payable on the 1 | We may require you to pay this MIS
Fees day of each year System Fee by electronic transfer.
even if the
Restaurant has not
yet opened
System Fund Not to exceed 1% of Payable the 3 Paid to the System Fund we
Gross Sales? per day of each established for the creation and
Accounting Period? Accounting development of marketing,
(currently 1%) Period® advertising and related programs
and materials on a system-wide
basis.
Local 2% of Gross Sales?; 4% | Payable the 3 day | Payments to the marketing co-op
Advertising of Gross Sales? starting | of each established in your market count
in fiscal 2045%2015* Accounting toward this expenditure.
Period?
Additional $50 per person, per day | Before training We train you and 1 other person (or
Training begins 2 of your owners) free. If space is
available, we will also train up to 3
additional people at no charge. (See
Item 11) — Additional training is
provided if necessary. There is no
established schedule or frequency
for additional training. It is
provided on an as-needed basis.
Refresher $100 per person, per 30 days after Payable if you want to send
Training day billing additional Managers through the full
training program.
Transfer % of our then-current Prior to Payable when the Franchise
initial franchise fee; consummation of | Agreement or a controlling interest
$1,500 if transfer is transfer in you is transferred.
among your owners
Renewal Ya of our then-current At the time you You may elect to acquire a
initial franchise fee elect to acquire a successor franchise during the 9™
successor franchise | year of the Term, but no later than
180 days before expiration.
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
MIS Fees To be determined; not As incurred We may charge a reasonable fee for
currently charged modifications and enhancements
made to any proprietary software we
license to you or other Computer
System maintenance and support
services we furnish.
Audit Cost of inspection or 15 days after Payable only if you fail to furnish
audit plus travel billing reports, supporting records or other
required information or if sales are
underreported by 2% or more.
Interest Lesser of 18 % per 15 days after Payable on all overdue amounts.
month or highest billing
contract rate of interest The maximum interest rate in
allowed by law California is 10% per annum.
Late Payment $250 Due on payment of | Payable on all late payments, late
Penalties late amount reports and dishonored checks,
including interest.
Manual $100 At time of Cost of replacement copy. (Note:
purchase your copy of the Manual is only on
loan to you.)
Management $1,500 per week As agreed Payable during period that our
Fee appointed manager manages the
Restaurant upon your death or
disability.
Costs and Will vary under As incurred Payable upon your failure to comply
Attorneys’ Fees | circumstances with the Franchise Agreement.
Indemnification | Will vary under As incurred You have to reimburse us if we are
circumstances held liable for claims arising from
your Restaurant’s operations.
Testing $250 per day plus At time of request | This covers the costs of testing new
laboratory fees, products or inspecting new suppliers
professional fees, you propose.
personnel travel and
living expenses and
other 3" party fees we
incur
Relocation Costs of Relocation 15 days after This covers the cost we incur if you
Expenses billing want to relocate the Restaurant.
L. All fees are imposed by and payable to us except the local co-op and System Fund fees.

All fees are uniformly imposed and are non-refundable, except as provided in Item 5 and for the Growth
Program. We may require that you pay any or all recurring or periodic fees by electronic transfer.

2. “Gross Sales” are defined as the total actual gross charges for all products (food and
non-food) and services sold to customers of the Restaurant for cash or credit, whether these sales are
made at or from the Restaurant premises, or any other location. However, any amounts that you collect
and transmit to state or local authorities as sales, use or other similar taxes are excluded from the
definition of Gross Sales

3. “Accounting Period” is that period we designate in the Manual (currently a 7-day
accounting period for Royalty and Marketing calculations that runs from Monday through Sunday and a
4, 4, 5-week accounting system for financial statement purposes).

- 13-
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4. The board of directors of the Co-Op voted to set the contribution at 4% of Gross Sales
beginning the first Accounting Period in fiscal 2646;2018, which began Deecember 28,2045

January 1,
2018. However a PMAdesignated marketing area (“DMA”) may opt out of the 4% with a simple

majority vote.

5. Under the Growth Program, the Royalty for the Incentive Restaurants is reduced to 3% of
Gross Sales for the first 2 years of its operations, and the Royalty for Restaurants already open and
operating is reduced to 4% of Gross Sales for a 2-year period if the Area Developer commits to open up

to 5 additional Restaurants in the NE territory, or 3 additional Restaurants in the MW territory, to those

previously committed.

ITEM 7.

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

(TRADITIONAL DEVELOPMENT RESTAURANTS)

QB\138202.00002\+66095895-5510095895.63

To Whom
Method Of Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due to be Made
Deposit (1) $2,500 | Lump Sum Payable on signing Us
Deposit Agreement
Balance of Initial Franchise $17,500 | Lump Sum Payable on signing Us
Fee (Less any Deposit) Franchise Agreement
(2)19)
Mural (3) $3.,000 - $5;9904.600 | Lump Sum Payable at time of Artist
order
Travel and Living Expenses $0 - $25.8928,250 | As incurred | As incurred Third Parties
during Training (4)
Opening Advertising (5) $5,000 - | Asincurred | As incurred Third Parties
$31,660620.000
Rental of Site (3 months) (6) $6,5333,958 - | Asincurred | Monthly Third Parties
$84:,00037,800
Real Property Improvements $0 - $106,00045,258 | Monthly Monthly Third Parties
@)
Leasehold Improvements (8) $0 - $347,458260,000 | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
Opening
Deposits and Prepaid $0 - $42,41844,018 | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
Expenses (9) Opening
Signs (10) $0 - $20,20436,000 | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
Opening
Equipment and Fixtures (11) $55,000 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$170,000119.489 | Opening
Opening Inventory (12) $5,000 - | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
$26,60025,000 | Opening
Business Licenses (13) $0 - $23,00018,671 | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
Opening
Insurance (14) $450197 - | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
$4+576012,000
Miscellaneous Expenses (3 $0 - $96,600102,000 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
months) (15)
Additional Funds (Working $0 — $68;65660,000 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Capital — 3 months)
MIS System Fee (16) $100 - $1,200 | Prior to Lump Sum Us
Opening
- 14 -




To Whom
Method Of Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due to be Made
Accounting System Fee (17) $0 - $29,44810.560 | As Incurred | As Incurred Third Parties
TOTAL ESTIMATED $94,78392,255 -
INITIAL INVESTMENT $1,006,366824,846
UNDER THE UNIT
FRANCHISE PROGRAM
(EXCLUDING REAL
ESTATE PURCHASE
COSTS)(18)
Development Fee (19) (based $0 -to $406,660650,000 [ Lump Sum On signing the Us
on actual 2017 data) Development
Agreement
Vehicle (20) $12,000 - $18,000 | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
Opening
TOTAL ESTIMATED $106,783104,255 -
INITIAL INVESTMENT $1;064,366892.846
UNDER THE AREA
DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM (18, 21)

We relied on our experience and that of our affiliates and franchisees to compile these estimates. We also
utilized the data summarized below to do so:

o The actual lowest total investment for an individual Restaurant of this category during 26462017
was $58;65048,255 (a site that had previously been a Firehouse Subs ® location) and the actual
highest total investment for an individual Restaurant was $585;775—ew547,971. The low is the

Pompane-Beaech, FloridaFranklin, Indiana Restaurant which re-opened; the high is Glastenbury;-
Conneeticutthe Severna Park, Maryland Restaurant.

e Average total cost for a typical Firehouse Subs® Restaurant located in a strip mall that is close to
retail or other commercial area is $349,124.343,231.

e Below is a Table showing the breakdown of Restaurants of this category opened in 20462017 and
their total investment range based on investment totals given to us by the franchisees:

Htem $51,000 | $151,000 | $251,000 | $351,000 | $4si000 | 001000
- $150,999 - $250,999 - $350,999 - $450,999 - $550,999 $650,999
Number of 52 3 384 4234 833 17
Restaurants
Total Number 9779 9779 9779 9779 9779 9719
of Restaurants
Percentage of 53% 3% 395% 43% 842% 19%
Restaurants
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
END-CAP STRIP MALL RESTAURANTS W/ DRIVE THRU
To Whom
Method Of Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due to be Made
Deposit (1) $2,500 | Lump Sum Payable on signing Us
Deposit Agreement
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To Whom

Method Of Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due to be Made
Balance of Initial Franchise $17,500 | Lump Sum Payable on signing Us
Fee (Less any Deposit) Franchise Agreement
(2)19)
Mural (3) $2.4603.000 - | Lump Sum Payable at time of Artist
$3-1953,600 order
Travel and Living Expenses $0 - $6;0003.500 | Asincurred | As incurred Third Parties
during Training (4)
Opening Advertising (5) $5,000_-$14.000 | Asincurred [ As incurred Third Parties
Rental of Site (3 months) (6) $6,5339,450 - | Asincurred | Monthly Third Parties
$84:00027,563
Real Property Improvements $0-$16.000 | Monthly Monthly Third Parties
)]
Leasehold Improvements (8) $8,219124,913 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$249.556283,187 | Opening
Deposits and Prepaid $0 - $47,50622,437 | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
Expenses (9) Opening
Signs (10) $1406:4576.500 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$56,00048,312 | Opening
Equipment and Fixtures (11) $85,60060.000 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$136,000185,546 | Opening
Opening Inventory (12) $6,90605,395 - | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
$29:-18216.000 | Opening
Business Licenses (13) $425500 - | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
$4,20025,000 | Opening
Insurance (14) $350325 - $9,4657.521 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Miscellaneous Expenses (3 $4;6000 - | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
months) (15) $32,00045,710
Additional Funds (Working $0 - $40,00085.820 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Capital — 3 months)
MIS System Fee (16) $766100 - $1,200 | Prior to Lump Sum Us
Opening
Accounting System Fee (17) $0 - $34,0004,383 | As Incurred | As Incurred Third Parties
TOTAL ESTIMATED $149,681235,183 -
INITIAL INVESTMENT $727,898809,779
UNDER THE UNIT
FRANCHISE PROGRAM
(EXCLUDING REAL
ESTATE PURCHASE
COSTS)(18)
Development Fee (19) $0 - $46,60650,000 [ Lump Sum On signing the Us
[Based(based on 2646actual Development
2017 data}) Agreement
Vehicle (20) $12,000 - $18,000 | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
Opening
TOTAL ESTIMATED $161;681247,183 -
INITIAL INVESTMENT $785,;898877,779
UNDER THE AREA
DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM (18, 21)
- 16 -
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We relied on our experience and that of our affiliates and franchisees to compile these estimates. We also
utilized the data summarized below to do so:

e The actual lowest total investment for an individual Restaurant of this category during 26462017
was $325;432269,113 and the actual highest total investment for an individual Restaurant was
$482.856. 59 T L - the hich is the . )
Restaurant.

e Average total cost for a typical Firehouse Subs® Restaurant located in a strip mall that is close to
retail or other commercial area with a Drive Thru is $408.661-428.669.

e Below is a Table showing the breakdown of Restaurants of this category opened in 20462017 and
their total investment range based on investment totals given to us by the franchisees:

OW nNe burbank no A8 auran 0 AINa 0 Xa

Item $251,000 - $350,999 $351,000 - $450,999 $451,000 - $550,999
Number of Restaurants 12 23 3
Total Number of Restaurants 68 68 68
Percentage of Restaurants 1+725% 3338% 5038%
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
(FREE STANDING RESTAURANTS W/ DRIVE THRU)
To Whom
Method Of Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due to be Made
Deposit (1) $2,500 | Lump Sum Payable on signing Us
Deposit Agreement
Balance of Initial Franchise $17,500 | Lump Sum Payable on signing Us
Fee (Less any Deposit) Franchise Agreement
(2)19)
Mural (3) $2.5603,000 - | Lump Sum Payable at time of Artist
$3-3503,600 order
Travel and Living Expenses $0500 - $4,2005,243 | Asincurred | As incurred Third Parties
during Training (4)
Opening Advertising (5) $5,000 —$14.800 | Asincurred [ As incurred Third Parties
Rental of Site (3 months) (6) $6,53311.461 - | Asincurred | Monthly Third Parties
$84,00019,143
Real Property Improvements $0 - $6;60013,300 | Monthly Monthly Third Parties
)
Leasehold Improvements (8) $464:499129,100 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$483.642194,056 | Opening
Deposits and Prepaid $0 - $8,27913,550 | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
Expenses (9) Opening
Signs (10) $6,88015.425 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$72:00049,200 | Opening
Equipment and Fixtures (11) $68.86955,000 - | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
$73;231168,000 | Opening
Opening Inventory (12) $4:4363,100 - | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
$+0,50014,387 | Opening
Business Licenses (13) $4;852263 - | Prior to Lump Sum Third Parties
$5,6062,000 | Opening
Insurance (14) $1,;6003,496 - $7.000 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Miscellaneous Expenses (3 $25;000980 - | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
months) (15) $36,749102,000
Additional Funds (Working $0 - $50,00030.000 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Capital — 3 months)
- 17 -
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To Whom
Method Of Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due to be Made
MIS System Fee (16) $4+000100 - $1,200 | Prior to Lump Sum Us
Opening
Accounting System Fee (17) $0 - $21,4373.500 | As Incurred | As Incurred Third Parties
TOTAL ESTIMATED $290,269247.,425 -
INITIAL INVESTMENT $892.358651,179
UNDER THE UNIT
FRANCHISE PROGRAM
(EXCLUDING REAL
ESTATE PURCHASE
COSTS)(18)
Development Fee (19) (based $0 - $46,00050,000 [ Lump Sum On signing the Us
on actual 2017 data) Development
Agreement
Vehicle (20) $12,000 - $18,000 | Prior to As incurred Third Parties
Opening
TOTAL ESTIMATED $302,269259.,425 -
INITIAL INVESTMENT $950,358719,179
UNDER THE AREA
DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM (18, 21)

We relied on our experience and that of our affiliates and franchisees to compile these estimates. We also
utilized the data summarized below to do so:

o The actual lowest total investment for an individual Restaurant of this category during 26462017
was $347,251379.137 and the actual highest total investment for an individual Restaurant was
$764.843. ) . . o L ) .
Restaurant.

e Average total cost for a typical Firechouse Subs® Restaurant located in a free standing building
with a fully functional drive thru is $524,466-.453,657.

e Below is a Table showing the breakdown of Restaurants of this category opened in 26462017 and
their total investment range based on investment totals given to us by the franchisees:

OW ne Addison N0 A aurant; the nign

Item $251,000 - $350,999 $751,000 -$850,999
Number of Restaurants 12 1
Total Number of Restaurants 23 23
Percentage of Restaurants 5067% 5033%

Explanatory Notes

1. The Deposit is $2,500. The Deposit is not refundable, but it will be applied to the initial
franchise fee.

2. The current initial franchise fee is $20,000, less the Deposit.

3. We commission a mural for your Restaurant which you must pay to the artist when we
order it.

4. We provide initial training to you and 1 other person (or up to 2 of your owners) without
charge. If space is available at such training session, we will provide initial training for up to 3 additional
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people at no charge for a total of 5 attendees. You are responsible for all travel and living expenses for
trainees. This estimate assumes that the franchisee will get required training in their market at the Area
Representative’s training store and the franchisee would be going home at the end of each day during this
extensive training period and does not include the 1 week of classroom training in Jacksonville, Florida.
The high end of the estimate is only for the 1 week of classroom training in Jacksonville and includes
travel, hotel, rental car and reasonable food allowances, as well as additional travel and living costs if you
have to travel to complete the rest of your training.

5. We require you to conduct a market introduction advertising and promotional program
within the first 12 months after the opening of the Restaurant. This requirement may be waived if your
Restaurant exceeds our expectations for sales performance. The market introduction program is in
addition to your ongoing marketing obligations.

6. The size of a Restaurant is estimated to be between +4001,200 and 2;8603.200 square
feet. We estimate that the rental would range from $1812 to $9648 per square foot.

7. The Restaurant’s location (the “Site”) typically will be located in a strip mall that is close
to retail or other commercial area. The range includes estimates for cost of improvements to the property
outside of the leasehold improvements (see amounts in note 9 above and below). These additional
improvements may include amounts spent relating to exterior work on the premises including parking lot,
landscaping, certain signage and drive-through structures. Some Restaurants may also have to pay
government imposed impact and permit fees depending on the site. They vary considerably due to
numerous factors and we are unable to estimate them. The high estimate also includes the cost of a
drive-through Restaurant.

8. Build-out or renovation of your Site to conform to our standards includes paint, tile work,
lighting, salt walls, drywall partitions, counters and the like. The cost of these improvements will be
significantly more if you select a Site with no pre-existing improvements. If you lease your Site, you may
be able to negotiate an allowance to cover all or a portion of these build-out and leasehold improvements.
Costs of leasehold improvements, which include floor covering, wall treatment, counters, ceilings,
painting, window coverings, plumbing, electrical, carpentry and related work and contractor’s fees, will
vary significantly depending on the condition, location and size of the Site, the demand for the Site
among prospective lessees and any construction or other allowances granted by the landlord after
negotiations. These costs also include architectural drawings.

9. The amount of the rent and security deposit will depend on the size, condition and
location of the Site and the demand for the Site among prospective lessees.

10. The cost of signage varies depending on the size and type of signs, the size and location
of the Restaurant, and any local and development requirements. If local law permits, you must display a
curb or marquee sign that complies with our specifications and standards.

11. This item may include tables and booths, sinks, refrigerators, ovens, steamers, ventilation
systems, display cases, stools, chairs, utensils, computers, POS System, a phone system and facsimile
machine that meets our specifications and standards, a desk, filing cabinets and related office supplies for
a Restaurant. See Items 8 and 11 for hardware and software requirements. We require you to sign our
then current form of Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings in the form attached as
Exhibit “F.”

12. You must purchase a beginning inventory pursuant to our Inventory Stock Plan as
described in the Operations Manual.

13. Y ou must obtain business and health licenses for the operation of your Restaurant. Other
considerations are, but not limited to, zoning, electrical, plumbing, fire inspection, fictitious name,
- 19-
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occupations, and various other licenses or permits. You should consult the appropriate governmental
authority concerning such licenses and/or permits and the associated expenses for your Restaurant before
you sign a Franchise Agreement.

14. Insurance must be obtained to meet the minimum requirements established by the System
Standards. The insurance policy must be in force and effect when the lease for your store is signed. If
there is no lease (for example, you own the property), then the insurance policy must be in force and
effect when you begin construction.

15. This item estimates your initial startup expenses. These expenses include payroll costs.
These figures are estimates, and we cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses starting
the business. Your costs will depend on factors such as: how much you follow our methods and
procedures; your management skill, experience and business acumen; local economic conditions; the
local market for your products and services; the prevailing wage rate; competition; and the sales level
reached during the initial period.

16. The annual MIS System Fee is $1,200 and is prorated for the first year. The low end is
for a Franchise Agreement signed in December and the high end is for a Franchise Agreement signed in
January. It is calculated as follows: for a Franchise Agreement signed in December, you will pay an MIS
fee of $100 with $1,200 due in January for the following year; and for a Franchise Agreement signed in
January, you will pay an MIS fee of $1,200.

17. If you obtain legal and accounting services to help with business formation, review of
contracts, financing documents and leases, setting up of books and records and other services. This
amount varies greatly depending on the services performed and rates prevailing in your market.

18. We relied on our experience and that of our affiliates and franchisees to compile these
estimates. You should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before making any decision
to purchase the franchise. We do not offer financing directly or indirectly for any part of the initial
investment for your Restaurant. The availability and terms of financing will depend on factors such as
the availability of financing generally, your creditworthiness, collateral you may have and lending
policies of financial institutions from which you may request a loan.

19. The Development Fee is equal to '2 of the initial franchise fee times the number of
Restaurants scheduled to be developed. Fhetew—end—isFor example, the Development Fee for 2
Restaurants and-the - high-end-isfor 20-Restaurantsis calculated as follows: Y2 of the initial franchise fee of
$20,000 = $10,000 x 2 Restaurants or $20,000 fer-thelow—end-and for 20 Restaurants $10,000 x 820
Restaurants or $40,000-for-the-high-end-200,000. However, when you sign a Development Agreement,
your initial franchise fee is reduced to $10,000. This estimate is based on actual Development
Agreements signed in 2646-2017. The Development Fee is reduced by the Growth Program. See Items 1
and 5.

20. An Area Developer will need a vehicle for site selection, building construction oversight,
management of multiple locations, etc.

21. You would also incur the estimated initial investment for each Restaurant, except that the
initial franchise fee is reduced by one-half.

See Item 10 for financing information that affects these estimates.
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ITEM 8.
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Purchases from Us

You may be required to purchase equipment directly from us, FRG or our affiliates, but not
currently. You may from time to time be required to purchase some miscellaneous and sundry supplies
from us, FRG or our affiliates. During 2646;2017, no equipment or miscellaneous and sundry supplies
were purchased from us, FRG or our affiliates.

You must purchase the mural for your Restaurant either from us or the artist we commission to
paint it. You must use the MIS System and pay us an annual fee for such use. The annual MIS System
fee is currently $1,200. The payment of the annual MIS System fee, the purchase of the mural for your
Restaurant and the purchase of miscellaneous supplies represents approximately 6-80.2% of your total
purchases to establish your Restaurant and about 6-21.09% of your total purchases to operate your
Restaurant. During the 26462017 fiscal year, we received $+424:8451,373,260 for annual MIS System
fees from our franchisees and is included in our total revenues of $46;175:70688.361,639 as reflected on
our financial statement or 3-091.6% of our total revenues.

Approved Suppliers

In order to maintain the superior quality of the goods and services sold by FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants and the reputation of the FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants franchise network, you are
obligated to purchase or lease fixtures, equipment and supplies, furnishings, beverages, food products and
related items that meet our standards and specifications. You must purchase some of these products from
suppliers that we approve. Examples of approved suppliers are Coca-Cola and Sygma. We may change
approved suppliers from time to time. A complete listing of suppliers is provided in our Specifications
Manual. We do not make any express or implied warranties with respect to any products or goods we
recommend for your use. The cost of equipment and products purchased from approved suppliers
represents about 24+4427.19% of your total purchases to establish your Restaurant and about 36-731.2%
of your total purchases to operate your Restaurant. If we negotiate group or volume purchasing
arrangements with approved suppliers, you must participate in such arrangements. There are no approved
suppliers in which any of our officers own an interest, but FRG does own a membership interest in
National Food (see below). We do not provide material benefits to any franchisee based on a franchisee’s
use of de51gnated or approved sources of thelr purchase of products or servwesﬁher_than_a_cg_e&m

Standards and Specifications

You must operate the Restaurant according to our System standardsStandards. System
standardsStandards may regulate, among other things, the types, models and brands of required fixtures,
furnishings, equipment, signs, software, materials, beverages and food products, and supplies to be used
in operating the Restaurant, required or authorized products and product categories and designated or
approved suppliers of such items (which may be limited to or include us or our affiliates). We do not
make any express or implied warranties with respect to any products or goods we recommend for your
use. Our standards and specifications may impose minimum requirements for quality, taste, cost,
delivery, performance, design and appearance, delivery capabilities, financing terms, and ability to
service our franchise system as a whole. We will notify you in our Manual or other communications of
our standards and specifications and/or names of approved suppliers. Required purchases according to
our specifications and standards represent approximately about 64-259.42% of your total purchases in
connection with the establishment of your Restaurant and about 3434.67% of your overall purchases in
operating the Restaurant.
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Changes of Suppliers

If you want to use any item that does not comply with System Standards or is to be purchased
from a supplier that has not yet been approved, you must first submit sufficient information,
specifications and samples for our determination whether the item complies with System Standards or the
supplier meets approved supplier criteria. We will, within 30 days, notify you of our decision. If you do
not hear back from us within 30 days, your request is deemed denied. We may charge a fee for
evaluating alternative suppliers of $250 per day for personnel time plus travel and living expenses. We
will, from time to time, establish procedures which will be communicated to you in our Manual or other
communications, for submitting requests for approval of items and suppliers and may impose limits on
the number of approved items and suppliers. Approval of a supplier may be conditioned on requirements
relating to product quality, frequency of delivery, standards of service and concentration of purchases
with one or more suppliers in order to obtain better prices and service and may be temporary, pending our
further evaluation of the supplier. We will notify you in our Manual or other communications of our
standards and specifications and/or names of approved suppliers.

Rebates

We and FRG negotiate with suppliers and manufacturers to receive rebates on certain items you
must purchase. The rebates are paid to FRG. Not every supplier pays rebates to FRG. FRG’s revenue
from rebates equaled $45:800,54416,662,746 for fiscal year ending December 25;264631, 2017 which is
about 18:718.9% of its total revenues of $84,491164-88,361,641pursuant to its audited financial
statements. The rebate programs vary depending on the supplier or manufacturer, and the nature of the

product or service— - Cerlatnsupphers—and-manttacturerspay-
ERG-arebate-that-varies—and-is, and are based on the yolume or amount of products ordered. See the

following examples:

BASIS FOR REBATE
PAYABLE TO PSF
PRODUCT PAYABLE TO FRG AND/OR

CONFERENCE!

Meat Products $0.08 - $0.20 per pound $0.003 - $6-610.06 per
pound
Chili $3.00 per case $0.12 per case
Bacon $2.00 per case
Tuna $0.12 per case
Rolls $0.01 per roll $0.0005 per roll
Cheeses $0.005 per pound
Dressings $.040 - $.045 per case
BBQ Sauce $1.00 per case $0.25 - $1.00 per case
Mustard $1.18 per case
Pickles $1 per bucket
Cookie Dough $0.50 per case $0.12 per case
Brownie $0.12 per case
Paper Products/Utensils e $0.10 - $0.35 per case
Cleaning Products $0.30 - $0.85 per case
Gloves $0.25 per case
Sauce Hot Hydrant Bottle | $2.50 per case
Sause Hot Squeeze Bottle | $4.00 per case
Tea Bags $0.25 per case
Chips $2.95 - $3.263.3407 per
case
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BASIS FOR REBATE
PAYABLE TO PSF
PRODUCT PAYABLE TO FRG AND/OR
CONFERENCE!
Marinara Sauce $0.05 per case $0.05 per case
BIB Beverages $6.25 to $6.84 per gallon $0.25 per gallon
Freestyle Cartridges $7.21 - $27.88 per cartridge | $0.88 per cartridge

1. “PSF” is the Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation and the “Conference” is our Annual
Franchise Conference.

Capital 94

Our affiliate - Capital 94 - provides restaurant equipment financing and other financing only to
certain franchise owners that meet its qualifications. You are not required to obtain financing from
Capital 94. Capital 94 is our affiliate, but none of our officers own ana personal interest in it. (See Items
1 and 10)

Affiliates Food Brokerage

FRG owns a 40% membership interest in National Food Solutions, LLC (“National Food”), a
brokerage firm that provides food, paper and sundry items related to the restaurant industry. None of our
officers or directors own an interest in, and they also do not serve as officers or directors of, National
Food. We, and our franchisees, use the services of National Food from time to time, but you are not
required to do so.

Restaurant Development

We require Restaurants to be constructed or remodeled in accordance with our specifications.
The Franchise Agreement requires that you purchase or lease and use only such equipment and supplies
as we may specify or approve. We also will furnish you with mandatory and suggested specifications and
layouts, including requirements for dimensions, design, image, interior layout, decor, fixtures, equipment,
signs, furnishings and color scheme.

Computer Hardware and Software

We require you to purchase computer hardware and software as well as a wired, high-speed
internet connection that meets our specifications and standards. Among other things, the software enables

you to use our required MIS system. Currently, these-are-the-minimumrequirementsforyou are required
Lw computer g;;t_] ;bg §Q§g1ijg hardware and software—ér}—kn%el—@er%r%—pree%sser—er—

&w Wlndows 7 or Wmdows 10 Wlth Mlcrosoft Ofﬁce 2007

2010, or 2013 installed (to include Excel, Word, and PowerPoint). You must have Adobe Reader version
11 installed. You must have an anti-virus program licensed for business use with an active definition
subscription installed on all Windows-based computer systems and must be configured to automatically
update. We estimate that these items are +5-2.5% to 2-23.2% of your total costs to open your
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant and 0.1% to ++1.5% of the total cost to operate it.
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Site

We must approve the Site for your Restaurant. The Site must meet our criteria for demographic
characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from and proximity to
other businesses and other Restaurants, the nature of other businesses in proximity to the Site and other
commercial characteristics and the size, appearance and other physical characteristics of the proposed Site
and any other factors or characteristics we consider appropriate. Our criteria and our evaluation of them
may vary periodically and from location to location. We also must approve the lease or sublease for the
Site of your Restaurant prior to you signing them. You must deliver a copy of the signed lease to us
within 15 days after its execution. Our approval of the lease indicates only that it contains certain
elements that we deem mandatory from time to time. Our review and approval of the lease is not a
substitute for your own review and understanding of the complete lease.

If you lease the Site from a third party, or purchase the Site, we first must approve the lease,
financing and/or purchase documents that you will sign. We may require that they contain certain
provisions that are designed to protect our rights. You and your lessor and, if applicable, any lender for
the Site also must sign our then-current form of Addendum to Lease Agreement (the “Lease
Addendum”) which is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit “G.” The Lease Addendum
generally protects our rights under the Franchise Agreement, our ability to possess the Site if you violate
any of your obligations to us, and your right to occupy the Site, and operate the Restaurant without
interference by lenders and mortgage holders. Any person who is related to or affiliated with you or one
of your owners, directors, officers or other principals, and who plans to lease the Site to you or own or
obtain financing for the Site, must agree to be bound by these provisions.

Under the Lease Addendum, we can take possession of the Restaurant’s Site if you violate the
lease or any obligation to us. You still will be responsible for all lease obligations covering the time
before we take over. If you and the landlord for the Site are or become related in ownership or control,
and we eventually take over the Site, any lease will be amended to be the same length as the Franchise
Agreement, to be consistent with commercially reasonable “triple-net” leases being signed in your
metropolitan area and to reflect the Site’s fair market rental value in your metropolitan area.

Insurance

In addition to the purchases or leases described above, you must obtain and maintain, at your own
expense, such insurance coverage that we require from time to time and meet the other insurance-related
obligations in the Franchise Agreement. The cost of this coverage will vary depending on the insurance
carrier’s charges, terms of payment and your history. All insurance policies must name us as an
additional insured party. We currently require you to carry Worker’s Compensation insurance and
Comprehensive General Liability insurance, including products liability coverage in the minimum amount
of $1,000,000 and contents coverage in the minimum amount of $125,000. You must also carry
Commercial Automobile Liability insurance for all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with minimum
coverage limits of $1,000,000. Limits outlined in this section are minimums. The minimum contents
coverage may not fully cover the replacement cost represented in Tenant Improvements and Equipment.
You are responsible for consulting with insurance professionals to evaluate your own risk and exposure
related to your restaurant and business needs.

Miscellaneous

Except as described above, neither we nor our affiliates currently derive revenue or other material
consideration as a result of required purchases or leases. There currently are no purchasing or distribution
cooperatives. We do negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers for the benefit of franchisees and we
do derive revenue or other material consideration as a result of required purchases or leases.
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ITEM 9.

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other

items of this Disclosure Document.

Obligation

Section in
Franchise Agreement

Disclosure
Document Item

(a) Site selection and acquisition/lease

Section 3; Lease Addendum, Sections
3 and 5 of the Development
Agreement

Items 7, 11 and 12

(b) Pre-opening purchases/leases

Sections 3 and 4; Lease Addendum;
Section 4 of the Development
Agreement

Items 5, 6,7, 8, 11
and 16

(c) Site development and other
pre-opening requirements

Sections 4 and 6; Section 3 and 5 of
the Development Agreement

Items 6, 7 and 11

(d) Initial and ongoing training

Section 6

Item 11

(e) Opening

Sections 4.5 and 4.6

Item 11

(f) Fees

Sections 4.4, 5, 6.1, 11.1, 11.5, 11.6,
14.3 and 15.5; Section 1 of Deposit
Agreement; Section 4 of the
Development Agreement

Items 5, 6 and 7

(g) Compliance with standards and
policies/Operating Manual

Sections 2.1, 3.3,4, 6,7, 8, 10, and 12

Item 11

(h) Trademarks and proprietary

Sections 7 and 8; Sections 6 of the

Items 13 and 14

information Application and Deposit Agreement

(i) Restrictions on products/services Sections 4 and 10 Items 11 and 16
offered

() Warranty and customer service Not Applicable Not Applicable
requirements

(k) Territorial development and sales Sections 3 & 4; Section 3 of the Item 12
quotas Development Agreement

() On-going product/service Sections 4 and 10 Item 8
purchases

(m) Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Sections 4, 10.4 and 15.1

Items 11 and 17

(n) Insurance

Sections 4.5 and 10.2

Items 7 and 8

(o) Advertising

Sections 4.6 and 11

Items 6, 7 and 11

(p) Indemnification

Sections 7.5 and 18.4; Section 4 of
Conditional Assignment of Telephone
Numbers; Section 8.3 of the
Development Agreement

Item 6

(q) Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

Sections 2.1, 6,9, 10.10 and 10.11

Items 11 and 15

(r) Records and reports

Sections 10, 12

Item 11

(s) Inspections and audits

Section 13

Items 6 and 11

(t) Transfer

Section 14; Section 6 of the
Development Agreement

Items 6 and 17

(u) Renewal

Section 15

Items 6 and 17
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Obligation

Section in
Franchise Agreement

Disclosure
Document Item

(v) Post-termination obligations

Section 17; Section 5 of Deposit
Agreement

Item 17

(w) Non-competition covenants

Sections 8.3, 9, 10.10, 10.11, 14.3 and
17.4; Section 5 of the Application and
Deposit Agreement

Item 17

(x) Dispute resolution

Sections 19.3, 19.5-19.14 and 20;
Section 6 of Lease Addendum; Section
9 of Conditional Assignment of
Telephone Numbers and Listings
Agreement; Section 7 of Deposit
Agreement; Section 10 of the
Development Agreement

Item 17

(y) Owners/Shareholders Guaranty

Section 1.5(e); Section 1.5(e) of the
Development Agreement and Principal
Owner’s Guaranty

Item 15

ITEM 10.
FINANCING

Except as set forth below, neither we nor any of our agents or affiliates offers direct or indirect

financing to you, or guarantees any note, lease or obligation.

Our affiliate — Capital 94 — provides

restaurant equipment financing and other financing to franchise owners that meet its qualifications. You
are not required to obtain financing from Capital 94. The following summarizes the financing terms (see

Exhibit “N” for Financing Documents):

SUMMARY OF FINANCING OFFERED

Term Document / Section Provision
(a) Item Loan and Security Agreement Restaurant equipment listed on Schedule A
Financed (“Security Agreement”) §1.4 attached to Security Agreement.
(b) Amount Security Agreement Recitals; Typically between $45,000 and $300,000.
Financed Promissory Note (“Note”)
(c) Loan Fee Security Agreement §3.5 1.0% of original principal amount.
(d) Term Note Typically between 12 months and 84
(Years) months.
(e) APR% Note A fixed rate equal to the sum of the agreed
upon rate of interest-Currenthy6%to-7%.
rrently 79 %. R r j
vary based on changes to index rates,
lished in the Wall Street Journal.
Interest is computed on the actual number of
days elapsed based on a 360-day year.
() Monthly Note Equal monthly payments of principal plus
Payment interest for the term.
(g) Late Security Agreement §2.2 $250 if any payment is paid more than 5
Payment days after its due date.
Fees

QB\138202.00002\16095895-5510095895.63
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Term Document / Section Provision

(h) Prepayment | Note No penalty for pre-payment, however
Penalty pre-payments will be applied to scheduled
payments in the inverse order of maturity
and will reduce the number of payments and
not the normal monthly payment amount.

(i) Waiver of Security Agreement §5.4; Note The Borrower waives presentment, notice of
Defenses dishonor and protest of all instruments
included in or evidencing any of the
indebtedness or collateral and any and all
other notices and demands whatsoever.

() Security Security Agreement §§1.2, 4.5, & | Security interest in (i) all Inventory; (ii) all
Required 5.1 General Intangibles, (iii) all Equipment; (iv)

all Fixtures; (y) all proceeds of business
interruption insurance;-and (vi ) all parts,
replacements, substitutions, profits,
products, accessions, cash and non-cash
Proceeds and; Life Insurance; (vii) all

ritten or electronically recor ks an

records relating to Collateral; and (viii) any

other real or personal property as to which
Lender h Lien re th

indebtedness.

(k) Liability Security Agreement §6.2; Note The Lender may declare the loan
Upon immediately due and payable and foreclose
Default its liens on any or all of the collateral and
terminate any Franchise Agreement between
the borrower and us.

(I) Method of Note Monthly via ACH.
Payment
(m) Governing Security Agreement §7.14; Note Florida.
Law
(n) Guarantee Guaranty The Lender requires the owners of the

Obligor to guarantee its obligations under
the Note and the Security Agreement.

Capital 94 does not, nor does it have plans to, sell, assign or discount to a third party any of the
financing, but reserves the right to do so. We do not receive any payments from Capital 94 or any other
person, for any placement of financing.

ITEM 11.
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING
Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance:
Pre-Opening Obligations: Before you open the Restaurant, we will:

1. Evaluate you while you work a minimum of 50 hours at a Restaurant that we designate
and provide you with Confidential Information. (Deposit Agreement — Sections 3 and 6)
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2. If you do not enter into a Franchise Agreement within 60 days of the date of the Deposit
Agreement, the Deposit Agreement is terminated and you must return all Disclosure Documents and
Confidential Information. (Deposit Agreement — Section 7)

3. Within 12 months of signing the Franchise Agreement, you must find a Site that we have
approved and sign a lease for the Site acceptable to us. The Site must meet our criteria for demographic
characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from and proximity to
other businesses and other Restaurants, the nature of other businesses in proximity to the Site and other
commercial characteristics, and the size, appearance and other physical characteristics of the proposed
Site. We will approve or disapprove a site you propose for the Restaurant within 30 days after we receive
the complete site report and other materials we request. (Franchise Agreement - Section 3.1) We may
terminate the Franchise Agreement if you fail to: (a) lease a Site within 12 months of signing the
Franchise Agreement; or (b) begin operating the Restaurant within 12 months of our approval of the Site
for your Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement — Section 4.5)

4. Furnish you with mandatory and suggested specifications and layouts for a FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant, including requirements for dimensions, design, color scheme, image, interior layout,
decor, and Operating Assets which include fixtures, equipment, signs and furnishings. (Franchise
Agreement - Section 4.1)

5. Retain the right to disapprove architects that you may choose (at your expense) to prepare
all required construction plans to our specifications. Retain the right to disapprove contractors to
construct your Restaurant (at your expense). You must give us notice of commencement of construction
of your Restaurant within 10 days of its beginning date and progress reports supporting the findings at
least every 2 weeks thereafter. Construction of the Restaurant must be completed within 365 days of our
Site approval. (Franchise Agreement -Section 4.1)

6. As discussed in Item 8, identify the fixtures, furnishings, equipment (including cash
registers, telecopiers and computer hardware, software and facsimile machine), food and beverage
products, materials and supplies necessary for the Restaurant to begin operations, the number and type of
telephone lines, the minimum standards and specifications that must be satisfied and the suppliers from
whom these items may be purchased or leased (including us and/or our affiliates). (Franchise Agreement
- Section 4.3)

7. Loan you one copy of our Manuals. (Franchise Agreement - Section 10.1)

8. Assist you in planning the market introduction advertising and promotional program for
the Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement - Section 4.6)

9. Train you and 1 other person (or if you are a Business Entity, up to 2 of your owners).
(Franchise Agreement - Section 6.1) This training is described in detail later in this Item.

Post-Opening Obligations: During your operation of the Restaurant, we will:

1. Advise you from time to time regarding the operation of the Restaurant based on reports
you submit or inspections we make. In addition, we will provide guidance to you on standards,
specifications and operating procedures and methods utilized by Restaurants; required fixtures,
furnishings, equipment, signs, products, materials and supplies; recipes, food preparation methods, and
menu items; use of suppliers, approved products, volume buying; advertising and marketing programs;
employee training; and administrative, bookkeeping and accounting procedures. This guidance will, at
our discretion, be furnished in our Manual, bulletins or other written materials and/or during telephone
consultations, e-mails, web-based or other electronic means and/or consultations at our office or the
Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement - Section 6.2)
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2. Furnish you, at your request, with additional guidance, assistance and training.
(Franchise Agreement - Section 6.2) (See Item 6 above.)

3. Loan you one copy of our Manuals, consisting of such materials (which may include
audiotapes, videotapes, magnetic media, computer software and written materials) that we generally
furnish to franchisees for use in operating Restaurants. The Manual contains mandatory and suggested
specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules (“System Standards”) that we prescribe from
time to time for operation of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant and information relating to your other
obligations under the Franchise Agreement and related agreements. The Manual may be modified,
updated and revised periodically to reflect changes in System Standards. (Franchise Agreement - Section
10.1)

4, Issue, modify and supplement System Standards for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants.
We may periodically modify System Standards, which may accommodate regional or local variations as
we determine, and these modifications may obligate you to invest additional capital in the Restaurant
and/or incur higher operating costs. However, these modifications will not alter your fundamental status
and rights under the Agreement. (Franchise Agreement -Section 10.3)

5. Inspect and observe, photograph and videotape the operations of the Restaurant, remove
samples of any products, materials or supplies for testing and analysis, interview the Restaurant’s
customers and personnel, and inspect and copy any books, records and documents relating to the
operation of the Restaurant from time to time to assist you in complying with the Franchise Agreement
and all System Standards. (Franchise Agreement - Section 13.1)

6. Establish, maintain and administer an advertising system fund (the “System Fund”).
You are obligated to contribute to the System Fund such amounts that we prescribe from time to time (see
Item 6, “System Fund” section). Restaurants owned and operated by us and our affiliates will contribute
to the System Fund on the same basis as franchise owners. (Franchise Agreement - Section 11.1)

We will delegate some of our obligations to our Area Representatives. See Exhibit “O” for more
information regarding them.

System Fund

We have established and administered the System Fund for the creation and development of
marketing, advertising and related programs and materials on a system-wide basis. You must contribute
up to 1% (currently 1%) of your Gross Sales to the System Fund. The System Fund may be used to pay
the costs of preparing and producing video, audio and written advertising materials; administering
regional and multi-regional advertising programs, including, without limitation, purchasing direct mail
and other media advertising and employing advertising, promotion and marketing agencies; marketing
and advertising training programs and materials; and supporting public relations, social media, market
research and other advertising, promotion and marketing activities that will be used on advertising. The
System Fund will periodically furnish you with samples of advertising, marketing and promotional
formats and materials at no cost. Multiple copies of such materials will be furnished to you at our direct
cost of producing them, plus any related shipping, handling and storage charges. We will direct all
programs financed by the System Fund, with sole discretion over the creative concepts, materials and
endorsements used and the geographic, market and media placement and allocation of the programs.
(Franchise Agreement Sections 11.1 and 11.2)

The System Fund is accounted for separately from our other funds and will not be used to defray
any of our general operating expenses, except for such reasonable salaries, administrative costs, travel
expenses and overhead, including rent and utilities, as we may incur in activities related to the
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administration of the System Fund and its programs, including, without limitation, conducting market
research, preparing advertising, promotion and marketing materials, and collecting and accounting for
contributions to the System Fund. All interest earned on monies contributed to the System Fund will be
used to pay advertising costs before other assets of the System Fund are expended. We may spend, on
behalf of the System Fund, in any fiscal year an amount greater or less than the aggregate contribution of
all Restaurants to the System Fund in that year, and the System Fund may borrow from us or others to
cover deficits or invest any surplus for future use. If we lend money to the System Fund, we may charge
interest at an annual rate 1% greater than the rates we pay our lenders. We will prepare an annual
statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the System Fund and furnish the statement to you
upon written request. The System Fund is not audited. We do not intend to use any monies from the
System Fund for the preparation of franchise sales solicitation materials. Through FSSF, we incorporated
the System Fund and operate it through a separate non-profit corporation. FSSF has all of the rights and
duties described in the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11.3). We may change
that arrangement at any time and operate the System Fund directly or through another entity.

The System Fund is intended to maximize recognition of the Marks and patronage of
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. Although we will endeavor to utilize the System Fund to develop
advertising and marketing materials and programs and to place advertising that will benefit all
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, we undertake no obligation to ensure that expenditures by the System
Fund in or affecting any geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to the contributions to the
System Fund by FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operating in that geographic area or that any
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants will benefit directly or in proportion to its contribution to the System
Fund from the development of advertising and marketing materials or the placement of advertising. We
assume no other direct or indirect liability or obligation to you with respect to maintaining, directing,
administering or collecting amounts due to the System Fund. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11.4)

Franchisee contributions to the System Fund will generally be on a uniform basis, but we reserve
the right to defer or reduce contributions of a franchisee and, upon 30 days’ prior written notice to you, to
reduce or suspend contributions to and operations of the System Fund for one or more periods of any
length and to terminate (and, if terminated, to reinstate) the System Fund. If the System Fund is
terminated, all unspent monies, less any outstanding accounts payable and other obligations on the date of
termination will be distributed to franchisees in proportion to their respective contributions to the System
Fund during the preceding 12-AeceountingPeriod-month accounting period. We and our affiliates will
contribute to the System Fund on the same basis as franchise owners for any FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants they own and operate. (Franchise Agreement - Section 11.1)

During the fiscal year ending December 25,2646;31, 2017, the System Fund spent contributions
to it as follows:

Item % Spent
Administrative and General 6-16.4%
Research and Development 3-73.0%
Printing 09:60%
Professional Services 85-082.4%
Public Relations 2:40.6%
Interest 0:20%
Other 2:67.6%
Total 100%

None of the System Fund is used to solicit franchisees.

We have not established an Advertising Council in relation to the System Fund, but see below
regarding the Co-op.
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Local Advertising

In addition to your required contributions to the System Fund and any required market
introduction advertising expenditures, you are obligated to spend for advertising and promotion of the
Restaurant not less than 2% of your Gross Sales measured over continuing 6 Financial Statement Periods.
We may review your books and records relating to your expenditures for such advertising and promotion.
If we determine that you have not spent the requisite amounts, we may require you to pay the unexpended
amounts into the System Fund. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11.5)

All advertising, promotion and marketing must be completely clear and factual and not
misleading and conform to the highest standards of ethical marketing and the promotion policies which
we prescribe from time to time. Samples of all advertising, promotional and marketing materials that we
have not prepared or previously approved must be submitted for approval before you use them. If you do
not receive written approval within 15 days after we receive the materials, we will be deemed to have
disapproved them. You may not use any advertising or promotional materials that we have disapproved.
(Franchise Agreement — Section 11.5) (See Items 6, 8 and 9)

Adyvertising Co-op

We have established an association of franchisees (the “Co-op”) in which you must join and
actively participate. We, along with the Area Representatives, are also Members of the Co-op. The
Co-op is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of 13 members, 9 of whom are elected by you, 3 by
the Area Representatives and 1 appointed by us. We have the sole right to authorize dissolution of the
Co-op and to vote as a member or a director to resolve a tie as to any deadlock among members or
directors. We, along with a majority of the Directors, may alter, amend or repeal the Amended and
Restated Bylaws. A copy of the current form of Articles of Incorporation and Amended and Restated
Bylaws are attached as Exhibits “K” and “L,” respectively. You must contribute not less than 2% of
Gross Sales. The Co-op may require a higher contribution rate. For 2018, the contribution rate is 4% of
Gross Sales. Failure to timely contribute the amounts required by the Co-op constitutes a material
breakbreach of your Franchise Agreement. We must approve all advertising utilized by the Co-op and it
must use our MIS System and pay us our MIS System Fee. (Franchise Agreement — Section 11.6)

Hardware and Software Requirements

You must obtain a Back Office PC that meets our specifications and standards, which may
change from time to time, two telephone lines, wired high-speed internet connection with a minimum
speed of 1.5Mbs, and an approved POS system. The Back Office PC must contain, and you must be
reasonably proficient with, such computer software programs that we designate for use from time to time,
including: database, spreadsheet, financial, word processing, communications, e-mail and calendaring
programs. You must: (a) supply us with any and all codes, passwords, and information necessary to
access your computer network and not change them without first notifying us; and (b) not load or utilize
any software that we have not specified or approved for us. We and approved third parties for support
will have access to your computer network at all times. (Franchise Agreement — Section 10.6)

softwarew Wlndows 7 or Wmdows 10 w1th Mlcrosoft Ofﬁce 2007
2010, or 2013 installed (to include Excel, Word, and PowerPoint) manufactured by Microsoft Corp., 1
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Microsoft Way, Redmond, Washington 98052 (425) 882-8080. You must have Adobe Reader version 11
installed. You must have an anti-virus program licensed for business use with an active definition
subscription installed on all Windows-based computer systems and must be configured to automatically
update. You are respons1ble for obtamlng the necessary tra1n1ng for proﬁc1ency in these programs. Yeu-
Ay 3 2 e : e—We do not require you to
purchase an ongoing service contract for these programs or Back Office PC. We may provide you
guidance and assistance with respect to the operation of this system in accordance with our System
Standards.

A POS System that we designate, which may change from time to time, must be installed. The
POS System must have a minimum of 2 POS units. The POS System must be connected to the internet
via a wired high-speed internet connection.

In general, we estimate that the cost to obtain these systems is as follows:

System Base Price
2 POS System with Back Office PC $1159111,706
2 POS System witheut PC $10,435
3 POS System with Back Office PC $15:17314.925
3 POS Systen without PC $14,278

Prices may change mid-year.

You will be required to upgrade the hardware and software from time to time. The estimated cost
of such upgrades is between $500 and $766010,000 per year.

Neither we, our affiliates, nor any third parties are required to provide ongoing maintenance,
repairs, upgrades or updates to your Back Office PC. Currently, there are no optional or required
maintenance/upgrade contracts for the Back Office PC. We estimate that it will cost you up-te-$2458297

plus any appropriate tax for a normal 2 POS system per month for a subscription and help desk support
from the POS Vendor for the POS System m%men&ﬂyufe%prewdes Th1§ ggst includes online ordering

k support for the cash

w If there is a mechamcal malfunctlon W1th the POS System

the vendor works with you me
. c replacement device that y

Generally, you will incur a monthly cost to obtain access to internet services from an internet
service provider (“ISP”) and a digital subscriber line (“DSL”). We estimate that your monthly fee for an
ISP, including a DSL, would range from $50 to $125 depending on the services provided by the ISP.

You must use the reporting and accounting system that we require from time to time. You must
deliver financial and operating reports to us including via access to our internet accounting system. We
have access to such information through the computer system at all times. (Franchise Agreement —
Sections 12.1 and 12.2) We charge an accounting system fee. See Item 6.
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We are not obligated to provide or assist you in obtaining any of the above items or services.

PCI-DSS Compliance

Firehouse of America has partnered with Netsurion to assist the franchisee with compliance of the
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI-DSS). Netsurion provides a managed firewall which
must be installed at all times between the Internet Service Provider (ISP) equipment and the computer
equipment in the restaurant (POS system, back office computer, camera equipment, etc.), satisfying one
requirement of the PCI-DSS. The franchisee is solely responsible for meeting all requirements of the
PCI-DSS as outlined on the Payment Card Industry Security Standards Council website and the credit
card merchant agreement. The base service is currently provided at no cost to the franchisee. To remain
compliant, there may be additional hardware and software you need to purchase as well as other
procedures and yearly training that must be followed.

Websites

We will control or designate the manner of your use of all URLs, domain names, website
addresses, metatags, links, key words, e-mail addresses and any other means of electronic identification or
origin (“e-names”). We will also designate, approve, control or limit all aspects of your use of the
Internet, Intranet, World Wide Web, wireless technology, digital cable, use of e-names, e-mail, home
pages, bulletin boards, chatrooms, linking, framing, on-line purchasing cooperatives, marketplaces, barter
exchanges, and related technologies, methods, techniques, registrations, networking, and any electronic
communication, commerce, computations, or any means of interactive electronic documents contained in
a network of computers or similar devices linked by communications software or hardware (collectively,
“e-commerce”). You must follow all of our policies and procedures for the use and regulation of
e-commerce. We may require that you provide graphical, photographic, written or other forms of artistic
or literary content to us for use in e-commerce activities associated with the Marks or the System which
we may designate. We may restrict your use of e-commerce to a centralized website, portal or network or
other form of e-commerce that we designate or operate. We may require that you provide information to
us via e-commerce. You must be bound by any terms of use, privacy policy and copyright notice and
takedown policies and the like that we establish from time to time. We may require you to, at your
expense, coordinate your e-commerce activities with us, other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants,
suppliers and affiliates. We may require you to participate in any internet or intranet networks we
establish and obtain the services of and pay the then-current fees for ISP and ASP services and the like.
We own all rights, title and interest in and to any and all websites and any e-names we commission or
utilize, or require or permit you to utilize, in connection with the System which bear our Marks or any
derivative of our Marks. We own all rights, title and interest in and to any and all data or other
information collected via e-commerce related to the System or the Marks, including any customer data,
click-stream data, cookies, user data, hits and the like. Such data or other information also constitutes our
Confidential Information. (Franchise Agreement - Section 11.7)

Time To Opening

If you enter into a Deposit Agreement with us, you must sign a Franchise Agreement within 60
days. You must open your Restaurant within 12 months of our approval of the Site and the lease for it.

During 2646;2017, the time to open a Restaurant, measured from the date of the Franchise
Agreement, ranged from 23 to 4057 months. This interval may vary depending on the location and
condition of the Site, the construction schedule for the Restaurant, the extent to which an existing location
must be upgraded or remodeled, the delivery schedule for equipment and supplies, delays in securing
financing arrangements, delays in completing required training and compliance with local laws and
regulations. You may not open the Restaurant for business until: (1) we inspect and certify that the
Restaurant has been developed according to our then-current specifications and standards; (2)
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pre-opening training has been completed to our satisfaction; (3) you provide us with evidence that you
and your management personnel have completed training at authorized facilities; (4) the initial franchise
fee and all other amounts then due to us, your landlord, governmental authorities and our suppliers have
been paid; (5) you have obtained all required building, utility, sign, health, sanitation, business permits,
certificates and licenses required to operate the Restaurant; (6) we have been furnished with copies of all
required insurance policies, or such other evidence of insurance coverage and payment of premiums that
we request; and (7) we have received signed counterparts of all required documents pertaining to your
acquisition of the Site (including any required agreements between you and us). You must open the
Restaurant for business within 12 months following our approval of the Site, and within 10 days after we
notify you that the Restaurant is ready to open. (Franchise Agreement - Section 4.5)

Training

You and 1 other person (2 of your owners if you are a business entity) must also complete the
initial training program that we provide to franchisees (the “Training Program”) to our satisfaction. The
Training Program lasts for approximately 8 weeks. The initial 6-7 weeks of training will be conducted at
one of our Training Restaurants or any other restaurant which we may designate from time to time. The
final week of classroom training is presently conducted at our headquarters in Jacksonville, Florida. The
initial training is provided on an as-needed basis, depending on where each franchisee is in the process of
opening the first Restaurant. Training is timed as close as possible to the opening of your first Restaurant.
If an Area Representative is located in your Trade Area, training may be provided by such Area
Representative at a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant that we have certified as a training facility. See
Exhibit “O” for more information regarding our Area Representatives. You are responsible for your
compensation, travel, lodging and living expenses incurred in connection with your attendance at any
training program Neither you nor any other trainee of yours are an employee of ours, and therefore, you
and any trainee of yours are not covered by our workman’s compensation insurance. We require all
trainees to sign our standard Liability Waiver and Release attached as an exhibit to our Franchise
Agreement. Currently our Training Program consists of the following:

TRAINING PROGRAM

Hours Of Hours Of

Classroom | On The Job
Subject Training Training Location

Skills Training Modules 0 144 Our office in Jacksonville,

Florida and/or Area

Representatives’ Training

Restaurants

Administration Training 0 96 Our office in Jacksonville,

Florida and/or Area

Representatives’ Training

Restaurants
Management Operations and 0 96 Our office in Jacksonville,
Leadership Training Florida and/or Area
Representatives’ Training
Restaurants
Franchisee CertifieationClassroom 24 0 Our office in Jacksonville,
Sessions Florida
Franchise Departmental Workshops 11 0 Our office in Jacksonville,
Florida
TOTAL 35 336
- 34-
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The materials used in training include the Manuals, online training tools, as well as other
presentation materials, including PowerPoint presentations, DVDs and handouts. It is the nature of the
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant business that all aspects of training are integrated, that is, there are no
definitive starting and stopping times. All training will be conducted by our Training Department, our
Area Representatives and/or other affiliates (see Exhibit “O” for information regarding our Area
Representatives and Item 2 for information regarding our trainers not listed below). Each instructor will
have at least 2 years experrence in the subJect matter bemg taught Jesh—Gu}bfethﬁSemer—Maﬂager—ef—

Tim Foster, Manager of Training: Mr. Foster was promoted to Manager of Training in August
2015. After graduating with a degree in Business Management from Florida State University, Tim started
out in our company-owned restaurants in 2011 and worked his way up.

Liz Anderson, Senior Public Relations Manager: Ms. Anderson was promoted to Senior
Public Relations Manager for us in December of 2015. Previously, she was our Public Relations
Manager from November 2013 to December 2015. Prior to joining us, she was the Public Relations and
Media Specialist for the national non-profit American Indian Alaska Native Tourism Association in
Albuquerque, New Mexico from March 2013 to November 2013. Ms. Anderson manages our public
relations and is in charge of our public relations agency of record, FheZimmerman-Ageney-where she
oversees strategy, storylines and publicity goals with the goal of best in class local and national publicity
for the Firehouse system.

Gina Brown, Manager of Finance and Compliance: Mrs. Brown started working with us in
2011 as a Financial Services Accountant. She began working with the Firehouse Subs Public Safety

Foundation in April 2015. Mrs. Brown was promoted to Manager of Finance and Compliance for the

Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation in August 2016. She was promoted to Senior Manager of
Finance and Compliance in January 2018. She came to us from Habitat for Humanity of Jacksonville,

Inc., Jacksonville, Florida, where she worked as a staff accountant. Mrs. Brown brings with her +415
years of accounting, 89 years of nonprofit experience, and a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Finance.

Mi meron, Manager of nstruction Services: M meron join r Con ion

Nicolas Desbaillets, Accounts Receivable Manager: Nicolas Desbaillets began his career with
us as an Accounts Receivable Administrator in April of 2015. In December of 2015, Nicolas was
promoted to Accounts Receivable Manager. From March 2012 until April 2015, Mr. Desbaillets worked
as a Staff Accountant for A-1 Accounting & Business Services, LLC, in St. Petersburg, Florida. Nicolas
graduated from the University of South Florida in 2008, with a B. S. degree in Accounting and received
his A.A. in Business Economics from St. Petersburg College. Mr. Desbaillets is responsible for all
Royalty, Marketing and Foundation receivables, and provides training and support for any receivables
from our franchisees and area representatives.

Angela Daidone: Senior Manager of Corporate Communications: Angela Daidone joined

our Corporate Communications team in 2014 as a Writer / Editor, and she was promoted to Manager of

Corporate Cornmunrcatrons in August 2015. In 2017, there was a reorganization of the Corporate

of ggmgr Mgnggg of g;ggg ate g;gmmgmggtrgng in gggtggg gg Z! Ms Daldone Works—darly to ensure
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clear, concise and timely messages are delivered to the field to keep operators informed. She received a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Communications with a specialization in Public Relations from Flagler
College in 2012.

Jeriame Erickson, CPA, Senior Manager of Tax & Compliance: Mr. Erickson joined FRG as
a Senior Accountant in August of 2014. He was promoted to Senior Manager of Tax and Compliance in
January 2017. Prior to joining FRG, he was a Senior Associate Accountant at Dixon Hughes Goodman, a
large public accounting firm, in Jacksonville, Florida from January of 2008 until August of 2014. Prior to
beginning a career in accounting, Mr. Erickson served in the United States Navy as an Electronics
Technician from August 1997 to April of 2005. He is a graduate of the University of North Florida with
a B.A. degree in Accounting and Business Management. Mr. Erickson is a licensed CPA in the state of
Florida and is responsible for both domestic and foreign compliance reporting, as well as assisting with
various accounting functions in the Financial Services Department.

Jacquelyn Gubbins, Senior Manager Foundation—Proegramsof Marketing and
Communications: Ms. Gubbins was promoted to Senior Manager of Marketing and Communications in_
January 2018. Prior to that, she was Senior Manager Foundation Programs of the Firehouse Subs Public
Safety Foundation inbeginning December 2015. She was Foundation Programs Manager of Firehouse
Subs Public Safety Foundation from December 2013 to December 2015. She began with us in March of
2012 in the role of Foundation Coordinator. Ms. Gubbins came to Firechouse Subs from the North Florida
Chapter of Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation (JDRF). She received a Bachelor’s Degree in

Communications with an emphasis in Public Relations from Flagler College in St. Augustine, Florida in
2011.

Matt Olsen, Senior Manager of Digital Marketing: Mr. Olsen began his career with us as
digital coordinator in November, 2010. He helps lead digital marketing strategy, digital user experience,
and new marketing technology. He graduated from University of North Florida in 2008 with a Bachelor
Degree in Communication - Journalism.
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Bryan Robst, Senior Manager of Infrastructure: Mr. Robst was promoted to Senior Manager
of Infrastructure in August 2016. Prior to then, he was our Manager of Infrastructure from September
2015 to August 2016. He was previously IT Support Manager from January 2015 to September 2015.
He joined us in 2011 as IT Support Specialist. Prior to that, he was Provider Relations Project Specialist
for Align Networks in Jacksonville, Florida from June 2006 to August 2011.

S&mc&&_MLJlLadnlk was promoted to S{—M&ngel;ef—Develepment—fei;th%Emehe&s%Sﬂbs—Pubhe
Safety Foundation—inJune 204H4—Prierto-thenSenior Manager of Real Estate Services in April 2016.
B]:LQr_tQ_thal shehe was &S—Developmeﬂtmu Manager_QLReaLEﬁlaE_S_erm_c_cs frorn Deeember—%&—l—t&

Support Spemahst Prior to that he was Satelhte and Network Techmclan for Remote Satellite Systems
International in Santa Rosa, California, from August 2014 to August 2015.

We may require you to attend periodic refresher training courses at such times and places as we
designate. We may charge fees for such courses.
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Operations Manual

The table of contents of our Manual is specified in Exhibit “H.” Instead of providing a paper
version, we may provide access to the Manual solely through electronic means.

ITEM 12.
TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory—for—our—UnitFranchise Program-er-our-Area
DevelopmentProgram. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we

own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

Unit Franchise Program

The franchise is granted for a specific location that first must be approved by us (the “Site”). The
trade area (“Trade Area”) of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants generally consists of the Site and the
geographic area within a +2-mile radius around the Site, although we may vary its size under special
circumstances. We will not approve a Site within the Trade Area of any other FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants. As long as you are in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, we will not grant a
franchise for, nor-de ourselves operate, FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within your Trade Area. Other
than your right to operate the Restaurant in its Trade Area, we do not grant you any territorial rights
whatsoever (other than through the Area Development Program — see below). We may establish other
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants (franchised or owned by us) anywhere that may compete with your
location. We retain the right (in our sole discretion) to sell products and provide services authorized for
sale by FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants under the Marks or other trade names, trademarks, service
marks and commercial symbols through similar or dissimilar channels (like telephone, mail order, kiosk,
co-branded sites and sites located within other retail businesses, stadiums, Intranet, Internet, web sites,
wireless, email or other forms of e-commerce) for distribution within and outside of your Trade Area.

Area Development Program

The Area Development Program is granted for a specific geographical area (the “Development
Area”) as identified in the Development Agreement. The Development Area generally consists of an
area with boundaries on the north, south, east and west with the number of trade areas identified that the
new franchisee is purchasing. Consideration to protected distances of stores (1 mile in the franchise
agreement) is determined when mapping out the area. As long as you are in compliance with the
franchise—agreementFranchise Agreement, we will not grant a franchise for a FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant to be located in the Development Area. If you comply with the Development Agreement and
all franchise agreements with us, then during the term of the Development Agreement, we will not
operate (directly or through an affiliate) nor grant a FIREHOUSE SUBS® franchise for the operation of
any Restaurant to be located within your Development Area, except for franchises granted to you. We
retain the right (in our sole discretion) to sell products and provide services authorized for sale by
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants under the Marks or other trade names, trademarks, service marks and
commercial symbols through similar or dissimilar channels (like telephone, mail order, kiosk, co-branded
sites and sites located within other retail businesses, stadiums, Intranet, Internet, web sites, wireless, email
or other forms of e-commerce) for distribution within and outside of your Development Area. If you do
not meet the Development Schedule, we may terminate the Development Agreement.

At the end of the 3rd Development Year, and every 36 months thereafter, we may reassess the
prospects for the development of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants in the Development Area. At that
time, we may adjust the number of Restaurants to be developed within the Development Area to account
for growth in population and other relevant demographics. If we do so, you and we will agree on a new
Development Schedule by increasing the number of Restaurants that you are to develop, and extending
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the Development Period based on the average time for developing new Restaurants in the current
Development Schedule or by mutual agreement. If you do not agree to this new schedule, then we may
develop additional FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within the Development Area either ourselves or
through other franchisees, but you will maintain the right and obligation to own, open and operate the
Restaurants subject to the Development Schedule.

Other than our area development program (see Items 1 and 5), we do not generally grant options,
rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional franchises, as each franchise is awarded on a
franchise-by-franchise basis. Accordingly, you may only acquire additional franchised FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants from us if you meet our qualifications at the time you apply. And we may limit the
number of Restaurants owned by any franchisee or its affiliates. You may only relocate your Restaurant
with our approval, both for the relocation and for the new site. We apply the same considerations for
evaluating relocations of a Restaurant and the leasing of an additional site as we do for Restaurants and
sites generally.

Rights We Retain:

Nevertheless, we retain the right, on behalf of ourselves or through affiliates, in our discretion,
and without granting any rights to you, to:

(a) solicit prospective franchisees and grant franchises or other rights to operate
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants through national or regional advertising, trade shows or
conventions or through e-commerce or similar means;

(b) own and operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants ourselves or through
affiliates except in your Trade Area;

(©) sell, solicit, recruit and provide services for Restaurants or any franchised
business not defined as a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant;

(d) sell and provide the services authorized for sale by, FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants under the Marks or other trade names, trademarks, service marks and commercial
symbols through similar or dissimilar channels (like telephone, mail order, kiosk, co-branded
sites and sites located within other retail businesses, Intranet, Internet, web sites, wireless, email
or other forms of e-commerce) for distribution within and outside of your Trade Area or
Development Area and pursuant to such terms and conditions as we consider appropriate; ane

[6i] fe)—solicit prospective franchisees for, and own and operate, businesses and
restaurants of any other kind or nature, anywhere.

You may use the Internet to advertise only in compliance with the Franchise Agreement.
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ITEM 13.
TRADEMARKS

We grant you the right to use certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols in
operating your FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant. The primary trademarks and service marks we use are
as follows:

EIR

EHOUS
SUBS .

E

® FIREHOUSE SUBS®

¢ 1994

SUBS P

EHOU
F".Q SUBS .SE

FOUNDED BY FIREMEN

®

Trademark and Service Registrations.

The status of the registrations of our primary Marks and certain others on the Principal Register
of the United States Patent and Trademark Office (the “PTO”) is as follows:

REGISTERED TRADEMARKS AND SERVICE MARKS

REG. NO. REG. DATE GOODS/SERVICES

1,903,135* | July 4, 1995 Restaurant services

Restaurant services, Providing of

%
1,983,934 July 2, 1996 food and drink
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REGISTERED TRADEMARKS AND SERVICE MARKS

MARK REG. NO. REG. DATE GOODS/SERVICES
Fl REHOU SE 3.316.544% | October 23. 2007 Magnetically encoded credit cards,
. SUBS T ’ gift cards
3,482,187* | August 5, 2008 Restaurant services
FOUNDED BY FIREMEN 3,482,188* | August 5, 2008 Restaurant franchising
3,323,158* | October 30, 2007 Cups; Drinking cups
3,246,353* | May 29, 2007 Restaurant franchising
FI REHOUS E 3,253,052* | June 19, 2007 Restaurant services
e SUBS o 3,833,616 | August 17,2010 Tced tea; Colas; Fruit flavored
drinks; Fruit-flavored beverages
with tea flavor; Non-alcoholic
beverages, namely, carbonated
beverages; Soft drinks
2,795,059* | December 16, 2003 Charitable Fund raising
2,866,824* | July 27,2004 Clothing, namely t-shirts, golf shirts
and polo shirts
3,012,834* | November 8, 2005 Restaurant franchising
3,012,835* | November 8, 2005 Restaurant services
3,027,226* | December 13, 2005 Cereal based snack foods; foods,
namely cookies and brownies
3,031,378* | December 20, 2005 Pastries and dessert items, namely
E&d‘ﬁﬂ cookies and brownies
3,063,737* | February 28, 2006 Stickers
3,070,838* | March 21, 2006 Hats; toy vehicles
3,070,844* | March 21, 2006 Bags, namely paper bags
3,082,197* | April 18, 2006 Paper for wrapping and packaging
of food
3,306,295* | October 9, 2007 Magnetically encoded credit cards,
gift cards
3,323,157* | October 30, 2007 Cups; Drinking cups
3,173,205* | November 21, 2006 Sauces
Accepting and administering
3,357,598* | December 18, 2007 monetary charitable contributions;
Charitable fund raising
CAPTAIN SORENSEN’S 3,161,773* | October 24, 2006 Sauces
ENGINEER 3,355,508* | December 18, 2007 Sandwiches
ENGINEER SUB 2,786,569* | November 25, 2003 Food products, namely sandwiches
FIREHOUSE 3,000,715* | September 27, 2005 Clothing, namely shirts
FIREHOUSE HERO 3,323,735*% | October 30, 2007 Sandwiches
FIREHOUSE “HERO” SUB 3,017,190* | November 22, 2005 Sandwiches
FIREHOUSE STEAK & 3,323,736* | October 30, 2007 Sandwiches
CHEESE
FIREHOUSE SUBS PUBLIC 3,618,997* | May 5, 2009 Accepting and. administer@ng -
SAFETY FOUNDATION mone'tary Chal‘ltabl'e.COIltI'Ibl.ltIOIlS,
Charitable fund raising services
- 4] -
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REGISTERED TRADEMARKS AND SERVICE MARKS

MARK REG. NO. REG. DATE GOODS/SERVICES
2,606,263* | August 13,2002 Restaurant services specializing in
submarine style sandwiches for
public consumption
2,795,060* | December 16, 2003 Charitable fund raising
3,014,796* | November 15, 2005 Restaurant franchising
3,027,225*% | December 13, 2005 Cereal based snack foods; foods,
namely cookies and brownies
3,031,377* | December 20, 2005 Pastries and dessert items, namely
cookies and brownies
3,063,736* | February 28, 2006 Stickers
3,065,955* | March 7, 2006 Bags, namely paper bags
3,070,837* | March 21, 2006 Hats; toy vehicles
3,082,196* | April 18, 2006 Paper for wrapping and packaging
of food
FIREHOUSE SUBS 3,261,752* | July 10, 2007 Gift .cards; Magnetically encoded
credit cards
3,323,156* | October 30, 2007 Cups, Drinking cups
3,382,694* | February 12, 2008 Financial services in the field of
money lending; Consumer lending
services
3,615,605*% | May 5, 2009 Golf shirts; Polo shirts; Shirts;
Short-sleeved or long-sleeved shirts;
T-shirts; Short-sleeved shirts; Sports
shirts; Sport shirts; sports shirts with
short sleeves; T-shirts; Tee-shirts
3,827,073* | August 3, 2010 Iced tea; Colas; Fruit flavored
drinks; Fruit-flavored beverages
with tea flavor; Non-alcoholic
beverages, namely, carbonated
beverages; Soft drinks
FOUNDED BY FIREMEN 3,413,742* | April 15, 2008 Restaurant services
FOUNDED BY FIREMEN 3,413,743* | April 15, 2008 Restaurant franchising
FOUNDED BY FIREMEN 5301445 | October3, 2017 Restaurant and catering services,
restaurant services featuring.
; >
W_ ;
wl : . |
off premises
{ assi 0 busi
s
w. :
w. .
wm. 0 1] blist
and/or operation of restaurants
FULLY INVOLVED 2,784,438* | November 18, 2003 Restaurant services
HOOK & LADDER 3,323,733* | October 30, 2007 Sandwiches
HOOK & LADDER SUB 2,797,711* | December 23, 2003 Food products, namely sandwiches
NEW YORK STEAMER 3,323,734* | October 30, 2007 Sandwiches
NEW YORK STEAMER SUB 2,802,416* | January 6, 2004 Food products, namely sandwiches
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REGISTERED TRADEMARKS AND SERVICE MARKS

FIREHOUSE ORTGINAL

3,791,438*

REG. NO.

REG. DATE
May 18, 2010

GOODS/SERVICES
Fruit-flavored beverages

FIREHOUSE MEATBALL

3,751,737*

February 23, 2010

Sandwiches

THE ROOKIE

3,847,091*

September 14, 2010

Restaurant services; prepared
lunches, dinners and meals; box
lunches, box dinners and box meals;
prepackaged lunches, dinners and
meals; catering services, restaurant
catering

IREHOUS
LSuBs"S

4,618,210

October 7, 2014

Fruit-flavored beverages

4,738,798

May 19, 2015

Magnetically encoded gift cards-

4229755

October 23, 2012

Restaurant services: restaurant

4,639,978

mber 18, 2014

HEROFUEL

happy and healthy living
Restaurant services; restaurant
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*These registrations were granted incontestable status by the PTO in accordance with 15 U.S.C. §§ 1065
and 1115(b).

tThese registrations are registered on the Supplemental Register of the PTO and not on the Principal
Register.

This list represents all of our primary Marks and certain others. It is not an exclusive list of
Marks you will be authorized to use.

There are no agreements currently in effect which significantly limit our rights to use or license
the use of our Marks in a manner material to the franchise. There are no currently effective material
determinations of the PTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any
state or any court, and, except as summarized below, there are no pending infringements, opposition or
cancellation proceedings, or material litigation involving the principal trademarks. All affidavits and
renewals required by the PTO where necessary have been filed.

FRG has granted us a worldwide, non-exclusive, license to use and to license our franchisees the
right to use the Marks in connection with the ownership and operation of the Restaurants pursuant to the
terms and conditions of a written Trademark, Technology and Know-How License Agreement dated
December 27, 2004. The term of such agreement is perpetual.

Use of the Marks.

You must follow our rules when you use the Marks. You cannot use any Mark as part of your
corporate or legal business name or with modifying words, designs or symbols (except for those we
license to you). You cannot use any Mark in connection with the performance or sale of any
unauthorized services or products or in any other manner we have not expressly authorized in writing.

Infringements.

You must notify us immediately of any apparent infringement or challenge to your use of any
Mark, or of any claim by any person of any rights in any Mark, and you may not communicate with any
person other than us, our attorneys and your attorneys in connection with any such infringement,
challenge or claim. We have sole discretion to take such action as we deem appropriate and the right to
control exclusively any litigation, PTO proceeding or any other administrative proceeding arising from
such infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating to any Mark. You must sign any instruments
and documents, provide such assistance and take any action that, in the opinion of our attorneys, may be
necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our interests in any litigation or PTO or other proceeding
or otherwise to protect and maintain our interests in the Marks.

Changes to the Mark.

If it becomes advisable at any time in our sole discretion for us and/or you to modify or
discontinue the use of any Mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute trade or service marks,
you must comply with our directions within a reasonable time after receiving notice. We will not be
obligated to reimburse you for any loss of revenue attributable to any modified or discontinued Mark or
for any expenditures you make to promote a modified or substitute trademark or service mark.

Indemnification.

We will indemnify you against and reimburse you for all damages for which you are held liable
to third parties in any proceeding arising out of your authorized use of any of the Marks resulting from
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claims by third parties that your use of any of the Marks infringes their trademark rights, and for all costs
you reasonably incur in the defense of any such claim in which you are named as a party, so long as you
have timely notified us of the claim and have otherwise complied with the terms of our agreements with
you. We will not indemnify you against the consequences of your use of the Marks except in accordance
with the requirements of our agreements with you. You must provide written notice to us of any such
claim within 10 days of your receipt of such notice and you must tender the defense of the claim to us.
We will have the right to defend any such claim and if we do so, we will have no obligation to indemnify
or reimburse you for any fees or disbursements of any attorney retained by you. If we elect to defend the
claim, we will have the right to manage the defense of the claim including the right to compromise, settle
or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether to appeal a final determination of the claim.

Other Uses and Proceedings.

We are aware of other restaurants and/or bars using the term Firehouse in their names, including
in Dayton, Ohio, Geneva-on-the-Lake, Ohio, Tampa, Florida, Johnson City, Tennessee, Parkville,
Maryland, Rapid City, South Dakota, Houston, Texas, Somersville, Connecticut and Stafford Springs,
Connecticut. We are not familiar with their operations, or when they started using the names. But, they
may have certain rights to continue business under their trade names. From time to time we learn of other
restaurants, bars and businesses that use the term Firehouse in their names. Some of these businesses may
have certain rights to continue business under their trade names using the term Firehouse. We address
these matters on a case-by-case basis and take action depending upon the circumstances. Additionally, a
restaurant and bar located in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina has the right to continue operating under the
name Calli Baker’s Firehouse Bar and Grill, a restaurant and bar located in Cincinnati, Ohio has the right
to continue operating under the name Firehouse Grill, and a winery that also provides an on-site
restaurant located in Geneva-on-the-Lake, Ohio has the right to continue to operate under the name
Firehouse Winery and offer those services within neighboring counties. Except for the foregoing, we do
not actually know of either superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of
our principal trademarks in any state.

On March 16, 1999, FRG filed a petition to cancel registration number 1,903,135 for the mark
“FIREHOUSE and Dalmatian logo.” The respondent raised no counterclaims or defenses challenging
FRG’s trademark or service mark rights or registrations. FRG settled with the respondent, in which the
respondent assigned all of its rights, title and interest in and to that registration and registration number
1,903,134, and its common law rights to FRG. In return, FRG granted respondent a limited license to use
the marks depicted in those two registrations in connection with its business. The proceeding was
dismissed with prejudice on August 20, 2001. Cancellation proceeding number 92028849, Firehouse
Restaurant Group, Inc. v. Firehouse Wing Co., Inc., United States Patent and Trademark Office,
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board.

On July 31, 2003, FRG filed petitions seeking cancellation of registration number 2,304,334 for
the mark “Fire House Foods” and registration number 2,425,824 for the mark “Fire House.” The
respondent did not raise any counterclaims or defenses challenging our trademark or service mark rights
or registrations. This proceeding was settled by the respondent transferring all of its rights and title in and
to these marks to FRG. FRG, in turn, granted respondent a limited license to use them. Consolidated
cancellation proceeding numbers 92042399 and 92042340, Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. v. Bradley
E. Son, and Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. v. Firehouse Foods, LLC, United States Patent and
Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board.

On April 7, 2004, FRG filed an opposition proceeding seeking to oppose pending service mark
application serial number 76484312 for the mark “Firehouse Saloon.” The respondent raised no
counterclaims or defenses challenging FRG’s trademark or service mark rights or registrations. FRG
settled with the respondent, in which the respondent assigned all of its rights, title and interest in and to
that registration and registration and its common law rights to FRG. In return, FRG granted respondent a
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limited license to use the mark depicted in the assigned application in connection with its business. The
proceeding was dismissed with prejudice on June 23, 2005. Opposition proceeding number 91160052,
Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. v. Firehouse Saloon Incorporated, United States Patent and Trademark
Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board.

On October 25, 2006, FRG filed an opposition proceeding seeking to oppose pending service
mark application serial number 78477034 for the mark “The Firehouse Brewing Company.” On February
23, 2007, FRG filed an opposition proceeding seeking to oppose pending service mark application serial
number 78477023 for the mark “The Firehouse American Pale Ale.” The respondent answered both
petitions denying the allegations and raising defenses. The parties entered into a settlement agreement
and the proceedings were dismissed. Pursuant to the resolution, the parties entered into a co-existence
and consent agreement under which The Firchouse Brewing Company may use its “The Firechouse
Brewing Company,” “The Firehouse American Pale Ale” and related marks in connection with the
custom manufacture of beer and may obtain trademark registrations therefor, but restricting all other uses
thereof. Opposition proceeding numbers 91173555 and 91175836, Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. v.
The Firehouse Brewing Company, United States Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board.

On September 19, 2007, FRG filed an opposition proceeding seeking to oppose pending service
mark application serial number 77008488 for the mark “Old Firechouse Winery (and logo)” filed by the
respondent, Old Firehouse Winery, Inc. The respondent answered the petition denying the allegations
and raising defenses. The parties entered into a settlement agreement and the proceeding was dismissed
with prejudice on May 11, 2012. Pursuant to the settlement agreement, Old Firehouse Winery, Inc. may
use its “Firehouse Winery” marks and logos in connection with winery related services, and may provide
restaurant services under those marks provided they are offered from winery locations within certain Ohio
counties. Old Firehouse Winery, Inc. agreed not to object to FRG’s use of its marks, and FRG agreed not
to serve or make available wine at locations within certain Ohio counties. Opposition proceeding number
91179580, Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. v. Old Firehouse Winery, Inc., United States Patent and
Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board.

On June 6, 2011, FRG and three of its franchisees filed a lawsuit for trademark and service mark
infringement against Firehouse Grill, LLC and two of its owners, Robert A. Davis and Molly Davis
seeking damages and injunctive relief. FRG’s complaint alleges that defendants’ operation of a restaurant
under the name “Firehouse Grill” constitutes, among other things, trademark and service mark
infringement of FRG’s registered trademark and service mark rights. The defendants filed answers and
counterclaims denying liability and seeking cancellation of several of FRG’s Marks. FRG moved to
dismiss the counterclaims and defendants amended their counterclaims. On or about August 22, 2011, the
parties executed a settlement agreement and on August 25, 2011, the parties filed a stipulation dismissing
the lawsuit with prejudice. The defendants continue to operate their Firchouse Grill restaurant in
Cincinnati, Ohio. Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. et al. v. Robert A. Davis, Molly Davis and Firehouse
Grill, LLC, case no. 1:11¢cv365, United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio, Western
Division.

On April 29, 2015, FRG filed an opposition proceeding with the PTO seeking to oppose pending
service mark application serial number 86089670 for the mark “Columbia Firehouse.” After the applicant
filed an answer denying liability, the parties entered into a settlement agreement and the applicant
expressly abandoned its application with prejudice. On August 15, 2016, the application was abandoned
with prejudice and the opposition was dismissed without prejudice. Pursuant to the settlement agreement,
the applicant may continue to operate a single location restaurant in Alexandria, Virginia under the name
“Columbia Firehouse” with certain restrictions and limitations. Opposition proceeding number
91221728, Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc. v 109 South Saint Asaph, LLC, United States Patent and
Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board.
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ITEM 14.
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents or pending patents that are material to the franchise.

We claim copyrights in the Manual and the menus, and advertising materials and related items
used in operating the franchise. These copyrights have not been registered with the United States
Registrar of Copyrights.

The Manual, which is described in Item 11, and other materials we possess contain our
confidential information. This information includes site selection criteria; recipes; methods, formats,
specifications, standards, systems, procedures and sales and marketing techniques used, and knowledge of
and experience, in developing and operating Restaurants; marketing and advertising programs for
Restaurants; knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of certain fixtures, furnishings, equipment,
products, materials and supplies; and knowledge of the operating results and financial performance of
Restaurants other than your Restaurant.

All ideas, concepts, techniques or materials relating to Restaurants (including any specific to your
Restaurant), whether or not constituting protectable intellectual property, and whether created by or on
behalf of you or your owners, must be promptly disclosed to us, will be considered our property and part
of our franchise system and will be considered to be works made-for-hire for us. You and your owners
must sign whatever documents we request to evidence our ownership or to assist us in securing
intellectual property rights in such ideas, concepts, techniques or materials.

Every FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant contains a mural on a wall with artwork we commission.
We own the artwork and all copyrights in it.

You may not use our confidential information in an unauthorized manner and must take
reasonable steps to prevent its disclosure to others. See Items 5 and 7.

There currently are no effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress) or
any court regarding any of the copyrighted materials. Nor are there any agreements currently in effect
which significantly limit our right to use or authorize franchisees to use the copyrighted materials.
Furthermore, there are no infringing uses actually known to us which could materially affect a
franchisee’s use of the copyrighted materials in any state. We are not required by any agreement to
protect or defend copyrights or confidential information, although we intend to do so when this action is
in the best interests of the FIREHOUSE SUBS® System.

ITEM 15.
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You must at all times faithfully, honestly and diligently perform your obligations under the
Franchise Agreement, continuously exert your best efforts to promote and enhance the Restaurant and not
engage in any other business or activity that conflicts with your obligations to operate the Restaurant in
compliance with the Franchise Agreement. You (or your owners) unless we agree otherwise, are
obligated to participate personally in the direct operation of the Restaurant. Unless we approve otherwise,
the operating partner must have and retain at least 50% ownership of the Restaurant.

If you are a corporation, limited liability company or limited partnership, your owners must not
only personally guarantee your obligations under the Franchise Agreement but also agree to be personally
bound by, and personally liable for the breach of, every provision of the Franchise Agreement, both
monetary obligations and obligations to take or refrain from taking specific actions or to engage or refrain
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from engaging in specific activities. The form of “Principal Owner’s Guaranty” is attached as Exhibit
“L.” We require you to complete a “Principal Owner’s Statement” in the form attached as Exhibit “J.”
The Principal Owner’s Statement describes all of your owners and their interests in you. A Principal
Owner is an owner of any ownership interest in a business entity. If your spouse or other family members
are also owners of your business entity, they must sign the Principal Owner’s Guaranty.

ITEM 16.
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer for sale all products, and perform all services, that we require from time to time
for Restaurants. You may not offer for sale any products or perform any services that we have not
authorized. (See Items 8 and 9) Our System Standards may regulate required or authorized products,
product categories and supplies. We do not impose restrictions or conditions that limit your access to
customers. We have the right to modify System Standards which may accommodate regional or local
variations, and any such modifications may obligate you to invest additional capital in the Restaurant
(“Capital Modifications”) and/or incur higher operating costs; provided, however, that such
modifications will not alter your fundamental status and rights under your Franchise Agreement. We will
give you 30 days to comply with Capital Modifications but if a Capital Modification requires an
expenditure of more than $2,500, we will give you 3 months to comply. We will not require you to spend
more than $150,000 on Capital Modifications during the term of your Franchise Agreement. Capital
Modifications are in addition to costs you incur to repair, replace or refurbish your equipment and
fixtures. Capital Modifications do not include expenditures you are required, or choose to make, solely to
comply with applicable laws, governmental rules or regulations.

ITEM 17.
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER
AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

SECTION
PROVISION AGREEMENT SUMMARY
(a) Length of the Section 2.1 of the | Approximately 10 years beginning on the date of the Franchise
franchise term Franchise Agreement and ending 10 years after the opening of the Restaurant.

Agreement; Deposit Agreement terminates within 60 days if no Franchise
Section 5 of Agreement is signed; the Membership Agreement expires if the
Deposit cooperative advertising entity ceases to exist or the Franchise
Agreement Agreement expires or terminates;
Section 2 of the The Development Agreement expires on the date specified in the
Development Development Agreement, the last day of the Development Schedule
Agreement or the opening of the last Restaurant specified in the Development

Schedule.

(b) Renewal or Section 15 of the | If you are in good standing, you can renew or extend the term of your

extension of the Franchise franchise on our then-current terms for 24 additional 5-year terms.
term Agreement
Section 2.2 of The Development Agreement may be extended at the end of the 31
Development Development Year and every 36 months thereafter.
Agreement
(c) Requirements for Section 15 of the | Maintain Site or secure substitute Site, bring Restaurant into
Franchisee to Franchise compliance with our then-current specifications and standards, sign
renew or extend Agreement new franchise agreement and ancillary agreements, general releases,

satisfactory completion of training and refresher programs, and pay
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SECTION

PROVISION AGREEMENT SUMMARY
fee.
Y our renewal right permits you to remain as a franchisee after the
initial term of your Franchise Agreement expires. However, to
remain a franchisee, you must meet all required conditions to
renewal, including signing our then-current form of franchise
agreement, which may be materially different than the form attached
to this Disclosure Document.
Sections 2.2 and Sign a new development schedule and pay an additional
4 of the Development Fee,
Development
Agreement
(d) Termination by Not Applicable Not Applicable
Franchisee
Not Applicable Not Applicable
(e) Termination by Not Applicable Not Applicable
Franchisor without | Not Applicable Not Applicable
cause
(f) Termination by Section 16 of the | We can terminate only if you commit one of several violations.
Franchisor with Franchise
cause Agreement
Section 7 of the We can terminate only if you commit one of several violations.
Development
Agreement
(g) “Cause” defined— | Section 16 of the | You have 24 hours to cure health, safety or sanitation law, ordinance
curable defaults Franchise or regulation violations, 30 days to cure: (i) monetary defaults,
Agreement including to suppliers and the Co-Op; (ii) noncompliance with any
provision of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement
(including any Development Agreement) with us or our affiliates, or
the System Standards; (iii) you or a trained manager not being present
at the Restaurant during all open hours; (iv) failure to keep the
Restaurant open during the required hours; (v) purchasing or leasing
any product or service from an unapproved supplier; (vi) failure to
participate in the Co-Op; (vii) failure to pay taxes, assessments and
suppliers; (viii) failure to obtain and maintain required permits; (ix) if
you are a Business Entity, failure to maintain active status in your
state of organization; (x) failure to make required reports; (xi) failure
to maintain sufficient liquid funds to pay amounts to us via electronic
transfer; (xii) continued violation of any law, ordinance, rule or
regulation of a governmental agency; and (xiii) failure to obtain any
approvals or consents required by Franchise Agreement.
Section 7 of the You have 30 days to cure: (a) failure of your Business Entity to
Development maintain active status in your state of organization; (b) violation of
Agreement your Development Agreement or any other agreement (including any
Franchise Agreement) with us or our affiliates; (c) continued
violation of any law, ordinance, rule or regulation of a governmental
agency; or (d) failure to obtain required approvals or consents.
(h) “Cause” defined— | Section 16 of the | Non-curable defaults include material misrepresentation or omission,

non-curable
defaults

Franchise
Agreement

failure to complete required training, failure to lease the Site we
approved within 12 months of the date of the Franchise Agreement;
failure to begin operating the Restaurant 12 months of our approval
of the Site: abandonment; unapproved transfers; conviction of or a
plea of no contest or guilty to, a felony or other serious crime;
dishonest or unethical conduct; understatement of Gross Sales by 5%
or more; our audits show that you understated Gross Sales by 2% or
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PROVISION

SECTION
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

more 2 or more times in any 18-month period; signing a lease for
your Restaurant before signing the Franchise Agreement or before we
have approved the site or the terms of the lease; unauthorized
assignment of the Franchise Agreement or of an ownership interest in
you or the Restaurant; failure to make the required assignment in the
event of death or disability; loss of the Site; unauthorized use or
disclosure of the Manual or confidential information; failure to pay
taxes; repeated defaults (even if cured); an assignment for the benefit
of creditors or written admission of insolvency or inability to pay
debts as they become due.

Section 7 of the
Development
Agreement

Non-curable defaults include material misrepresentations or
omissions; failure to meet the Development Schedule; unapproved
transfer of your Business; conviction or plea of no contest or guilty to
a felony or other serious crime or offense; your, or your owners,
dishonest or unethical conduct; unauthorized assignment of your
Development Agreement or any Franchise Agreement; failure to
make the required assignment in the event of death or disability;
unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential Information;
failure to comply with any agreements (including any Franchise
Agreement) with us; or an assignment for the benefit of creditors or
written admission of insolvency or inability to pay debts as they
become due.

(1) Franchisee’s Section 17 of the | Obligations include payment of outstanding amounts, complete
obligations on Franchise de-identification and return of Confidential Information (also see r
termination/nonren | Agreement below).
ewal Not Applicable Not Applicable

(j) Assignment of Section 14.1 of No restriction on our right to assign; the Deposit Agreement cannot
contract by the Franchise be assigned without prior written consent.

Franchisor Agreement;
Section 8 of
Deposit
Agreement;
Section 6 of the No restriction on our right to assign.
Development
Agreement

(k) “Transfer” by Section 14.2 of Voluntary or involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale, gift or
Franchisee — the Franchise other disposition of any interest in the Franchise Agreement, you or
defined Agreement the Restaurant.

Section 6.2 of the | Voluntary or involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale, gift or
Development other disposition of any interest in the Development Agreement or
Agreement you.

()  Franchisor’s Sections 14.2 and | We have the right to approve all transfers, even to a Business Entity
approval of 14.4 of the controlled by you.
transfer by Franchise
Franchisee Agreement;

Section 8 of

Deposit

Agreement;

Section 6 of the The Development Agreement is not transferable under any

Development circumstances whatsoever, except to a Business Entity or upon your

Agreement death or disability, or if you are a Business Entity, the death or
disability of a person owning a controlling interest in you.

(m) Conditions for Section 14.3 of New franchisee qualifies; you pay us all amounts due; new owners
Franchisor’s the Franchise and/or managerial employees agree to be trained; transferee agrees to
approval of Agreement be bound by terms and conditions of Franchise Agreement and to
transfer sign our then-current form of franchise agreement; transferee agrees
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- 50 -




SECTION

PROVISION AGREEMENT SUMMARY

to upgrade the Restaurant, if necessary; transfer fee (if any) paid; we
approve material terms; you subordinate amounts due to you; and you
sign other documents we require - including general releases (also see
r below).

Section 6 of the The Development Agreement is not transferable under any

Development circumstances whatsoever, except to a Business Entity or upon your

Agreement death or disability, or if you are a Business Entity, the death or
disability of a person owning a controlling interest in you.

(n) Franchisor’s right Section 14.8 of We can match any offer for your Business or an ownership interest in
of first refusal to the Franchise you provided that we may substitute cash for any form of payment at
acquire Agreement a discounted amount if an interest rate will be charged on any
Franchisee’s deferred payments; our credit will be deemed equal to that of any
business proposed purchaser; we will have no less than 30 days to prepare for

closing; and we receive all customary representations and warranties,
as we specify.
Not Applicable Not Applicable

(0) Franchisor’s Section 17.5 of We have the option to buy the Restaurant, including leasehold rights
option to purchase | the Franchise to the Site, at fair market value after termination (but not expiration)
Franchisee’s Agreement of the agreement. If we cannot agree on a fair market value, an
business independent appraisal will be conducted. The purchase price will be

paid in 2 installments, the first of which will be equal to the Franchise
Fee you paid and will be payable within 30 days of our notifying you
of our election to purchase your Business. The 2™ installment will
equal the total purchase price less the first installment and will be
paid no later than 90 days after the later of the closing or the
determination of the purchase price.

Not Applicable Not Applicable

(p) Death or disability | Sections 14.5 and | Franchise or an ownership interest in you must be assigned to an

of Franchisee 14.6 of the approved buyer within 3 months and must be run by a trained
Franchise manager during the period prior to the assignment. Assignment is
Agreement subject to our right of first refusal.
Section 6.4 of the | We may require you to transfer your interest in the Development
Development Agreement to a third party within the time we designate, not less than
Agreement 1 month, but not more than 6 months from the date of death or
disability.

(q) Non-competition Section 9 of the No interest in a competitive business within 2 miles of the Site or 10
covenants during Franchise miles of any other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant; no direct or
the term of the Agreement indirect controlling ownership interest in, or performance of services
franchise for, a competitive business anywhere; no direct or indirect ownership

interest in a competitive business within 2 miles of the FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant you operated; no recruiting or hiring of any
person who is our employee or an employee of any FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants. We do not currently require your managers and
employees to sign a Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement,
but we reserve the right to do so.

Not Applicable Not Applicable

(r) Non-competition Section 17.4 of No direct or indirect interest in competing business for 2 years at, or
covenants after the | the Franchise within 10 miles of, the Site or within 10 miles of any other
franchise is Agreement FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants in operation or under construction
terminated or (same restrictions apply after assignment).
expires Not Applicable Not Applicable

(s) Modification of Section 19.13 of | No modifications except by written agreement, but Manual and

the agreement

the Franchise
Agreement

System Standards are subject to change.

Section 9.13 of
the Development

No modifications except by written agreement.
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PROVISION

SECTION
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

Agreement

(t) Integration/merger
clause

Section 19.13 of
the Franchise
Agreement

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and the Manual, System
Standards and the attached schedules are binding (subject to state
law). Any promises outside this Franchise Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement may not be enforceable.

Section 9.13 of
the Development
Agreement

Only the terms of the Development Agreement and the Manual,
System Standards and the attached schedules are binding (subject to
state law). Any promises outside this Franchise Disclosure
Document and Development Agreement may not be enforceable.

(u) Dispute resolution
by arbitration or
mediation

Section 20 of the
Franchise
Agreement

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be mediated at a mutually
agreeable location, or at our headquarters. If the dispute is not
resolved within 60 days, the dispute must be arbitrated at the office of
the American Arbitration Association closest to our headquarters in
Jacksonville, Florida.

Section 10 of the
Development
Agreement

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be mediated at a mutually
agreeable location, or at our headquarters. If the dispute is not
resolved within 60 days, the dispute must be arbitrated at the office of
the American Arbitration Association closest to our headquarters in
Jacksonville, Florida.

(v) Choice of forum

Section 19.8 of
the Franchise
Agreement;
Section 6 of
Deposit
Agreement;

Litigation in Duval County, Florida (subject to state law).

Section 9.8 of the
Development
Agreement

Litigation in Duval County, Florida (subject to state law).

(w) Choice of law

Section 19.7 of
the Franchise
Agreement;
Section 6 of
Deposit
Agreement;

The law of Florida (subject to state law).

Section 9.7 of the
Development
Agreement

The law of Florida (subject to state law).

See any state-specific riders or addenda attached to this FDD.

ITEM 18.

PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’S Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable

basis for the information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document.

Financial

performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor
provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor
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supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about
possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

Firehouse Subs®
Historical Average Unit Volume
Company-Owned and Franchised Locations
A4 ode
2015-2017

The following charts show historical sales information regarding both franchised and affiliated
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants that were open during our fiscal years 264+6,—20452017, 2016 and
20442015, This historical sales information was compiled using the reports provided to us by these
Restaurants. The reports are provided to us on a cash accounting basis and are used to form the basis of
royalty payments to us.

The figures show the average and median unit sales volume for the number of Restaurants in the
various sales volume ranges, and separated by company-owned Restaurants (those owned by our
affiliates) and those owned by other franchisees. The charts show the number of Restaurants in that sales
Volume category and the percentage that those Restaurants represent—ﬁem—th%totvai—ef—ﬁat%sed—&né

separately for company- owned and franchlsed for years %M and %9}@29_11. In addltlon the
average and median unit sales volume for the Restaurants within that sales level are also shown. Thus,
for our fiscal year 20463742017, 382 of the franchised FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants achieved
gross sales within the range of $11,000 to $14,000 per week. This represented 38-538% of the total
number of franchised FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants in operation during that year. Of these 374382
Restaurants, their average unit sales volume was $42;46912,383 and their median sales volume was
$42,422.12,.331. We do not directly operate any Restaurants; all company-owned Restaurants are
operated by our affiliates, which are all owned and controlled by our parent — FRG. The characteristics of
those Restaurants are not materially different from the franchises we offer for sale, except that: they may
incur greater marketing and promotional expenses (as a sponsor of Jacksonville Jaguars and other
programs); and incur additional expenses to offer health insurance to all full-time employees.

2017 Weeklv AUV / Companv-Owned Traditional Development
$14,000 - $11.000 - $8.000 -

S17,000+ $17,000 $14,000 $11,000 50- $8.000
# of Restaurants 12 0
Total # of Restaurants 32
P _ Q QOj
Restaurants

i $18.440 $15.053 $12,935 $10.179 $0
Sales Volume*
Median $18.383 $15.055 $12,923 $10.146 $0
High $20,222 $16.224 $13.943 $10.628 $0
Low $17.349 $14.066 $11.463 $9.648 $0
EYE December 31, 2017
2017 Weeklv AUV / Franchisees Traditional Development

$17,000+ $17,000 $14,000 $11,000 $0 - $8,000

# of Restaurants 107 191 382 282 43
- 53.-
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2017 Weeklv AUV / Franchisees Traditional Development
$14,000 - $11.000 - $8.000 -
SL7000+ $17,000 $14,000 $11,000 30 38,000
Total # of R. ran 1005 1005 1005 1005 1005
% of Franchise 10.6% 19.0% 38.0% 28.1% 4.3%
Restaurants
Aver nit k1 $19.764 $15.196 $12.383 $9.750 $7.218
Sales Volume*
Median $19.061 $15.142 $12.331 $9.738 $7.219
High $28.938 $16.989 $13.999 $10.988 $7.950
Low $17.012 $14.040 $11.006 $8.009 $5.678
EYE December 31, 2017
Thru Development
= $11.000 - $8.000 -
$17,000+ $17,000 $14,000 $11,000 30 - 8,000
# of Restaurants 6 3 2 4 0
Total # of Restauran 17 17 17 17 17
% of Franchise 35.3% 29.4% 11.8% 23.5% 0.0%
Restaurants
1 $21.506 $15,968 $12.477 $9.833 $0
Sales Volume*
Median $20.261 $16.119 $12.367 $9.839 $0
High $25.308 $16.652 $13.380 $10.940 $0
Low $19.389 $14.585 $11.574 $8.770 $0
FYE December 31, 201
2017 Weeklv AUV / Franchisees End-Cap Strip Center w/Drive Thru Development
= = $8.000 -
$17,000+ $17,000 $14,000 $11,000 30 - 8,000
# of Restaurants 9 1 = 1 0
Total # of Restauran 26 20 20 26 26
% of Franchise 34.6% 26.9% 11.5% 26.9% 0.0%
Restaurants
1 $22.233 $15.446 $12218 $9.851 $0
Sales Volume*
Median $20.446 $15.264 $12.169 $10,002 $0
High $44 537 $16.934 $13.001 $10.839 $0
Low $17.858 $14.185 $11.295 $8.056 $0
FYE December 31, 2017
2016 Weeklv AUV / Companyv-Owned Traditional Development
$14,000 - $11,000 - $8,000 -
U $17,000 $14,000 11,000 | $0-98,000
# of Restaurants 11 11 8 2 0
Total # of Restaurants 32 32 32 32 32
% of Company-Owned 34.4% 34.4% 25.0% 6.3% 0.0%
Restaurants
Average Unit Weekly $18,406 $15,294 $12,612 $10,198 $0
Sales Volume*
Median $18,375 $15,128 $12.814 $10,023 $0
High $21,200 $16,852 $13,705 $10,731 $0
- 54 -
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Low

$17,014

$14,045

$11,486

$9,664

$0

FYE December 25, 2016

# of Restaurants 115 231 374 215 36
Total # of Restaurants 971 971 971 971 971
% of Franchise 11.8% 23.8% 38.5% 22.1% 3.7%
Restaurants

Average Unit Weekly $19,760 $15,270 $12,469 $9,799 $7,362
Sales Volume*

Median $19.113 $15.181 $12.422 $9.767 $7.388
High $36.867 $16.997 $13.974 $10.990 $7.993
Low $17.049 $14.018 $11.001 $8.032 $5.480

FYE December 25, 2016

# of Restaurants 6 4 3 2 0

Total # of Restaurants 15 15 15 15 15

% of Franchise 40.0% 26.7% 20.0% 13.3% 0.0%

Restaurants

Average Unit Weekly $20,916 $15,612 $12,647 $9,493 $0

Sales Volume*

Median $20.,513 $15.713 $12.687 $9.724 $0

High $29.829 $16.515 $12.766 $10.442 $0

Low $19.566 $14,186 $12,488 $8.543 $0
FYE December 25, 2016

# of Restaurants 4 8 3 2 0
Total # of Restaurants 17 17 17 17 17
% of Franchise 23.5% 47.1% 17.6% 11.8% 0.0%
Restaurants
Average Unit Weekly $21,174 $15,480 $12,422 $10,349 $0
Sales Volume*
Median $20.432 $15.186 $12.206 $10.,349 $0
High $25.611 $16.768 $13.824 $10,747 $0
Low $18.943 $14.272 $11,521 $9.950 $0

FYE December 25, 2016
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# of Restaurants 12 11 8 1 0
Total # of Restaurants 32 32 32 32 32
% of Company-Owned 37.5% 34.4% 25% 3.1% 0%
Restaurants

Average Unit Weekly $18,614 $15,288 $12,782 $10,306 $0
Sales Volume*

Median $18,398 $15,202 $13,105 $10,187 $0
High $22,481 $16,597 $13,823 $10,306 $0
Low $17,065 $14,338 $11,020 $10,306 $0

FYE December 27, 2015

# Of Restaurants 158 242 327 166 18
Total # of Restaurants 911 911 911 911 911
% of Franchise 17.3% 26.6% 35.9% 18.2% 2.0%
Restaurants

Average Unit Weekly $20,176 $15,357 $12.,604 $9,860 $7,459
Sales Volume*

Median $19.399 $15.323 $12.584 $9.870 $7.515
High $38.133 $16.999 $13.997 $10.993 $7.940
Low $17.011 $14.009 $11.013 $8.012 $6.114

FYE December 27, 2015

QB\138202.00002\+0695895-5510095895.63

# Of Restaurants 170 253 335 167 18
Total # of Restaurants 943 943 943 943 943
% of System 18.0% 26.8% 35.5% 17.7% 1.9%
Average Unit Weekly
Sales Volume* $20,048 $15,354 $12,608 $9.863 $7,459
Median $19,272 $15,317 $12,592 $9.873 $7,515
High $38,133 $16,999 $13,997 $10,993 $7,940
Low $17,011 $14,009 $11,013 $8.012 $6,114

2014 Weekly AUV A/ Company-Owned

$17.000 $14,000— $11,000— $8,000— $0-$8.000

’ $17:000 G800 $11-000 g
#-ofRestaurants 12 10 10 0 0
Total#-of Restaurants 32 32 32 32 32
Yo-of- Company-Owncd-
Average-Unit- Weekly-
Median $18.159 SE330 $12.794 $0 sS4
Low S H7 $14:09+ $H324 $6 $0
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S000— SHL000— S9-000—
#of Restaurants 131 190 291 186 19
Total #of Restaurants 817 817 817 817 817
%of Eranchise-
Restaurants 16-0% 23304 35.6% 2289 23%
Sales Volume $20,148 $15303 LA San $9;870 $7:266
Median $19.328 $15.268 e — $9.905 $7.345
Low SEn0t $14.003 000 $8.031 $5.246
——FEYE December 28,2014

2014 Weeklvy AUV /Al Restaurants

$14:000— $115000— 58:000—
#of Restaurants 143 200 301 186 19
Total # of Restaurants 849 849 849 849 849
% of System 16.8% 23 6% 355% 21.9% 22%
oo Ll Mol
Sales Volme® $49:960 $15:308 $12:546 $9:870 $7:266
Low $17.007 $14:003 $H-690 $8:034+ $5:246

EYE December 28,2014

*Average Unit Weekly Sales Volume is weighted based on the number of operating weeks for each

restaurant.

Sales information provided is unaudited.

This sales summary above does not reflect any expenses of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants.
Some of the expenses that are not reflected in this summary, but that you will incur and should take into
consideration, are the following:

()
2)
)
“4)
©)
(6)
)
®)
)

Franchise Payments, Including Royalties;

Salaries, Payroll Taxes and Other Employee Benefits;
Licenses;

Rent and Utilities;

Cost of Equipment;

Cost of Food and Other Product Costs;

Financing Costs (In Addition To Occupancy Expense);
Accounting and Legal Expenses;

Debt Repayment.
- 57-
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These expenses will affect the net income and cash flow of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant. You should
consider them and evaluate their impact on your operations.

STATEMENT OF ACTUAL OPERATIONS OF
CERTAIN COMPANY-OWNED FIREHOUSE SUBS® RESTAURANTS

We compiled the operating revenues, expense and EBITDA figures in the following tables from
information supplied by Restaurants operated by our affiliates, as company-owned Restaurants. We do
not directly operate any Restaurants; all company-owned Restaurants are operated by our affiliates, which
are all owned and controlled by our parent — FRG. The characteristics of those Restaurants are not
materially different from the franchises we offer for sale, except that: they may incur greater marketing
and promotional expenses (as a sponsor of Jacksonville Jaguars and other programs); and incur additional
expenses to offer health insurance to all full-time employees. EBITDA from operations means net
income before subtracting any expenses for interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

The charts contain information relating solely to historical sales, expense and income information
regarding existing FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operated by those affiliates. The charts show the
financial operations for those FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operated by our affiliates for the years
ending December 31, 201 2R rants th. r I he entire 12 months), December 25, 2016
(32 Restaurants), and December 27, 2015 (32 Restaurants), and-December 28, 204432 Restaurants)-
separated by gross sales volume levels based on categories of average unit weekly sales volume
consistent with the preceding tables. The figures are the averages for the Restaurants in that sales level
category.

The statements are based on our accounting system, which conforms with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”). Compensation of general managers (other than distributions on
account of ownership), is included in Salaries & Wages and General & Administrative.

We do not provide expense and net income figures for franchisee-owned restaurants because,
although we receive financial information on expenses and income from franchisees, we do not consider
that information to be as reliable and accurate as that information is from our affiliates controlled by our
parent — FRG. The financial results of our affiliated Restaurants are audited in connection with FRG’s
consolidated financial statements, so we have verification of their reliability. Most of the franchisee
owned Restaurants are not independently audited.

- 58 -
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Firehouse Subs
Ending December 31, 2017

Number of Restaurants 10 12 7 3 0
Weekly AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weekly AUV
= $17,000 $14,000 - 817,000 $11,000 - $14,000 $8,000 - $11,000 S0 - 88,000
YTD % YTD % YTD % YTD % YTD %
Revenue
Food Sales $ 101327816 103.7% $ 82838638 1040% $ 71263155 103.9% $ 56412141 $ 0.0%
Discounts 5 (28,77749)  -29% $  (2525356) -32% $ (20,582.00) -3.0% $ (1984585 -37% $ 0.0%
Employee Meals 5 (7,162.38) -0.7% $ (6,41409) -08% $ (6,486.87) -09% $ (480053) -09% $ 0.0%
Total Revenue: $ 977,338.29 100.0% $ 796,718.73 100.0% $ 685,562.68 100.0% $ 539,475.03 100.0% $ 0.0%
Cost of Sales
Food § 27788902 284% $ 22393303 281% $ 19764086 28.8% $ 15478514 287% $ 0.0%
Paper(Food Related) 5 2772607 2.8% 5 2200124 2.8% $ 2011296 29% $ 1485189 2.8% $ 0.0%
Total Cost of Sales: $ 305,615.09 31.3% $ 24593427 30.9% $ 217,753.82 31.8% $ 169,637.02 31.4% $ 0.0%
Gross Profit: $§ 671,723.20 68.7% $ 550,78446 69.1% $ 467,808.86 68.2% $ 369,838.00 68.6% $ - 0.0%
Operating Expenses
Wages and Benefits § 25890242 265% 5 21591945 27 1% $ 20219954 295% $ 18188333 337% $ 0.0%
Health Insurance $ 10,691.33 1.1% $ 10805086 1.4% $ 1127726 1.6% $ 1133036 21% $ 0.0%
Marketing Expenses 3 60,090.80 6.1% $ 5008997 6.3% $ 4140128 6.0% $ 3375762 6.3% $ 0.0%
Telephone and Utilities 5 2064535 2.1% $ 2218323 2.8% $ 1928905 28% $ 2321315 4.3% $ 0.0%
Professional Fees $ 522105 0.5% $ 533643 07% $ 557030 0.8% $ 521308 1.0% $ 0.0%
Rent and Occupancy Expenses 3 85,076.10 8.7% $ 8314739 104% $ 6903443 101% $ 7932488 147% $ 0.0%
Other Operating Expenses b 38,052.82 3.9% 5 31,045.21 3.9% $ 2919234 4.3% $ 2495332 4.6% $ 0.0%
Rovalty to Firehouse of America $ 58,638.34 6.0% $ 4781620 65.0% $ 4113256 5.0% $ 3236821 6.0% $ 0.0%
Total Operating Exp:  $§  537,318.20 55.0% $ 466,34294 58.5% $ 419,096.75 61.1% $ 39204395 72.7% $ 0.0%
EBITDA From Operations $ 134,405.00 13.8% $ 84,441.52 10.6% $ 48,712.11 7.1% $ (22,205.95) -4.1% $ - 0.0%
_— i 0T
—— ———— = H
jau | 1N L | i . | ; : )
T 1 imEN | I | fl” ]
] s iijin
= imn| — — L— : |
‘ | - | b — , |
sl = ———— " o == 1 —] Hr T
e e e s i R m— p— ——— -
! 'll ‘ . = — =: 1 | T T : h = =: o
= == : — : == + ) |
T - 11 L i i : ! :;‘ : ‘ | ‘ 1 |
—— LI =27 =i=== “ ] == Sl
— I — T it f T i i T T T i I T |
b i |1 11— | Il 1 1 —1 — 1 : Tt ‘
I = : | Il T Il i : \‘l
=== - ' j [ o — === i
T 1 T - — 1 T T I T ]
‘ 5 = e o5




Firehouse Subs
Ending December 25, 2016

Number of Restaurants 11 11 8 2 0
Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weekly AUV
=$§17,000 $14,000 - $17,000 S11,000 - $14,000 $8.000 - $11,000 $0 - $8,000
YTD by YTD by YTD by YTD by YID by

Revenue
Food Sales § 99042617  1035% § 82526744 103.8% § 68355949  1045% § 55255554 1042% 5 - 0.0%
Discounts § (2569779 -27% §  (2225056)  -28% § 0 (21,869.38)  -33% §  (16655.83) -31% 5 - 0.0%
Employee Meals 5 (762930)  -08% 5 (786233 -10% 5 (743479 -11% 5 (562362)  -1.1% 5 - 0.0%

Total Revenue: §  957,099.09 100.0% § 79515455  100.0% §  654,25532  100.0% §  530,276.09  100.0% S - 0.0%
Cost of Sales
Food 5 27104969 28.3% 5 22391220 282% 5 18697853 286% 5 15029164 28.3% 5 - 0.0%
Paper(Food Related) 5 2365914 25% 5 19,069.28 2.4% 5 16,664 44 26% 5 1302141 2.5% 5 - 0.0%

Total Cost of Sales: §  294,908.84 30.8% § 24300148 30.6% §  203,862.97 31.2% §  163,313.05 30.8% S - 0.0%

Gross Profit: $  662,190.25 69.2% §  552,153.07 69.4% §  450,392.34 68.8% $  366,963.04 69.2% $ - 0.0%
Operating Expenses
Wages and Benefits § 23620189 24.7% § 20398820 25.7% § 18640201 28.5% § 16160107 30.5% 5 - 0.0%
Health Insurance 5 11,367.20 1.2% 5 10,914.03 1.4% 5 10,389.05 1.6% 5 9,747.34 1.6% 5 - 0.0%
Marketing Expenses 5 5667418 59% 5 4711890 59% 5 3968599 6.1% 5 34272 5.9% 5 - 0.0%
Telephone and Utilities 5 2121379 22% 5 2170938 27% 5 19,663.30 30% 5 202449 38% 5 - 0.0%
Professional Fees ) 5,168.69 0.5% ) 5,074.75 0.6% ) 5,502.26 0.6% ) 5,072.80 1.0% ) - 0.0%
Rent and Occupancy Expenses § 8367588 8.7% §  B2887.10 10.4% § 7256833 11.1% § 7437996 14.0% ) - 0.0%
Other Operating Expenses 5 3667070 36% 5 315758 39% 5 2703210 41% 5 2320279 44% 5 - 0.0%
Royalty to Firehouse of America 5 A742694 6.0% P YA 6.0% 5 3925472 6.0% 5 3181659 6.0% 5 - 0.0%

Total Operating Exp: §  508419.27 53.1% §  450,566.98 56.7% §  400,717.75 61.2% §  357,538.16 67.4% S - 0.0%
EBITDA From Operations $153,770.98 16.1% $101,586.09 12.8% $ 49,674.59 7.6% $ 942489 1.8% $ - 0.0%
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Firehouse Subs
Ending December 27, 2015

Number of Restaurants 11 12 8 1 0
Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV Weeldy AUV
=$17,000 $14,000 - $17,000 $11,000 - $14,000 $8,000 - $11,000 $0 - §8.000
YID Yo YID % YID % YID % YID %

Revenue
Food Sales 5 100608804 103.9% § 023588690 104.1% 5 GBGEYRGTT  104.9% 5 56420064 1053% 3 - 0.0%
Discounts § (3077780) -32% § (2490673) -31% §  (25,013.66) -3.6% § (2199003 -4.1% 3 - 0.0%
Employee Meals 5 (7135266) -0.8% 3 (7575.14) -1.0% 5 (6,856.24) -1.0% 5 (6,292.44) -1.2% 5 - 0.0%

Total Revenue: S 96795757 100.0% § 79140503 100.0% $  655,086.86 100.0% § 53591817  100.0% S - 0.0%
Cost of Sales
Food § 29796534 30.8% 5 24062175 30.4% 5 202,608.96 309% 5 16759644 3% 3 - 0.0%
Paper(Food Related) 5 22 48905 2.3% 5 17 602 99 22% 5 155637 .97 24% 5 1255236 23% 5 - 0.0%

Total Cost of Sales: §  320454.40 331% § 258,224.73 32.6% §  218,146.93 33.3% § 180,148.80 33.6% $ - 0.0%

Gross Profit: § 647,503.18 66.9% § 533,180.30 67.4% §  436,939.93 66.7% §  355,769.37 66.4% 5 - 0.0%
Operating Expenses
Wages and Benefits 5 2344103 24.2% § 19895568 25.1% 5 17971548 27 4% § 15830853 295% 5 - 0.0%
Health Insurance 5 11,7768.62 1.2% 5 9.953.80 1.3% 5 11,003.10 1.7% 5 6,179.74 1.2% 5 - 0.0%
Marketing Expenses 5 5893308 6.1% § 47TR4146 6.0% 5 40,591.11 6.2% 5 3379349 6.3% 5 - 0.0%
Telephone and Utilities 5 2063074 2.1% § 2267854 29% 5 2102948 32% 5 2160684 40% 5 - 0.0%
Professional Fees 5 470376 05% 5 473388 06% 5 478912 0.7% 5 468480 0.9% 5 - 0.0%
Rent and Occupancy Expenses 5 83,860.16 8.7% 5 8010532 10.1% 5 7289137 11.1% 5 70,850.37 13.2% 5 - 0.0%
Other Operating Expenses 5 36,6687.95 3.6% § 3078650 39% 5 27,374.30 42% 5 2348931 4.4% 5 - 0.0%
Rovalty to Firehouse of America 5 5807745 6.0% § 4748449 6.0% 5 39,305.23 6.0% 5 321551 6.0% 3 - 0.0%

Total Operating Exp: §  509,082.08 52.6% §  442,239.66 55.9% §  396,699.20 60.6% § 351,268.19 £5.5% S - 0.0%
EBITDA From Operations $138,421.10 14.3% $ 90,940.64 11.5% $ 40,240.73 6.1% $ 450118 0.8% $ - 0.0%
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We have written substantiation in our possession to support the information appearing in this
financial performance representation and such substantiation will be made available to you on reasonable
request.

All FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants offer substantially the same services to the public. None
of the franchised FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants received any services not generally available to other
franchisees and substantially the same services will be offered to new franchisees. Likewise the
Restaurants operated by our affiliates receive substantially the same services as those offered our
franchisees, except for centralized accounting, financial and management services.

Seasonality is a substantial factor in the operation of any FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant.

We obtained these historical financial results from the information submitted by our franchisees
and our affiliates. Neither we nor an independent certified public accountant has independently audited
or verified the information.

eanchisee’s fi ial | lilcel ifforf | | Lin the o1
performanec—representation-Some R rants h Id an rned this amount. Your individual
1 fiffer, TI . | 11 sell |

The restaurant industry is intensely competitive based on numerous factors, including price,
service, type and quality of food offered, location and other factors. The performance of your
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant will be affected by the region in which you operate, your competitors,
and the success you have in marketing and managing your operations.

You should consult other sources for financial information, including your financial advisers and
our franchisees in order to compare sales experience and to obtain additional information necessary for
you to develop estimates of the sales, costs, expenses, earnings and profits of FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, Firehouse of America, LLC does
not make any financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any
other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the
franchisor’s management by contacting Don Fox, Chief Executive Officer, 12735 Gran Bay Parkway,
Suite 150, Jacksonville, Florida 32258; (904) &886-8300,—ext—248,606-5144, the Federal Trade
Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.
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ITEM 20.

Table No. 1

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years Ending December-28;2044; 27, 2015, December 275201525, 2016 and December 25;-

204631, 2017
Outlets at the Start | Outlets at the End
Outlet Type Year of the Year of the Year Net Change
20142015 692818 818912 +12694
Franchised ‘ 2015 S8 o o4
2016 912 1,005 +93
2017 1.005 1054 +48
20142015 3032 32 +20
Company-Owned 20452016 32 32 0
20162017 32 3237 0+5
20132015 722850 850944 +12894
Total Outlets 20142016 850944 9441,037 +9493
20152017 9441,037 10371,091 +9354
Table 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners
(other than the Franchisor)

For Years Ending December-28;2014; 27, 2015, December 27201525, 2016 and December 255

204631, 2017

State

Year

Number of Transfers

Alabama

20442015

| 2015

2016

2017

Alaska

20442015

20452016

20162017

Arizona

20442015

20452016

20462017

Arkansas

201442015

2016

California

20442015

2016

Colorado

20442015

2016

Connecticut

20442015

20452016

20462017

ololo|o|E R~ |eEIn|o|RiBlolclc|lo|le(e i+ &
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State

Year

Number of Transfers

201442015

Delaware

20452016

20162017

20442015

District of Columbia

20452016

20162017

201442015

Florida

2016

2017

201442015

BRI RN ololo|olole

Georgia

2016

G

2017

201442015

Hawaii

20452016

20162017

20442015

Idaho

20452016

20162017

201442015

Illinois

20452016

20162017

201442015

Indiana

2016

2017

201442015

lowa

20452016

20162017

201442015

Kansas

2016

20162017

201442015

20452016

Kentucky

2017

201442015

Louisiana

2016

2017

201442015

Maine

20452016

20162017

20442015

Maryland

20452016

201462017

201442015

Massachusetts

20452016

20162017

Michigan

201442015

o =] D | = D olo|lolo|o |
ElelolelclBiRleleleieve|lom|elolo|lcle |+ ile|o|o |+ R IE [~ IR|e H
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State Year Number of Transfers

20152016 10

20462017

201442015

Minnesota 2016

20162017

20442015

Mississippi 2016

2017

20442015

20452016

Missouri 2017

20442015

Montana 20152016

20462017

20442015

Nebraska 20152016

201462017

20442015

Nevada 2016

2017

20442015

New Hampshire 26152016

201462017

20442015

New Jersey 20452016

20462017

20442015

New Mexico 20152016

201462017

20442015

New York 20152016

20462017

20442015

North Carolina 20152016

201462017

20442015

North Dakota 20152016

20462017

20442015

Ohio 2016

2017

20442015

Oklahoma |

2016

2017

20442015

SYISY SIS EARS SN ES IS ISTISY ST i B e IS SRS IS ST ISHISISTISIST SYIST SR MINGISSTISTISTISTISTI S B T S N ey P =1 SR S

Dizigo 20452016
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State

Year

Number of Transfers

20462017

201442015

Pennsylvania

2016

2017

201442015

Rhode Island

20452016

20462017

201442015

South Carolina

2016

2017

201442015

South Dakota

20452016

20462017

201442015

Tennessee

2016

2017

201442015

Texas

2016

2017

20442015

Utah

20452016

20462017

201442015

Vermont

20452016

20462017

20442015

Virginia

20452016

20462017

201442015

Washington

20452016

20462017

201442015

West Virginia

2016

2017

201442015

Wisconsin

2016

2017

20442015

Wyoming

20452016

20462017

20442015

2015

Total

2016

2017

% oo
|E}a@léooollo_aoono_aooooo”ﬁ wiBlolelopE|~~ b |w|n g (wiS|eloloiBkle|clolo|o v+ IR
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Status of Franchised Outlets

Table 3

For Years Ending December-28;2014; 27, 2015, December 27201525, 2016 and December 255

204631, 2017
Outlets at Reacquired Cease.d Outlets at
State Year Start of Outlets Terminations Non- by Operations End of the
Year Opened Renewals Franchisor Other Year
Reasons
20442015 3637 20 0 10 0 0 37
Alabama 20452016 37 0 0 0 0 0 37
20462017 37 0 01 0 0 0 3736
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Alaska 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20162017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20442015 1324 H10 0 0 0 0 2434
Arizona 20452016 2434 107 01 0 0 0 3440
20462017 3440 73 13 0 0 0 40
20442015 18 01 0 0 0 0 1819
Arkansas 20452016 1819 10 0 0 0 0 19
20162017 19 0 0 0 0 0 19
20442015 614 109 21 0 0 0 1422
California 20452016 1422 912 10 0 0 0 2234
20462017 2234 27 02 0 0 0 3439
20442015 1522 72 0 0 0 0 2224
Colorado 20152016 2224 2 01 0 0 0 2425
20162017 2425 21 10 0 0 0 2526
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Connecticut 20452016 0 01 0 0 0 0 01
20462017 01 1 0 0 0 0 12
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Delaware 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20162017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
District of 20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Columbia 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20462017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20442015 1206125 36 21 10 0 0 125130
Florida 20452016 125130 53 12 0 0 0 129131
20162017 129131 33 26 02 0 0 136128
20442015 7284 122 0 0 0 0 8486
Georgia 20452016 8486 25 0 0 0 0 8691
20462017 8691 58 05 01 0 0 9493
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hawaii 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20162017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20442015 12 1 0 0 0 0 23
Idaho 20452016 23 10 0 0 0 0 3
20462017 3 01 0 0 0 0 34
20442015 1013 46 1 0 0 0 1318
[llinois 20452016 1318 65 10 0 0 0 1823
20162017 1823 54 02 0 0 0 2325

QB\138202.00002\+0695895-5510095895.63

- 67 -



Ceased

Outlets at Outlets Non- Reacquired Operations Outlets at
State Year Start of Terminations by End of the
Year OpEned GG Franchisor S Year
Reasons
20442015 21 21 20 0 0 0 2122
Indiana 201452016 2122 10 0 0 0 0 22
20162017 22 02 04 0 0 0 2220
201442015 13 23 0 0 0 0 36
lowa 20152016 36 34 0 0 0 0 610
20162017 610 40 0 0 05 0 105
20442015 47 31 0 0 0 0 78
Kansas 201452016 78 12 01 0 0 0 89
20162017 89 21 10 0 0 0 910
201442015 815 73 01 0 0 0 517
Kentucky 20152016 1517 31 10 0 0 0 1718
20162017 1718 1 02 01 0 0 1816
20442015 57 23 0 0 0 0 710
Louisiana 201452016 710 32 0 0 0 0 1012
20162017 1012 21 01 0 0 0 1213
201442015 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Maine 20152016 1 02 0 0 0 0 13
20162017 13 21 0 0 0 0 34
20442015 67 13 0 0 0 0 710
Maryland 201452016 710 32 0 0 0 0 1012
20162017 1012 24 0 0 0 0 1216
201442015 3 0 01 0 0 0 32
Massachusetts 20452016 32 01 10 0 0 0 23
20162017 23 10 0 0 0 0 3
20442015 H17 74 1 0 0 0 1720
Michigan 201452016 1720 45 10 0 0 0 2025
20162017 2025 52 04 0 0 0 2523
201442015 45 12 0 0 0 0 57
Minnesota 20152016 57 21 0 0 0 0 78
20162017 78 10 02 0 0 0 86
20442015 68 20 0 0 0 0 8
Mississippi 20452016 8 01 0 0 0 0 89
20162017 89 12 0 0 0 0 911
201442015 1319 72 10 0 0 0 1921
Missouri 20152016 1921 2 0 0 0 0 2123
20162017 2123 2 0 0 0 0 2325
20442015 01 10 0 0 0 0 1
Montana 201452016 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
20162017 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
201442015 3 1 10 0 0 0 34
Nebraska 20152016 34 13 0 0 0 0 47
20162017 47 32 0 0 0 0 79
20442015 H12 21 12 0 0 0 211
Nevada 201452016 1211 1 20 0 0 0 H12
20162017 H12 10 0 0 0 0 12
New 201442015 01 10 0 0 0 0 1
SR 20152016 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
20162017 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
New Jersey 20442015 02 21 0 0 0 0 23
201452016 23 10 0 0 0 0 3
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Ceased

Outlets at Outlets Non- Reacquired Operations Outlets at
State Year Start of Terminations by End of the
Year OpEned GG Franchisor S Year
Reasons
20462017 3 03 0 0 0 0 36
20442015 3 01 0 0 0 0 34
New Mexico 20452016 34 1 0 0 0 0 45
20462017 45 1 0 0 0 0 56
20442015 46 2 01 0 0 0 61
New York 20452016 67 20 10 0 0 0 7
20462017 7 01 01 0 0 0 7
20442015 4353 106 01 0 0 0 5358
North Carolina | 20452016 5358 64 1 01 0 0 5860
20462017 5860 45 10 1 0 0 6064
20442015 01 10 0 0 0 0 1
North Dakota 20452016 1 02 0 0 0 0 13
20462017 13 20 0 0 0 0 3
20442015 1820 62 41 0 0 0 2021
Ohio 20452016 2021 25 1 0 0 0 2425
20462017 2425 54 1 0 0 0 2528
20442015 58 32 0 0 0 0 810
Oklahoma 20452016 810 21 0 0 0 0 1011
20462017 1011 10 0 0 0 0 11
20442015 01 12 0 0 0 0 13
Oregon 20452016 13 2 0 0 0 0 35
20462017 35 2 0 0 0 0 17
20442015 6 02 0 0 0 0 68
Pennsylvania 20452016 68 2 0 0 0 0 810
20462017 810 27 0 0 0 0 1017
20442015 10 02 0 0 0 0 1012
Puerto Rico 20452016 1612 20 0 0 0 0 12
20462017 12 0 01 0 0 0 211
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rhode Island 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20462017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20442015 4344 23 1 0 0 0 4446
South Carolina | 261452016 4446 32 10 0 0 0 4648
20462017 4648 23 (8 0 0 0 4850
20442015 12 10 0 0 0 0 2
South Dakota 20452016 2 01 0 0 0 0 23
20462017 23 10 0 0 0 0 3
20442015 3841 31 0 0 0 0 4442
Tennessee 20452016 4442 12 0 0 0 0 44
20462017 4244 24 0 0 0 0 4448
20442015 6374 H14 0 0 0 0 7488
Texas 20452016 7488 H11 0 0 0 0 €899
20462017 €899 H10 03 0 0 0 99106
20442015 1611 23 10 0 0 0 +H14
Utah 20452016 H14 30 (8 0 0 0 413
20462017 413 0 10 0 0 0 13
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vermont 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20462017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Ceased
Outlets at Reacquired . Outlets at
State Year Start of QUL Terminations 0 l()ly O E L End of the
Year OpEned GG Franchisor L Year
Reasons
20442015 4853 74 20 0 0 0 5357
Virginia 20452016 5357 43 02 [ 0 0 57
20462017 57 31 21 10 0 0 57
20442015 1 02 0 0 0 0 13
Washington 20452016 13 2 0 0 0 0 35
20462017 35 23 0 0 0 0 58
20442015 56 10 0 0 0 0 6
West Virginia 20152016 6 01 0 0 0 0 67
20462017 61 10 0 0 0 0 7
20442015 61 10 01 0 0 0 76
Wisconsin 20452016 76 04 10 0 0 0 610
20462017 610 45 0 0 0 0 1015
20442015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Wyoming 20452016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20462017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 2000 692 47 19 2 9 9 818
2015 818 107 13 0 0 0 912
Totals 2016 912 105 10 2 0 0 1,008
20162017 | 9421,005 | 16597 1038 25 05 0 1,0051,054
Table 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets
For Years Ending December-28;20144; 27, 2015, December 275201525, 2016 and December 25;-

20163, 2017
Outlets
Outlets at . Outlets Outlets at
State Year Start of Outlets Reacquired Outlets Sold to End of
Opened from Closed ;
Year . Franchisee Year
Franchisee
20442015 3032 20 0 0 0 32
Florida 20452016 32 0 0 0 0 32
20462017 32 0 0 0 0 32
2015 0 0 0 0 0 0
lowa 2016 0 0 0 0 0 0
2017 0 0 S 0 0 3
20142015 3032 20 0 0 0 32
Total 20152016 32 0 0 0 0 32
20162017 32 0 05 0 0 3237
Table 5
Projected Openings as of December 25;201631, 2017

Franchise Agreements Projected New CE::JZ;te?Ol\vI:Iz d

State Signed But Outlet Not Franchised Outlets in pany
. Outlets in the Next

Opened the Next Fiscal Year 3
Fiscal Year
Alabama 0 0 0
Alaska 01 01 0

QB\138202.00002\+66095895-5510095895.63

- 70 -



Projected New

Franchise Agreements Projected New Company-Owned
State Signed But Outlet Not Franchised Outlets in .
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Outle.ts LTLUING ¢
Fiscal Year
Arizona 72 72 0
Arkansas 0 0 0
California 1614 1614 0
Colorado 4 4 0
Connecticut 10 10 0
Delaware 0 0 0
District of Columbia 0 0 0
Florida 1310 139 0
Georgia 72 72 0
Hawaii 0 0 0
Idaho 10 10 0
Illinois 64 64 0
Indiana 2 2 0
Towa 1 1 0
Kansas 21 21 0
Kentucky 0 0 0
Louisiana 34 34 0
Maine 02 02 0
Maryland 64 64 0
Massachusetts 23 23 0
Michigan 42 42 0
Minnesota 12 12 0
Mississippi 20 20 0
Missouri 4 4 0
Montana 0 0 0
Nebraska 20 20 0
Nevada 02 02 0
New Hampshire 0 0 0
New Jersey 35 35 0
New Mexico 1 1 0
New York 1 1 0
North Carolina 109 108 0
North Dakota 0 0 0
Ohio 5 5 0
Oklahoma 12 12 0
Oregon 4 4 0
Pennsylvania 104 104 0
Puerto Rico 0 0 0
Rhode Island 0 0 0
South Carolina 12 12 0
South Dakota 0 0 0
Tennessee 42 42 0
Texas 2517 2414 0
Utah 01 01 0
Vermont 0 0 0
Virginia 03 03 0
Washington 72 72 0
West Virginia 01 01 0
Wisconsin 63 63 0
Wyoming 0 0 0
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Franchise Agreements Projected New Cl(:;f]fl;teflolj:z d
State Signed But Outlet Not Franchised Outlets in pany
. Outlets in the Next
Opened the Next Fiscal Year .
Fiscal Year
Total 162126 161121 0

The name, business address, and business telephone number of each Franchisee on December 25
201631, 2017 are listed on Exhibit “P.”

The name, city and state, and current business telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known
home telephone number) of the 8885 Franchisees who have had a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant or
Development Business terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily
ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement or Development Agreement and who have left the
system during the most recently completed fiscal year, or have not communicated with us within 10
weeks of Mareh24-2047April 10, 2018 are listed on Exhibit “Q.”

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you
leave the franchise system.

During the last 3 fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses
that restrict them discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our franchise system.

We created and support the following Franchisee Association:

Firehouse Subs Market Fund, Inc.
12735 Gran Bay Parkway, Suite 150
Jacksonville, Florida 32258
904-886-8300 or 1-800-388-FIRE

marketingBOD@firehousesubs.com
http://www.firehousesubsmarketfundbod.com/

The following independent franchisee organization has asked to be included in this disclosure document:

Steamed Subs Franchisee Association, Inc.
info@steamedsubs.org
www.steamedsubs.org

ITEM 21.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our audited Financial Statements for the periods ended December-28, 2044, December 27, 2015,
and-December 25, 2016, and December 31, 2017 are attached as Exhibit “A.”

ITEM 22.
CONTRACTS

The following agreements are attached as exhibits to this Disclosure Document:

(a) Application and Deposit Agreement — Exhibit B

(b) Franchise Agreement -- Exhibit C

(c) Area Development Agreement — Exhibit D

(d) NE Growth Incentive Addendum to Area Development Agreement — Exhibit E-1

- 72 -
QB\138202.00002\16095895-5510095895.63



() MW Growth Incentive Addendum to Area Development Agreement — Exhibit E-1
(g) (> -MW_Growth Incentive Addendum to Area Development Agreement for Existing

Developers — Exhibit E-2
(h) ¢©-Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings -- Exhibit F
(1) €g)rAddendum to Lease Agreement -- Exhibit G
() )-Principal Owner’s Guaranty -- Exhibit I
(k) é)-Principal Owner’s Statement -- Exhibit J
(1) &)Franchise Compliance Certificate — Exhibit S
(m) do-State Specific Addenda and Riders — Exhibit T

ITEM 23.
RECEIPTS

You will find 2 copies of a detachable Receipt in Exhibit “V” at the end of the disclosure

document. One Receipt must be signed, dated and delivered to us. The other Receipts should be retained
for your records.

() 5
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DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN v

Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors
Firehouse of America, LLC
Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Firehouse of America, LLC (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc.), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and December
25, 2016, and the related statements of income, changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Firehouse of America, LLC as of December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Lixen H‘pﬂh&é Goodman [LP

Jacksonville, Florida
March 23, 2018



Firehouse of America, LLC
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016

2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,063,333 $ 9,444,520
Accounts receivable, net 2,601,737 1,987,760
Prepaid area representative expenses 120,000 670,000
Due from related party - 2,121,171
Other current assets 302,377 854,724
Total current assets 13,087,447 15,078,175
Property and equipment:
Furniture and equipment 887,520 689,500
Less: accumulated depreciation 563,561 457,469
Net property and equipment 323,959 232,031
Other assets:
Prepaid area representative expenses 547,500 282,500
Total assets $ 13,958,906 $ 15,592,706
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,741,257 $ 2,785,402
Accrued and withheld items 2,540,275 1,623,054
Deferred revenue 2,707,600 2,400,000
Total current liabilities 7,989,132 6,808,456
Deferred revenue, net of current 4,275,245 7,205,544
Commitments and contingencies (note 4)
Members' equity 1,694,529 1,578,706
Total liabilities and members' equity $ 13,958,906 $ 15,592,706

See accompanying notes.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016

2017 2016
Revenues:
Royalty fees $ 41,020,838 $ 39,286,950
Franchise fees 2,575,500 2,840,810
Area representative fees 568,324 590,236
Other fees 3,563,059 3,457,710
Total revenues 47,727,721 46,175,706
Costs and expenses:
Royalty expense 18,478,436 17,988,820
Franchise fee expense 687,751 724,413
License fee expense 11,041,168 10,679,499
Employee wages and benefits 8,791,917 7,650,663
Telephone and utilities expense 49,127 43,725
Travel and entertainment expense 794,133 811,263
Marketing expenses 1,014,633 1,007,709
Occupancy expense 2,012,995 1,483,311
Area franchise development expense 217,500 237,500
Professional fee expense 1,821,271 1,174,933
Depreciation and amortization 106,092 74,951
Other operating expenses 3,305,515 960,058
Total costs and expenses 48,320,538 42,836,845
Operating income (loss) (592,817) 3,338,861
Other income 8,640 186,686
Net income (loss) $ (584,177) $ 3,525,547

See accompanying notes.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Statements of Changes in Members' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and December 25,

2016

Balance, beginning of year
Net income (loss)
Contributions
Distributions

Balance, end of year

See accompanying notes.

2017 2016

$ 1,578,706 1,567,215
(584,177) 3,525,547

700,000 -
- (3,514,056)

$ 1,694,529 1,578,706




Firehouse of America, LLC
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid area representative expenses
Other current assets
Accounts payable, accrued and withheld items
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Loan payments from related party
Members' contributions
Members' distributions

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

2017 2016
(584,177) 3,525,547
105,952 74,951
(613,977) 97,422
285,000 85,000
552,347 (657,921)
873,076 1,074,160
(2,622,699) (1,003,736)
(2,004,478) 3,195,423
(197,880) (201,652)
(197,880) (201,652)
2,121,171 5,878,829
700,000 -
- (3,514,056)
2,821,171 2,364,773
618,813 5,358,544
9,444,520 4,085,976
10,063,333 9,444,520

See accompanying notes.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

Firehouse of America, LLC (“Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc., was
organized on November 16, 2004 as a limited liability company. The Company is a franchisor engaged in
developing, marketing and supervising restaurants specializing in sub sandwiches under the name of Firehouse
Subs. On December 26, 2004, the Company entered into an assignment agreement with its parent company
regarding franchise and related agreements owned by the parent company. The Company had 1,072 franchise
locations at December 31, 2017 (1,010 at December 25, 2016). The Company operates on a 52/53 week year-
end, consistent with its parent company. There were 53 and 52 weeks in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Company grants franchise agreements that are for an initial term of ten years to restaurants at locations
approved by the Company. In addition to initial franchise fees, the franchisees are obligated, among other things,
to pay a continuing royalty fee based upon a fixed percentage of sales at 6% of net sales, as defined as charges
for all products sold to customers for cash or credit excluding state and local authorities’ taxes, discounts and
coupons. From time to time, incentives in the form of temporarily-reduced royalty fee percentages may be offered.

The Company enters into contractual agreements with area representatives to manage designed territories. The
area representative receives a portion of the franchise fees and royalties generated from the franchises in their
territories.

Income from franchisees includes initial franchise fees, royalty fees, renewal fees and other fees. The Company
recognizes initial franchise fees as revenue when substantial performance of franchisor obligations is complete.
Royalty fees are based on a percentage of franchisee sales and are recognized as income when earned. Other
license and transfer fees are also recognized as income when earned. Deferred revenue represents payments
received in advance for franchise fees, area development fees and area representative fees.

Basis of accounting

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; (2)
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements; and, (3) the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and
assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with remaining maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) limit from time to time.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives ranging from three to five years.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

Income taxes

As a limited liability company, the Company’s taxable income or loss is allocated to the members in accordance
with the operating agreement and is reflected in their income taxes; accordingly, the accompanying financial
statements do not reflect a provision or liability for federal and state income taxes.

Accounting guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in an income tax return. Consideration
is given to the recognition and measurement of tax positions that meet a “more-likely-than-not” threshold. A tax
position is a position taken in a previously filed tax return or a position expected to be taken in a future tax return
that is reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax and liabilities. Tax positions taken for various
jurisdictions consider the amounts and probabilities of outcomes that could be realized upon settlement using the
facts, circumstance, and information available at the reporting date. The Company has determined that it does not
have any material uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2017.

2. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of royalty receivables owed to the Company through franchisee obligations.
Royalty receivables are typically collected within two weeks after period-end, as such there are no credit terms.
The Company maintains an allowance for bad debts based upon an evaluation of the periodic aging of the accounts.
Allowance for doubtful accounts was $2,572 at December 31, 2017 (none at December 25, 2016). Bad debt
expense was $363,668 and $23,107 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016, respectively.

3. Related Party Transactions

The Company also has agreements with its parent company and other related companies to receive training and
administrative support for its operations in exchange for various fees paid to these companies. Fees paid under
these agreements totaled approximately $11,100,000 and $10,700,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017
and December 25, 2016, respectively. Amounts due under these agreements at December 31, 2017 and December
25, 2016 were $1,268,958 and $934,651 respectively.

The Company had a note receivable from a related party in the amount of $2,121,171. Interest at current LIBOR
rates plus principal was paid in March 2017.

One of the Company’s members and other related parties are stockholders of three of the Company’s franchisees.
Collectively, the percentage ownership ranges from 33% to 100%. Royalties from related parties totaled
approximately $97,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016.

In addition, the Company does not charge franchise fees and royalties to franchises owned by certain members.
Had these franchises been charged, the franchise fees would have totaled approximately $157,000 and $156,000
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 25, 2016, respectively.

In 2017, the Company made $2,000,000 in charitable contributions.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

4. Commitments and Contingencies

According to the terms of signed agreements between the Company and its franchisees, the Company is obligated,
among other things, to supply to the franchisee logo types, lease negotiation assistance, manuals and certain
training. The Company, in the normal course of business, is subject to claims and litigation. Management does not
believe any such claims and litigation will have a material impact on the Company’s financial position.

5. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the financial statements through March
23, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No subsequent events requiring
disclosure were noted during this evaluation.
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DHG

DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN v

Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors
Firehouse of America, LLC
Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Firehouse of America, LLC (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc.), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 25,
2016 and December 27, 2015, and the related statements of income, changes in members’ equity, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Firehouse of America, LLC as of December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Dixeom Hughes Goodman [P

Jacksonville, Florida
March 10, 2017



Firehouse of America, LLC
Balance Sheets
December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid area representative expenses
Due from related party
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment:
Furniture and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment
Other assets:
Prepaid area representative expenses

Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued and withheld items
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (note 4)

Members' equity

Total liabilities and members' equity

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
9,444,520 4,085,976
1,982,760 2,080,182

670,000 585,000
2,121,171 8,000,000
854,724 196,803
15,073,175 14,947,961
689,500 487,848
457,469 382,518
232,031 105,330
282,500 452,500
5,000 5,000
15,592,706 15,510,791
2,785,402 1,668,989
1,613,054 1,655,307
2,400,000 5,950,955
6,798,456 9,275,251
7,205,544 4,658,325
10,000 10,000
7,215,544 4,668,325
1,578,706 1,567,215
15,592,706 15,510,791




Firehouse of America, LLC
Statements of Income
Years Ended December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015

Revenues:
Royalty fees
Franchise fees
Area representative fees
Other fees

Total revenues

Costs and expenses:
Royalty expense
Franchise fee expense
License fee expense
Employee wages and benefits
Telephone and utilities expense
Travel and entertainment expense
Marketing expenses
Occupancy expense
Area franchise development expense
Professional fee expense
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

Total costs and expenses
Operating income
Other income

Net income

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
39,286,950 37,162,911
2,840,810 2,993,670
590,236 560,955
3,457,710 3,091,517
46,175,706 43,809,053
17,988,820 17,142,865
724,413 749,961
10,679,499 10,179,384
7,650,663 6,825,792
43,725 42,535
811,263 902,258
1,007,709 928,406
1,483,311 1,282,830
237,500 321,250
1,174,933 1,404,066
74,951 52,167
960,058 812,057
42,836,845 40,643,571
3,338,861 3,165,482
186,686 8,582
3,525,547 3,174,064




Firehouse of America, LLC
Statements of Changes in Members' Equity
Years Ended December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015

2016 2015
Balance, beginning $ 1,567,215 $ 1,405,199
Net income 3,525,547 3,174,064
Distributions (3,514,056) (3,012,048)
Balance, ending $ 1,578,706 $ 1,567,215

See accompanying notes.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid area representative expenses
Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable, accrued and withheld items
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Loan payments from related party
Members' distributions
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
3,525,547 3,174,064
74,951 52,167
97,422 478,313
85,000 200,000
(657,921) 522,471
- 20,000
1,074,160 (549,099)
(1,003,736) (663,705)
- (40,000)
3,195,423 3,194,211
(201,652) (56,637)
(201,652) (56,637)
5,878,829 -
(3,514,056) (3,012,048)
2,364,773 (3,012,048)
5,358,544 125,526
4,085,976 3,960,450
9,444,520 4,085,976




Firehouse of America, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

Firehouse of America, LLC (“Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Firehouse Restaurant Group, Inc., was
organized on November 16, 2004 as a limited liability company. The Company is a franchisor engaged in
developing, marketing and supervising restaurants specializing in sub sandwiches under the name of Firehouse
Subs. On December 26, 2004, the Company entered into an assignment agreement with its parent company
regarding franchise and related agreements owned by the parent company. The Company had 1,010
franchise locations at December 25, 2016 (918 at December 27, 2015). The Company operates on a 4-4-5
week accounting system consistent with its parent company.

The Company grants franchise agreements that are for an initial term of ten years to restaurants at locations
approved by the Company. In addition to initial franchise fees, the franchisees are obligated, among other things,
to pay a continuing royalty fee based upon a fixed percentage of sales ranging from 4% to 6% of net sales, as
defined as charges for all products sold to customers for cash or credit excluding state and local authorities’ taxes,
discounts and coupons.

The Company also grants rights to area representatives to manage designated territories for a fixed fee based on
the territory capacity. The area representative receives a portion of the franchise fees and royalties generated from
the franchises in their territories.

Income from franchisees includes initial franchise fees, royalty fees, renewal fees and other fees. The Company
recognizes initial franchise fees as revenue when substantial performance of franchisor obligations is complete.
Royalty fees are based on a percentage of franchisee sales and are recognized as income when earned. Other
license and transfer fees are also recognized as income when earned. Deferred revenue represents payments
received in advance for franchise fees, area development fees and area representative fees.

Basis of accounting

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; (2)
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements; and, (3) the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and
assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with remaining maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) limit from time to time.

Property and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method based
on estimated useful lives ranging from three to five years.



Firehouse of America, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

Income taxes

As a limited liability company, the Company’s taxable income or loss is allocated to the members in accordance
with the operating agreement and is reflected in their income taxes; accordingly, the accompanying financial
statements do not reflect a provision or liability for federal and state income taxes.

2, Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of royalty receivables owed to the Company through franchisee obligations.
Royalty receivables are typically collected within one week after period-end, as such there are no credit terms. The
Company maintains an allowance for bad debts based upon an evaluation of the periodic aging of the accounts.
There was no allowance for doubtful accounts at December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015. Bad debt expense
was $23,107 and $21,523 for the years ended December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015, respectively.

3. Related Party Transactions

The Company also has agreements with its parent company and other related companies to receive training and
administrative support for its operations in exchange for various fees paid to these companies. Fees paid under
these agreements totaled approximately $10,700,000 and $10,300,000 for the years ended December 25, 2016
and December 27, 2015, respectively. Amounts due under these agreements at December 25, 2016 and December
27, 2015 were $934,651 and $946,585 respectively.

The Company has a note receivable from a related party in the amount of $2,121,171. Interest at current LIBOR
rates plus principal is due in December 2017.

One of the Company’s members and other related parties are stockholders of three of the Company’s franchisees.
Collectively, the percentage ownership ranges from 33% to 100%. Royalties from related parties totaled
approximately $97,000 and $99,000 for the years ended December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015, respectively.

In addition, the Company does not charge franchise fees and royalties to franchises owned by certain members.
Had they been charged, they would have totaled approximately $156,000 and $156,000 for the years ended
December 25, 2016 and December 27, 2015, respectively.

4. Commitments

According to the terms of signed agreements between the Company and its franchisees, the Company is obligated,
among other things, to supply to the franchisee logo types, lease negotiation assistance, manuals and certain
training. The Company, in the normal course of business, is subject to claims and litigation. Management does not
believe any such claims and litigation will have a material impact on the Company’s financial position.

5. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the financial statements through March
10, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No subsequent events requiring
disclosure were noted during this evaluation.
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APPLICATION AND DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

THIS APPLICATION AND DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is effective as of

(the “Effective Date”), regardless of when it is 51gned by and between FIREHOUSE

OF AMERICA "LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“we,” “us” and “our”) and

(“you” or “your”). You and we are sometimes referred to
collectively as the “parties” or separately as a “party.”

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

We grant franchises for the operation of sandwich restaurant shop specializing in large portion hot
submarine style sandwiches in a unique fire-fighting atmosphere and decorum at an economical price (a
“FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant” or “Restaurant”) to persons who meet our qualifications and are
willing to undertake the investment and effort, a Franchise to own and operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant.

You have applied for a Franchise to own and operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS®. To determine whether
to grant you a Franchise, we must evaluate your credentials. In additiona, you want to make sure that
operating a Restaurant is compatible with your objectives. We incur various expenses in making those
evaluations and determinations.

Accordingly, the parties agree as follows:
OPERATIVE TERMS

1. Deposit. Contemporaneously with signing this Agreement, you have deposited $2,500 (the
“Deposit”) with us. If we grant a Franchise to you this Deposit will be credited toward the initial franchise fee
payable in accordance with the Franchise Agreement. The Deposit will not bear interest. We will not
establish a separate account for the Deposit. The Deposit is non-refundable and is fully earned by us when
paid.

2. Representations and Warranties. You represent and warrant that all of the statements you
made in your application are true, correct and complete.

3. Evaluation. As part of the screening process, you agree to work a minimum of 50 hours at a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant that we designate. You will not be paid compensation of any type for work
performed by you during this screening process. The work you perform under this Agreement does not
constitute training under any franchise agreement with us.

4. Waiver and Release. During the 50 hours of observation and evaluation process at a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant in which you will receive hands-on experience and operate food service
equipment and supplies (the “Observation and Evaluation Process”), you agree, attest and acknowledge
that:

(a) There is some risk of injury and harm;
(b) You are not our employee;
() Since you are not our employee, you will not be entitled to any workers

compensation from us; and

(d) You waive any right to sue for damages or other relief, and release any claim you
may have against us or any of our affiliates, agents, officers and directors, for any claims, losses,
damages, liabilities or obligations that arise out of any injury you suffer during such work.

If someone other than you attends the Observation and Evaluation Process, they must sign our standard form
of Liability Waiver and Release, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “A” to this Agreement.

5. Competitive Restrictions. Upon our termination or expiration (if we offer, but you elect not
to acquire, a franchise), you and your owners agree that, for a period of 1 year commencing on the effective
date of termination or expiration or the date on which a person restricted by this Section begins to comply with
this Section, whichever is later, neither you nor any of your owners will have any direct or indirect interest
(e.g., through a spouse or child) as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer,
employee, consultant, representative or agent or in any other capacity in any Competitive Business operating
within 10 miles of any other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant in operation or under construction on the later
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of the effective date of the termination or expiration or the date on which a person restricted by this Section
complies with this Section. If any person restricted by this Section refuses voluntarily to comply with the
foregoing obligations, the 1-year period will commence with the entry of an order of an arbitrator, or court if
necessary, enforcing this provision. You and your owners expressly acknowledge that you possess skills and
abilities of a general nature and have other opportunities for exploiting such skills. Consequently,
enforcement of the covenants made in this Section will not deprive you of your personal goodwill or ability to
earn a living. The term “Competitive Business” as used in this Agreement means any business or facility
owning, operating or managing, or granting franchises or licenses to others to do so, any Restaurant or food
service facility that offers casual dining and take-out of sandwiches, salads or any type of deli foods and
beverages (other than a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant operated under a franchise agreement with us).

6. Confidential Information. We may disclose certain information to you regarding the
System and the know-how related to its use; plans, specifications, size and physical characteristics of
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants; site selection criteria, land use and zoning techniques and criteria;
methods in obtaining licensing and meeting regulatory requirements; sources and design of equipment,
furniture, forms, materials and supplies; marketing, advertising and promotional programs for FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants; the selection, testing and training of personnel for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants;
the recruitment, qualification and investigation methods to secure employment for employment candidates;
any computer software we make available or recommend for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants; methods,
techniques, formats, specifications, procedures, information and systems related to and knowledge of and
experience in the development, operation and franchising of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants; knowledge of
specifications for and suppliers of certain products, materials, supplies, furniture, furnishings and equipment;
recipes, formulas, preparation methods and serving techniques; and knowledge of operating results and
financial performance of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. You acknowledge and agree that all of this
information is confidential and proprietary (the “Confidential Information”). You will not acquire any
interest in the Confidential Information. The use or duplication of any Confidential Information in any other
business will constitute an unfair method of competition. You will not disclose, leak, divulge, disseminate,
reveal, make available, replicate, duplicate (in any form, tangible or intangible) or otherwise communicate all
or any portion of the Confidential Information to any other person or entity, or use it for any purpose other
than good faith negotiations with us to obtain a Franchise Program, either directly or indirectly, unless given
permission to do so in writing by us. You will use the highest degree of care to safeguard the confidentiality
of the Confidential Information and not make any copies or abstracts of the Confidential Information
(intangible, printed or an intangible form) except where permitted to do so by us in writing. You will adopt
and implement all reasonable procedures we may prescribe from time to time to prevent unauthorized use or
disclosure of the Confidential Information.

7. Return of Confidential Information. If, for any reason whatsoever, you and we do not
enter into a Franchise Agreement by within 60 days, you and we agree as follows:

(a) Return: You will immediately return to us all franchise Disclosure Documents,
franchise agreements, prototypes, samples, brochures, copies, materials, duplicates, derivations,
portions, extracts and any other aspects of the Confidential Information in your possession.

(b) Copies: You will immediately deliver to us all additional copies or other duplicates
of the Confidential Information produced or created by you or us, including without limitation, all
prototypes, documents, photocopies, notes, memoranda, extracts, excerpts, derivations, worksheets or
other ancillary documentation containing, or derived from, Confidential Information, whether
contained on paper, tangible material, tape or in computer memory banks or the storage devices
including storage media that you may access from remote sites via the Internet or other shared
system(s).

(c) Destruction. You will immediately destroy any Confidential Information or
derivations which you may possess in computer memory or elsewhere in machine readable form that
cannot be returned to us, thereby leaving no written evidence or intangible embodiment of the
Confidential Information in your possession.

(d) Certificate. Within 10 days following notice from us of our demand that you return
or destroy the Confidential Information, you will deliver to us a written certificate executed by a duly
authorized officer on your behalf, stating that you have fully and completely discharged all of your
obligations pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement and returning all of the Confidential
Information not destroyed.

8. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. Florida law governs this Agreement. Jurisdiction and
venue for any claims involving this Agreement is exclusively in the courts serving Duval County, Florida.
The parties irrevocably submit to the venue and jurisdiction of such courts.

- 2.
QB\138202.00002\10095895-5510095895.63



9. Litigation Expenses. In any action or dispute, at law or in equity, that may arise under or
otherwise relate to the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to full reimbursement of
its litigation expenses from the other party. Litigation expenses include attorneys’ fees, defense costs, witness
fees and other related expenses including paralegal fees, travel and lodging expenses and court costs.
Reimbursement is due within 30 days of written notice after prevailing.

10. Assignment. This Agreement, and all rights and obligations of the parties, may not be
assigned, subcontracted, or transferred by any party without the prior written consent of the other party.

11. Background Information. Both parties agree that the background information at the
beginning of this Agreement is accurate.

12. Effect. This Agreement neither evidences, nor commits us to, an award of a Franchise to
you. Any grant of a Franchise to you will be subject to a definitive Franchise Agreement mutually acceptable
and signed by both you and us. However, in the meantime, you and we will naturally be expected to
investigate each others’ qualifications, background and respective businesses. Thus, each of us will cooperate
with each other to obtain further information in order to proceed on a mutually beneficial business basis.
Neither party has any obligation to the other party other than as described in this Agreement.

13. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement is , 201__ , regardless of
the actual date of signature.

Intending to be bound, the parties sign below:

FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Date:
Date:

- 3.
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EXHIBIT “A” TO
APPLICATION AND DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

FIREHOUSE SUBS®
LIABILITY WAIVER AND RELEASE

, want to enroll in the 50 hours of observation and

evaluation process and attend the initial training programs offered by Firehouse of America, LLC
(“FOA”) in order to be qualified to own, operate and/or manage a Firehouse Subs® Restaurant, pursuant
to a franchise agreement between FOA and either me, my employer, or a company with which I am
affiliated. To induce FOA to allow me to participate in the 50 hours of observation and evaluation
process, and attend the initial training programs, I agree, attest and acknowledge the following:

(1

2)
)

4)

)

During the 50 hours of observation and evaluation and the initial training programs, I will
receive hands-on training at a Firechouse Subs® Restaurant and through other training
facilities during which I will operate food service equipment and supplies and, therefore,
there is a risk of injury and harm.

I understand and acknowledge that I am not an employee of FOA or its affiliates for any
purpose whatsoever.

Since I am not an employee of FOA, I will not be entitled to any workers compensation
coverage from FOA or any of its affiliates (although I may be entitled to such coverage
from my own employer).

I waive any right to sue for damages or other relief, and release any claim I may have
against FOA and/or any of its affiliates, agents, officers and directors, for any claims,
losses, damages, liabilities or obligations that arise out of any injury I suffer during and
as a result of my undergoing the initial training program with FOA.

My participation in the observation, evaluation and training programs does not entitle me
to a Firehouse Subs® franchise. Franchises are granted only by separate written
agreements.

Print Name:
Date:

Witness Signature

Print Name:
Date:
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EXHIBIT C TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT DATE FRANCHISE OWNER
RESTAURANT NUMBER ADDRESS OF RESTAURANT

THIS AGREEMENT REQUIRES CERTAIN DISPUTES TO BE SUBMITTED TO BINDING
ARBITRATION.
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FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement™) is effective as of

(the “Agreement Date*). The parties to this Agreement are FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC, a

Florlda limited liability company, with its principal business address at 12735 Gran Bay Parkway, Su1te
150, Jacksonville, Florida 32258 (referred to in this Agreement as “we,” “us* or “our*), and

, whose  principal

business address is

29 ¢,

(referred to in this Agreement as “you,” “your* or “Franchise Owner*).
1. INTRODUCTION. Various terms are defined in context throughout this Agreement, and an
index is attached as Exhibit “A” for convenience.

1.1. The FIREHOUSE SUBS® System. We and our affiliates have expended considerable
time and effort in a sandwich restaurant shop specializing in large portion hot submarine style sandwiches
in a unique fire-fighting atmosphere and decorum at an economical price (a “FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant” or “Restaurant”). FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operate under the service marks and
trade name “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Est. 1994 and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS® and design,’
‘FIREHOUSE SUBS®,” FIREHOUSE SUBS FEED THE FIRESM and Design,” “FEED THE
FIRESM,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS AMERICAN DREAM OWNERSHIP PROGRAM®,” “FULLY
INVOLVED®.” “HOOK & LADDER SUB®,” “NEW YORK STEAMER SUB®,” “FIREHOUSE
HOUSESM” “FIREHOUSE®,” “ENGINEER SUB™,” “FIREHOUSE FUNDS™,” and under
distinctive business formats, methods, procedures, designs, layouts, signs, equipment, menus, recipes,
trade dress, standards and specifications, all of which we may improve, further develop or otherwise
modify from time to time (the “System*). We commission, use, promote and license in the operation of a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols,
including the trade and service marks “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Est. 1994 and design,” “FIREHOUSE
SUBS® and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS®” and other associated logos, copyrighted works, designs,
Art, trade dress, trademarks, service marks, commercial symbols, and e-names, which will gain or have
gained and continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and may create, commission, use and license
additional trademarks, service marks, e-names, copyrighted works, Art and commercial symbols in
conjunction with the operation of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants (collectively, the “Marks*). We
grant to persons who meet our qualifications and are willing to undertake the investment and effort, a
Franchise to own and operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant offering the products and services we
authorize and approve and utilizing the Marks and the System. You have applied for a Franchise to own
and operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant.

1.2. Acknowledgments. You acknowledge and agree that:

(a) you have read this Agreement and our Franchise Disclosure Document;

(b) you understand and accept the terms, conditions and covenants contained in this
Agreement as being reasonably necessary to maintain our high standards of quality and service

and the uniformity of those standards at each FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant and to protect and
preserve the goodwill of the Marks;

(c) you have conducted an independent investigation of the business venture
contemplated by this Agreement and recognize that, like any other business, the nature of the
business conducted by a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant may evolve and change over time;
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(d) an investment in a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant involves business risks;

(e) your business abilities and efforts are vital to the success of the venture and the
success or failure of your Restaurant is predominately based on your skills in operating and
managing it;

(f) any information you acquire from other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant
franchisees relating to their sales, profits or cash flows does not constitute information obtained
from us, nor do we make any representation as to the accuracy of any such information;

(g) in all of their dealings with you, our officers, directors, employees and agents act
only in a representative, and not in an individual, capacity. All business dealings between you
and such persons as a result of this Agreement are solely between you and us;

(h) we have advised you to have this Agreement reviewed and explained to you by an
attorney.

1.3. Representations. As an inducement to our entry into this Agreement, you represent and
warrant to us that:

(a) all statements you have made and all materials you have submitted to us in
connection with your purchase of the Franchise are accurate and complete and that you have
made no misrepresentations or material omissions in obtaining the franchise;

(b) you will at all times faithfully, honestly and diligently perform your obligations,
continuously exert your best efforts to promote and enhance the Restaurant and not engage in any
other business or activity that conflicts with your obligations to operate the Restaurant in
compliance with this Agreement.

(c) you will comply with and/or assist us to the fullest extent possible in our efforts to
comply with Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States, the USA Patriot
Act, and all other present and future federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations,
policies, lists and any other requirements of any governmental authority addressing or in any way
relating to terrorist acts and acts of war (the “Anti-Terrorism Laws*); and

(d) neither you nor any of your owners, employees, or agents, property or interests are
subject to being “blocked” under any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws and that neither you nor they
are otherwise in violation of any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws.

(e) Our approval of your request to purchase the Franchise is made in reliance on all of
your representations and warranties. Any violation of these representations or warranties, or any
Anti-Terrorism Laws by you or your owners, or your or your owners’ agents or employees, or
any “blocking” of your or their assets under the Anti-Terrorism Laws, will constitute grounds for
immediate termination of this Agreement and any other agreements you have entered into with us
or any of our affiliates.

1.4. No Warranties. We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that you
have not received or relied upon, any warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to the revenues, sales,
profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement or the extent to which we will
continue to develop and expand the network of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. You acknowledge and
understand the following:
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(a) any statement regarding the potential or probable revenues, sales or profits of the
business venture, or of any services, benefits or commitments we are to make available to you,
are made solely in the Franchise Disclosure Document delivered to you prior to signing this
Agreement;

(b) any statement regarding the potential or probable revenues, sales or profits of the
business venture or statistical information regarding any existing FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant owned by us or our affiliates or that is not contained in our Franchise Disclosure
Document is unauthorized, unwarranted and unreliable and should be reported to us immediately;
and

(c) you have not received or relied on any representations about us or our franchising
program or policies made by us, or our officers, directors, employees or agents, that are contrary
to the statements made in our Franchise Disclosure Document or to the terms of this Agreement.
If there are any exceptions to any of the foregoing, you must: (i) immediately notify our chief
executive officer; and (ii) note such exceptions by attaching a statement of exceptions to this
Agreement prior to signing it.

1.5. Business Organization. If you are at any time a business organization (“Business
Entity*) (like a corporation, limited liability company or partnership) you agree and represent that:

(a) you have the authority to execute, deliver and perform your obligations under this
Agreement and are duly organized or formed and validly existing in good standing under the laws
of the state of your incorporation or formation;

(b) your organizational or governing documents will recite that the issuance and transfer
of any ownership interests in you are restricted by the terms of this Agreement, and all certificates
and other documents representing ownership interests in you will bear a legend referring to the
restrictions of this Agreement;

(c) the Principal Owners Statement will completely and accurately describe all of your
owners and their interests in you. A copy of our current form of Principal Owners Statement is
attached to the Franchise Disclosure Document;

(d) you and your owners agree to revise the Principal Owners Statement as may be
necessary to reflect any ownership changes and to furnish such other information about your
organization or formation as we may request (no ownership changes may be made without our
approval);

(e) each of your owners during the Term will sign and deliver to us our standard form of
Principal Owner’s Guaranty undertaking to be bound jointly and severally by all provisions of
this Agreement and any other agreements between you and us. A copy of our current form of
Principal Owner’s Guaranty is attached to the Franchise Disclosure Document; and

(f) at our request, you will furnish true and correct copies of all documents and contracts
governing the rights, obligations and powers of your owners and agents (like articles of
incorporation or organization and partnership, operating or shareholder agreements).

2. GRANT AND TERM

2.1. Grant of Franchise. You have applied for a franchise to own and operate a FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant only at a location we have approved (the “Site*). Subject to the terms of and upon the
conditions contained in this Agreement, we grant you a franchise (the “Franchise”) to: (a) operate a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant at the Site, and at no other location; (b) use the Marks in connection with
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operating the Restaurant; and (c) use the System in its operation. The term of the Franchise and this
Agreement (the “Term*) begins on the Agreement Date and expires 10 years from the date your Restaurant
opens for business (the “Opening Date). You agree to fulfill your obligations and exert your best efforts to
do so, for the full Term. This Agreement may be terminated before it expires. We grant you the right to an
exclusive territory.

You may not operate the Restaurant from any location other than the Site without our prior written
consent. If we consent to the Restaurant’s relocation, we have the right to charge you for the expenses we
incur in connection with the relocation.

2.2. Rights We Reserve. We (and our affiliates) retain the right in our sole discretion to:

(a) to solicit prospective franchisees and grant other persons Franchises, or other rights
to operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants: through national or regional advertising, trade
shows or conventions, or using or through the Internet, Intranet or other forms of e-commerce or
through similar means;

(b) to own and operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants ourselves or through affiliates
anywhere, except your Trade Area;

(c) sell, solicit, recruit and provide services for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants or any
franchised business not defined as a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant in this Agreement;

(d) to sell, and provide the services authorized for sale by, FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants under the Marks or other trade names, trademarks, service marks and commercial
symbols through similar or dissimilar channels (like telephone, mail order, kiosk, co-branded
sites and sites located within other retail businesses, stadiums, Intranet, Internet, web sites,
wireless, email or other forms of e-commerce) for distribution within and outside of your Trade
Area and pursuant to such terms and conditions as we consider appropriate;

() €e)to solicit prospective franchisees for, and own and operate, businesses and
restaurants of any other kind or nature, anywhere.

3. SITE SELECTION AND DEVELOPMENT.

3.1. Site Selection. Within 12 months of the Agreement Date, you (with or without our
assistance) must locate a site that we (in our sole judgment) have approved and signed a lease for it to be
acceptable to us. The Site must meet our criteria for the location of a Restaurant (which may or may not
include demographic characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from
and proximity to other businesses and other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, the nature of other
businesses in proximity to the Site and other commercial characteristics and the size, appearance and other
physical characteristics of the proposed site, and any other factors or characteristics we consider
appropriate). Our criteria, and our evaluation of them, may vary periodically and from location to location.
We will approve or disapprove a Site you propose for a Restaurant within 30 days after we receive from you
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a complete site report and any other materials we request. If you have not heard from us within such 30-day
period, the Site is deemed disapproved. You acknowledge and agree that:

(a) our recommendation or approval of the Site, and any information regarding the Site
communicated to you, do not constitute a representation or warranty of any kind, express or
implied, as to the suitability of the Site for a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant or for any other

purpose;

(b) our recommendation or approval of the Site indicates only that we believe that the
Site falls within the acceptable criteria for sites and premises that we have established as of the
time of our recommendation or approval of the Site;

(c) application of criteria that have appeared effective with respect to other sites and
premises may not accurately reflect the potential for all sites and premises, and, after our approval
of a site, demographic and/or other factors included in or excluded from our criteria could change
to alter the potential of a site and premises; and

(d) the uncertainty and instability of such criteria are beyond our control, and we will not

be responsible for the failure of a site and premises we have recommended or approved to meet
expectations as to potential revenue or operational criteria.

3.2. Trade Area. The trade area of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant generally consists of

the Site and the geographic area within a +2-mile radius (the “Trade Area“) around the Site although we
may vary its size under special circumstances. We will not approve a Site within the Trade Area of any
other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant, whether it is franchised or owned by us. During the Term, as long
as you are in compliance with this Agreement, we will not grant a franchise for, nor ourselves operate, a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant within your Trade Area.

3.3. Lease of Site.

(a) Lease of Site: You must deliver copies of the proposed lease agreement and related
documents to us prior to signing them. You must not sign any lease agreement or related
documents unless we have previously approved them. The insurance policy required by our
System Standards must be in force and effect when the lease is signed. Additionally, before
entering into such a lease, you and the lessor must sign our then-current form of Addendum to
Lease Agreement (the “Lease Addendum®). You must give the lessor our forms of the Lease
Addendum when you begin discussions with the prospective lessor. If you want to lease the Site
from any of your affiliates (or affiliates of your principal owners), we may also require them to
sign such agreements to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.

(b) Lease Approval: You must obtain our approval of the lease of the Site (the
“Lease*) before you sign it, or any renewal of it. You must deliver a copy of the signed lease to
us within 15 days after its execution along with the Lease Addendum. You must not sign any
lease or renewal of a lease unless you have also obtained the Lease Addendum signed by the
lessor. Our review and approval of the Lease is solely to ensure that the Lease contains terms that
we accept or require for our benefit and the franchise system; it is not a substitute for careful
review and analysis by you and your advisors. Our approval of the Lease does not constitute any
warranty or assurance that the Lease contains terms and conditions for your benefit. You agree
and acknowledge that you are solely responsible for negotiating the Lease and ensuring that its
terms and conditions meet your interests and objectives. You will not terminate, modify or
amend any of the provisions or terms of the Lease without our prior written consent. Any attempt
at termination, modification or amendment of any of the terms without such written consent is
null and void.
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(c) Mandatory Lease Terms: We may require that the Lease or any renewal contain

certain provisions that:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

expressly permits the lessor of the Site to provide us with all revenue and
other information it may have related to the operation of your
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant as we may request;

requires the lessor to contemporaneously provide us with copies of any
written notice of default under the Lease sent to you and which grants to
us, at our option, the right (but not the obligation) to cure any default
under the Lease (should you fail to do so) within 15 days after the
expiration of the period in which you may cure the default;

in the event of your default of the Lease or the Franchise Agreement, and
upon written notice from us (the “Assignment Notice*) the Lease will be
assigned to us, we will become the lessee, we will be liable for all
obligations under the Lease accruing once we take possession, and the
landlord will recognize us as the lessee as of the date of the Assignment
Notice;

authorizes your right to display the Marks in accordance with the
specifications required by the Manuals, subject only to the provisions of
applicable law and your right to alter the signage at any time during the
term of the Lease, if the signage is in compliance with all applicable
governmental codes and regulations;

grant to you an easement over the property to improve, renovate, repair
and maintain the premises or replace the signage or panel on the pylon
sign;

requires that any lender or other person will not disturb your possession
of the Site so long as the Lease term continues and you are not in default
(along with such documents as are necessary to ensure that such lenders
and other persons are bound);

expressly states that any default under the Lease which is not cured
within any applicable cure period also constitutes grounds for
termination of this Agreement;

a Lease term which is at least equal to the Term, either through an initial
term of that length or rights, at your option, to renew the Lease for the
Term;

the Lease cannot be modified or canceled without our prior written
approval; and

we will be permitted unrestricted access to the Site to inspect the Art and
remove any of the Art at any time.

(d) Copies of Reports: You must also send us copies of any sales or other reports sent

to any landlord.

(e) Indemnification: You agree to indemnify and hold us and our affiliates,
stockholders, directors, officers and representatives harmless from and against any and all losses,
liabilities, claims, proceedings, demands, damages, judgments, injuries, attorneys’ fees, costs and
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expenses, that they incur resulting from any claim brought against any of them or any action
which any of them are named as a party or which any of them may suffer, sustain or incur by
reason of, or arising out of, your breach of any of the terms of the Lease, including the failure to
pay rent or any other terms and conditions of the Lease._

(f) Security Interest: You grant to us a security interest in and to all of the furniture,
fixtures, inventory and supplies located in the Restaurant, the Franchise and all of your rights,
title and interest in and to the Lease, as collateral for the payment of any obligation, liability or
other amount you or your affiliates owe to us under this Agreement. If you breach or default
under the Lease, or if we pay the lessor any money as a result of your breach of the Lease, then
you will be in breach of this Agreement. Our security interest will remain in effect until
satisfaction in full of all amounts you owe us. You agree to sign any and all Uniform
Commercial Code financing statements and all other documents and instruments we deem
necessary to perfect or document the interests and assignments granted in this Agreement.

(g) No Subordination: You will not permit the Lease or our security interest to become
subordinate to any other lien without first obtaining our written consent, other than the lien
created by this Agreement, the lessor’s lien under the Lease, liens securing bank financing for
your operations on the Site and the agreements and other instruments referenced in this
Agreement.

(h) Exercise of Remedies: In any case of your default under the terms of the Lease or
under this Agreement, we are entitled to exercise any one or more of the following remedies in
our sole discretion:

(1) to take possession of the Site, or any part thereof, personally, or by our
agents or attorneys;

(i1) to, in our discretion, without notice and with or without process of law,
enter upon and take and maintain possession of all or any part of the Site,
together with all furniture, fixtures, inventory, books, records, papers and
accounts of the Franchisee;

(ii1) to exclude you, your agents or employees from the Site;

(iv) as attorney-in-fact for you, or in our own name, and under the powers
herein granted, to hold, operate, manage and control the Restaurant and
conduct the business, if any, thereof, either personally or by its agents,
with full power to use such measures, legally rectifiable, as in its
discretion may be deemed proper or necessary to cure such default,
including actions of forcible entry or detainer and actions in distress of
rent, granting full power and authority to us to exercise each and every of
the rights, privileges and powers herein granted at any and all times
hereafter;

v) to cancel or terminate any unauthorized agreements or subleases entered
into by you, for any cause or ground which would entitle us to cancel the
same;

(vi) to disaffirm any unauthorized agreement, sublease or subordinated lien,
to make all necessary or proper repairs, decorating, renewals,
replacements, alterations, additions, betterments and improvements to the
Site that may seem judicious, in our sole judgment;

(vii)  at our option, with or without prior notice to you, enter the Site and
remove the Art, at your expense;
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(viii)  to insure and reinsure the same for all risks incidental to our possession,
operation and management thereof; and/or

(ix) notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, to declare all of your
rights, but not obligations under the Agreement, to be immediately
terminated as of the date of your default under the Lease.

(i) Power of Attorney: You irrevocably appoint us as your true and lawful
attorney-in-fact in your name and stead and hereby authorize us, upon any default under the
Lease or under this Agreement, with or without taking possession of the Site, to rent, lease,
manage and operate the Site to any person, firm or corporation upon such terms and conditions
as, in our discretion, we may determine, and with the same rights and powers and immunities,
exoneration of liability and rights of recourse and indemnity as we would have upon taking
possession of the Site pursuant to the provisions set forth in the Lease. The power of attorney
conferred upon us pursuant to this Agreement is a power coupled with an interest and cannot be
revoked, modified or altered without the written consent of the Franchisor.

(j) No Warranty: You acknowledge that our approval of the Site and the Lease does
not constitute a guarantee or warranty, express or implied, of the successful operation or
profitability of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant operated at the Site. Such approval indicates
only that we believe that the Site and the terms of the Lease fall within the acceptable criteria we
have established as of the time of our approval. You further acknowledge that we have advised
you to have an attorney review and evaluate the Lease.

3.4. Ownership and Financing. Instead of leasing a Site, you may propose to purchase and
own any or all of a Site directly, or through affiliates. The insurance required by this Agreement and our
System Standards must be in force and effect when you begin construction of your Restaurant. If at any
time prior to acquisition, or subsequently, you or your affiliates propose to obtain any financing with respect
to the Site or for your FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant or for any Operating Assets in which any of such
items are pledged as collateral securing your performance, the form of any purchase contract with the seller
of a Site and any related documents, and the form of any loan agreement with or mortgage in favor of any
lender and any related documents, must be approved by us before you sign them. Our consent to them may
be conditioned upon the inclusion of various terms and conditions, including the following:

(a) a provision which requires any lender or mortgagee concurrently to provide us with a
copy of any written notice of deficiency or default under the terms of the loan or mortgage sent to
you or your affiliates or the purchaser;

(b) a provision granting us, at our option, the right (but not the obligation) to cure any
deficiency or default under the loan or mortgage (should you fail to do so) within 15 days after
the expiration of a period in which you may cure such default or deficiency; and

(c) a provision which expressly states that any default under the loan or mortgage, if not
cured within the applicable time period, constitutes a default under this Agreement and grounds
for termination of this Agreement if not cured.

4. RESTAURANT DEVELOPMENT, DECOR AND OPERATING ASSETS.

4.1. Restaurant Development. You are responsible for developing the Restaurant. We will
furnish you with mandatory and suggested specifications and layouts for a FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant, including requirements for dimensions, design, color scheme, image, interior layout, decor, and
Operating Assets which include fixtures, equipment, signs, and furnishings. You are obligated, at your
expense, to have an architect prepare all required construction plans and specifications to suit the shape and
dimensions of the Site and to ensure that such plans and specifications comply with applicable ordinances,
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building codes, permit requirements, lease requirements and restrictions, and the mandatory specifications
and layout provided by us. You agree to, at our option, assign to us, or require your architect to assign to us,
the plans, drawings or designs, used by you in connection with the Restaurant, or at our option, obtain the
architect’s agreement to license to us such plans, drawings or designs for use in connection with the
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. You will not hire, engage or use any construction firm, contractor or
architect that we disapprove.

You agree, at your own expense, to do the following with respect to developing the Restaurant at the
Site:

(a) secure all financing required to develop and operate the Restaurant;

(b) obtain all building, utility, sign, health, sanitation, business and other permits and
licenses required to construct and operate the Restaurant;

(¢) construct (the “Construction) all required improvements to the Site and decorate
the Restaurant in compliance with plans and specifications we have approved;

(d) you must give us notice of commencement of the Construction within 10 days of the
date it began, with progress reports supporting the findings at least every 2 weeks; thereafter.

(e) the Construction must be completed within 365 days of our approval of the Site
(unless we agree otherwise);

(f) sign a lease or otherwise obtain the right to occupy the Site within 12 months of the
Agreement date;

(g) purchase or lease and install all Operating Assets required for the Restaurant;

(h) purchase an opening inventory of authorized and approved products, materials and
supplies; and

(i) purchase from us (or our designees) the paintings, pictures, photographs, murals,
drawings, sculptures and other forms of art we designate, for display at your Site and install it at
the Restaurant in accordance with our specifications at your expense.

4.2.  Décor. You agree that all decor of your FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant must be
previously approved by us and must comply with our standards as described in the Manuals or other
communications, which may be periodically revised. We own all copyrights in and to all forms of art
displayed in the Restaurant including murals, paintings, pictures, drawings, sculptures, and photographs that
we direct you to display (including the firehouse themed mural commissioned for the Restaurant) (the
“Art“), as well as all intellectual property rights in and to the Art. You will not allow any of the Art to
become a fixture to the Restaurant and you will not display or use the Art in any Competitive Business or
restaurant of any kind. Your failure to maintain the Restaurant’s decor in compliance with our System and
the standards described in the Manuals or otherwise, constitutes a material breach of this Agreement.

4.3. Operating Assets and Restaurant Materials. You must acquire all supplies, materials
and food and beverage products for use in connection with your FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant
(collectively, the “Restaurant Materials*) and all fixtures, furnishings, equipment signs, Art and cash
registers, telecopiers and computer hardware and software (the “Operating Assets) from us (or our
affiliates) or suppliers we have previously approved. We will only approve suppliers whose Restaurant
Materials and Operating Assets meet the quality standards that we establish from time to time. You will
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only place or display at the Site (interior and exterior) such signs, emblems, lettering, logos and display
materials that we periodically approve.

4.4, Changes to Approved Suppliers. If you want to propose a new supplier of Restaurant
Materials or Operating Assets, you must submit to us sufficient written information about the proposed new
supplier to enable us to approve or reject either the supplier or the particular items. If we have not responded
within 30 days of our receipt of the information, then the application will be deemed rejected by us. We may
consider in providing such approval not just the quality standards of the products or services, but their
delivery capabilities, financing terms and ability to service our franchise system as a whole. We may
terminate or withhold approval of any Restaurant Materials or Operating Assets, or any supplier of such
items, that does not meet our quality standards by giving you written notice. If we do so, you must
immediately stop purchasing from such supplier or using such Restaurant Materials or Operating Assets in
your FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant until we notify you that such supplier or such Restaurant Materials
or Operating Assets meet our quality standards. At our request, you must submit to us sufficient information
about a proposed supplier and samples of the proposed Restaurant Materials or Operating Assets for our
examination so that we can determine whether they meet our quality standards. We also must have the right
to require our representatives to be permitted to inspect the proposed supplier’s facilities at your expense.
We may charge a fee for evaluating alternative suppliers of $250 per day for personnel time plus laboratory
fees, professional fees and travel and living expenses as well as any other fees we pay to third parties in
furtherance of the evaluation.

4.5. Restaurant Opening. You agree not to open the Restaurant for business until:

(a) we approve the Restaurant as developed in accordance with our specifications and
standards;

(b) pre-opening training has been completed to our satisfaction and you provide us with
evidence you and your management personnel have completed training at authorized facilities;

(c) the initial franchise fee and all other amounts then due to us, your landlord,
governmental authorities and our suppliers have been paid;

(d) you have obtained all required building, utility, sign, health, sanitation, business
permits, certificates and licenses required to operate the Restaurant;

(e) we have been furnished with copies of all insurance policies required by this
Agreement, or such other evidence of insurance coverage and payment of premiums as we
request or accept; and

(f) we have received signed counterparts of all required documents pertaining to your
acquisition of the Site (including any required agreements between you and us).

(g) we have provided you with written authorization to open the Restaurant for business.

You agree to open the Restaurant for business no later than 12 months after you have located an approved
Site for your Restaurant (unless we agree otherwise).

4.6. Market Introduction Program. We may require you to conduct a market introduction
advertising and promotional program for the Restaurant after its opening and to expend up to $5,000 for
such purpose, exclusive of the cost of food, that we specify for use in the market introduction program. The
market introduction may be conducted over an approximate 12-month period which will be determined by
us. Such advertising and promotion will utilize the marketing and public relations programs and media and
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advertising materials we have developed or approved, and is separate from your other marketing and
advertising requirements.

5. FEES.

5.1 Initial Franchise Fee. You agree to pay us a nonrecurring and nonrefundable initial
franchise fee in the amount of $20,000. The initial franchise fee is nonrefundable and is fully earned by
us when paid. The initial franchise fee must be paid on the Agreement Date. If you fail to satisfactorily
complete the initial training, we will terminate the Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated for any
reason, you will sign a general release, in form satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our
shareholders, officers, directors, employees and agents.

5.2. Royalty. You agree to pay us a royalty (“Royalty*) in the amount of 6% of your
Restaurant’s Gross Sales during each Accounting Period. On the 3™ day (the “Report Day*) of each
Accounting Period, you must report the amount of your Gross Sales for the preceding Accounting Period.
“Accounting Period“ is that period we designate in the Manual (currently a 7-day accounting period for
Royalty and Marketing calculations that runs from Monday through Sunday and a 4, 4, 5-week accounting
period for financial statement purposes). You must pay us the Royalty so that we receive it on or before the
3 business day following the end of each Accounting Period (the “Payment Day*) (currently Wednesday)
for the immediately preceding Accounting Period.

5.3. Electronic Funds Transfer. We may require you to pay any amounts due us, including
the Royalties, to us by electronic funds transfer on the due date. You must comply with the procedures we
specify in our Manuals and perform such acts and sign and deliver such documents as may be necessary to
accomplish payment by this method. On the Report Day designated in the Manual (currently Wednesday),
you must report to us by telephone or electronic means or on written form, as we direct, the Restaurant’s true
and correct Gross Sales for the immediately preceding week. We may require you to give us authorization,
in a form that we designate, to initiate debit entries or credit correction entries to the Restaurant’s bank
operating account (the “Account®) for payments of Royalties and other amounts due under this Agreement,
including any applicable interest charges. If so, you must make the funds available in the Account for
withdrawal by electronic transfer no later than the Payment Day. The amount actually transferred from the
Account to pay Royalties will be based on the Restaurant’s Gross Sales reported to us on the Report Day. If
you have not reported the Restaurant’s Gross Sales to us for any reporting period, we may transfer from the
Account an amount calculated in accordance with our reasonable estimate of the Restaurant’s Gross Sales
during any such reporting period. If we determine at any time that you have under-reported Gross Sales or
underpaid Royalties or other amounts due to us, we will be authorized to immediately initiate a transfer from
the Account in the appropriate amount in accordance with the foregoing procedures, including applicable
interest and late charges. Any overpayment will be credited to the Account through a credit, effective as of
the first Report Day after you and we determine that such credit is due.

5.4. Definition of “Gross Sales.” As used in this Agreement, the term “Gross Sales” means
the total actual gross charges for all products (food and non-food) and services sold to customers of the
Restaurant for cash or credit, whether these sales are made at or from the Restaurant premises, or any
other location. However, any amounts that you collect and transmit to state or local authorities as sales,
use or other similar taxes are excluded from the definition of Gross Sales.

5.5. Management Information System Fees. On or before 1% day of January of each year,
you must pay us $1,200 (the “MIS Fee*) for the use of our mandated management information system
(“MIS*). Upon signing this Agreement, you must pay us a proportionate share of the MIS Fee to cover
the period from the date of the Agreement through December 31 of that year and commence the annual
MIS Fee on January 1 of the next year. For example, if the Agreement Date is August 1, then you must
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immediately pay us $500 to cover the period August 1 through December 31 or 5/12 of $1,200. We will
maintain the MIS. This fee does not cover, and we will not perform, bookkeeping, reporting or tax return
services.

5.6. Interest on Late Payments. All amounts which you owe us, including but not limited to
Royalties, MIS Fees, System Contributions and Co-op Contributions, will bear interest after their due date at
the annual rate of eighteen 18% or the highest contract rate of interest permitted by law, whichever is less.
You acknowledge that we do not agree to accept any payments after they are due nor commit to extend
credit to, or otherwise finance your operation of, the Restaurant. Your failure to pay all amounts when due
constitutes grounds for termination of this Agreement.

5.7.  Late Payment Penalties. All Royalties, System Contributions, amounts due for purchases
by you from us, and any interest accrued thereon, and any other amounts which you owe us, or our affiliates,
are subject to a late payment fee of $250 for payment or report received by us 5 days after its due date. The
late payment fee is due immediately on any delinquent payments and for dishonored checks. The provision
in this Agreement concerning late payment fees does not mean that we accept or condone late payments, nor
does it indicate that we are willing to extend credit to, or otherwise finance, the operation of your Restaurant.
In the event that you are delinquent in providing payment or reports during any 2 or more Accounting
Periods, we may require you to pay all amounts due us by electronic transfer or cashier’s check.

5.8. Application of Payments. Notwithstanding any designation you might make, we have
sole discretion to apply any of your payments to any of your past due indebtedness to us. You acknowledge
and agree that we have the right to set off any amounts you or your owners owe us against any amounts we
might owe you or your owners.

5.9. Payment Offsets. We may setoff from any amounts that we may owe you any amount that
you owe to us, or our affiliates, for any reason whatsoever, including without limitation, Royalties, System
Contributions, late payment penalties and late payment interest, amounts owed to us or our affiliates for
purchases or services or for any other reason. Thus, payments that we make to you may be reduced, in our
discretion, by amounts that you owe to us or our affiliates from time to time. In particular, we may retain (or
direct to our affiliates) any amounts that we have received for your account as a credit and payment against
any amounts that you may owe to us, or our affiliates, at any time. We may do so without notice to you at
any time. However, you do not have the right to offset payments owed to us for amounts purportedly due to
you from us.

6. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE.

6.1. Initial Training. Before the Restaurant opens, we will furnish initial training on the
operation of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant to you and 1 other person (or, if you are a Business Entity,
up to 2 of your owners). If space is available at such training session, we will furnish initial training for up
to 3 additional people at no additional charge. The training lasts for 6 to 8 weeks and will be furnished at our
designated training facility and/or at an operating FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant, as we specify. You, or
your owners, are required to complete the initial training to our satisfaction. Otherwise, attendance by your
employees is optional. Successful completion of the initial training program by you, or your owners, is a
condition to the opening of the FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant to the public. You also are required to
participate in all other activities required to operate the Restaurant. Although we will furnish initial training
to you, or your owners, at no additional fee or other charge, you will be responsible for all travel and living
expenses which such persons incur in connection with training. You agree to replace any manager if we
determine that he or she is not qualified to manage the Restaurant. If we determine that you, or your owners,
are unable to complete initial training to our satisfaction, we have the right to terminate this Agreement. All
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persons attending initial training are required to sign our standard Liability Waiver and Release, a copy of
which is attached as Exhibit “B.”

6.2. Periodic Training. We may require you, or your owners, to attend periodic refresher
training courses at such times and locations that we designate, and we may charge fees for such courses.
You agree to give us reasonable assistance in training other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant franchisees.
We will reimburse you for your reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in providing such assistance. All persons
attending periodic training are required to sign our standard Liability Waiver and Release, a copy of which is
attached as Exhibit “B.”

6.3. General Guidance. We will advise you from time to time regarding the operation of the
Restaurant based on reports you submit to us or inspections we make. In addition, we will furnish guidance
to you with respect to:

(a) standards, specifications and operating procedures and methods utilized by
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants;

(b) purchasing required fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs, products, materials and
supplies;

(c) recipes, food preparation methods, and menu items;

(d) use of suppliers, approved products, volume buying;

(e) advertising and marketing programs;

(f) methods and techniques for you to use when you train your personnel; and
(g) administrative, bookkeeping and accounting procedures.

Such guidance will, at our discretion, be furnished in our Manual, bulletins or other written materials and/or
during telephone consultations, e-mails, web-based or other electronic means and/or consultations at our
office or the Restaurant.

At your request, we will furnish additional guidance and assistance and, in such a case, may charge
the per diem fees and charges we establish from time to time. If you request additional or special training for
your employees, all of the expenses that we incur in connection with such training, including per diem
charges and travel and living expenses for our personnel, will be your responsibility. However, you are
solely responsible for training all of your employees and ensuring they are fully trained to perform their
duties. We do not require your employees to attend our training programs.

7. MARKS.

7.1. Ownership and Goodwill of Marks and the Art. Your right to use the Marks and the
Art is derived solely from this Agreement and limited to your operation of the Restaurant at the Site pursuant
to and in compliance with this Agreement and all System Standards we prescribe from time to time during
the Term. Your unauthorized use of the Marks and the Art will be a breach of this Agreement and an
infringement of our rights in and to the Marks and the Art. You acknowledge and agree that your usage of
the Marks and the Art and any goodwill established by such use will be exclusively for our benefit and that
this Agreement does not confer any goodwill or other interests in the Marks or the Art upon you (other than
the right to operate the Restaurant in compliance with this Agreement). All provisions of this Agreement
applicable to the Marks and the Art apply to any additional proprietary trade and service marks, Art and
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commercial symbols we authorize you to use. If you commission any Art for your Site or for any use in
connection with the operation of your Restaurant, you will be responsible for requiring the artist and any
other person who may claim copyrights, moral rights, privacy rights, publicity rights or any other intellectual
property rights in or to that Art (including any aspect of the content or composition of it), to assign to us all
rights, title and interest in and to the Art. To the extent such assignment is not possible or obtainable, you
must require that such persons failing to grant to us such assignment grant to us an unconditional, royalty
free, world-wide, multi-site, multi user, irrevocable, freely assignable license to use, license, modify,
reproduce, make commercial use of, and make derivative works from or of, the Art and all attributes of and
to it. You agree to, prior to commissioning, utilizing, purchasing or licensing any Art, require all persons
who claim intellectual property, privacy, publicity or moral rights in or to the Art (other than us) sign such
assignments or licenses as we may designate from time to time. Between you and us, you agree that we will
be deemed to own all aspects of the physical embodiment of the Art. We may also hire artists to commission
the Art and you will be required to pay to us our then current fees for commissioning shipment or installation
of the Art, which will be due, at our option, prior to commencement of the work by the artist, or prior to
shipment, upon delivery or otherwise in accordance with applicable policies and procedures we may
establish from time to time. Your payment to us of fees for commissioning the Art will not be deemed your
purchase of the Art and only constitutes payment to us to help, in whole or in part, offset our cost to
commission the Art. You acknowledge and agree that title to all of the Art is and will at all times remain
with and be held solely by us, and you neither have nor will make any claim with respect to the
ownership of the Art. You will not (i) make any express or implied representations to any person that you
own the Art or have rights in or to it that are superior to our rights in and to it, (ii) grant or purport to
grant any security interest or lien in or on any of the Art to any other person, or (iii) permit or suffer to
exist any lien on any of the Art in favor of any other person. You must discharge at your expense any lien
asserted against the Art (other than liens imposed thereon by our acts or omissions) and to take such steps
as may be necessary, from time to time, to preserve all of our rights in the Art against third parties.

7.2. Limitations on Your Use of Marks. You agree to use the Marks we designate and in the
manner we designate as the sole identification of the Restaurant, except that you agree to identify yourself as
the independent owner in the manner we prescribe. You may not use modifying words, terms, designs or
symbols (other than logos we license to you), or in any modified form, nor may you use any Mark in
connection with the performance or sale of any unauthorized services or products or in any other manner we
have not expressly authorized in writing. No Mark may be used in any advertising concerning the transfer,
sale or other disposition of the Restaurant or an ownership interest in you. You agree to display the Marks
prominently in the manner we prescribe at the Restaurant, on supplies or materials we designate and in
connection with forms and advertising and marketing materials. You agree to give such notices of trade and
service mark registrations as we specify and to obtain any fictitious or assumed name registrations required
under applicable law.

7.3. Notification of Infringements and Claims. You agree to notify us immediately of any
apparent infringement or challenge to your use of any Mark, or of any claim by any person of any rights in
or to any Mark, and you agree not to communicate with any person other than us, our attorneys and your
attorneys in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim. We have sole discretion to take
such action as we deem appropriate and the right to control exclusively any litigation, U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office or U.S. Copyright Office proceeding or any other administrative proceeding arising out of
any such infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating to any Mark. You agree to sign any and all
instruments and documents, render such assistance and do such acts and things as, in the opinion of our
attorneys, may be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our interests in any litigation or Patent and
Trademark Office, U.S. Copyright Office or other proceeding or otherwise to protect and maintain our
interests in the Marks.

7.4. Discontinuance of Use of Marks. If it becomes advisable at any time in our sole
discretion for us and/or you to modify or discontinue the use of any Mark and/or use one or more additional
or substitute trade or service marks, including the complete replacement of any Mark and usage of other
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marks (due to merger, acquisition or otherwise), you agree to comply with our directions within a reasonable
time after receiving notice. We will not reimburse you for any loss of revenue attributable to any modified
or discontinued Mark or for any expenditures you make to change Marks or to promote a modified or
substitute trademark or service mark.

7.5. Indemnification. We will indemnify you against and reimburse you for all damages for
which you are held liable to third parties in any proceeding arising out of your authorized use of any of our
Marks, pursuant to and in compliance with this Agreement, resulting from claims by third parties that your
use of any of the Marks infringes their trademark rights, and for all costs you reasonably incur in the defense
of any such claim in which you are named as a party, so long as you have timely notified us of the claim and
have otherwise complied with the terms of this Agreement. We will not indemnify you against the
consequences of your use of the Marks except in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. You
must provide written notice to us of any such claim within 10 days of your receipt of such notice and you
must tender the defense of the claim to us. We will have the right to defend any such claim and if we do so,
we will have no obligation to indemnify or reimburse you for any fees or disbursements of any attorney
retained by you. If we elect to defend the claim, we will have the right to manage the defense of the claim
including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether to appeal
a final determination of the claim.

8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

8.1. Types of Confidential Information. We possess (and will continue to develop and
acquire) certain confidential information (the “Confidential Information®) relating to the development and
operation of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, which includes (without limitation):

(a) the System and the know-how related to its use;

(b) plans, specifications, size and physical characteristics of FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants;

(c) site selection criteria and site development methods;
(d) methods in obtaining licensing and meeting regulatory requirements;
(e) sources and design of equipment, furniture, forms, materials and supplies;

(f) marketing, advertising and promotional programs for FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants;

(g) any computer software we make available or recommend for FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants;

(h) methods, techniques, formats, specifications, procedures, information and systems
related to and knowledge of and experience in the development, operation and franchising of
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants;

(1) knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of certain products, materials, supplies,
furniture, furnishings and equipment;

(j) recipes, formulas, preparation methods and serving techniques;
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(k) knowledge of operating results and financial performance of FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants other than those operated by you (or your affiliates); and

() e-commerce related data (e.g., customer data, click-stream data, cookies, user data,
hits and the like).

(m) patents and copyrights secured by us or our affiliates.

8.2. Disclosure and Limitations on Use. We will disclose much of the Confidential
Information to you and personnel of the Restaurant by furnishing the Manuals to you and by providing
training, guidance and assistance to you. In addition, in the course of the operation of your Restaurant, you
or your personnel may develop ideas, concepts, methods, techniques or improvements (“Improvements‘)
relating to your Restaurant, which you agree to disclose to us. We will be deemed to own the Improvements
and may use them and authorize you and others to use them in the operation of FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants. Improvements will then also constitute Confidential Information.

8.3. Confidentiality Obligations. You agree that your relationship with us does not vest in
you any interest in the Confidential Information other than the right to use it in the development and
operation of your Restaurant, and that the use or duplication of the Confidential Information in any other
business would constitute an unfair method of competition. You acknowledge and agree that the
Confidential Information is proprietary, includes trade secrets belonging to us and is disclosed to you or
authorized for your use solely on the condition that you agree, and you therefore do agree, that you:

(a) will not use the Confidential Information in any other business or capacity;

(b) will maintain the absolute confidentiality of the Confidential Information during and
after the Term;

(c) will not make unauthorized copies of any portion of the Confidential Information
disclosed via electronic medium, in written form or in other tangible form, including, for
example, the Manuals; and

(d) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures we may prescribe from time to
time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information, including
restrictions on disclosure to your employees and the use of nondisclosure and noncompetition
agreements we may prescribe for employees or others who have access to the Confidential
Information.

8.4.  Exceptions to Confidentiality. The restrictions on your disclosure and use of the
Confidential Information will not apply to the following:

(a) disclosure or use of information, processes, or techniques which are generally known
and used in the Restaurant business (as long as the availability is not because of a disclosure by
you), provided that you have first given us written notice of your intended disclosure and/or use;
and

(b) disclosure of the Confidential Information in judicial or administrative proceedings
when and only to the extent you are legally compelled to disclose it, provided that you have first
given us the opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order or other assurance satisfactory
to us that the information required to be disclosed will be treated confidentially.
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9. EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP.

You acknowledge and agree that we would be unable to protect Confidential Information against
unauthorized use or disclosure or to encourage a free exchange of ideas and information among
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants if franchised owners of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants were
permitted to hold interests in or perform services for a Competitive Business (defined below). You also
acknowledge that we have granted the Franchise to you in consideration of and reliance upon your
agreement to deal exclusively with us. You agree that, during the Term, neither you nor any of your owners
(nor any of your or your owners’ spouses or children) will:

(a) have any direct or indirect interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner in a
Competitive Business operating within 2 miles of the Site;

(b) have any direct or indirect controlling interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner in a
Competitive Business, wherever located;

(c) have any direct or indirect interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner in a

Competitive Business operating within 10 miles of any FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant other
than the Restaurant;

(d) perform services as a director, officer, manager, employee, consultant, representative,
agent or otherwise for a Competitive Business, wherever located; or

(e) recruit or hire any person who is our employee or the employee of any FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant without obtaining the prior written permission of that person’s employer.

The term “Competitive Business” as used in this Agreement means any business or facility owning,
operating or managing, or granting franchises or licenses to others to do so, any Restaurant or food service
facility that offers casual dining and take-out of sandwiches, salads or any type of deli foods and beverages
(other than a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant operated under a franchise agreement with us).

10. OPERATION AND SYSTEM STANDARDS.

10.1. Operations Manual. We will loan you, during the Term, one copy of our manuals (the
“Manuals®), consisting of such materials (including, as applicable, audiotapes, videotapes, magnetic
media, computer software and written materials) that we generally furnish to franchisees from time to
time for use in operating a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant. The Manuals contain mandatory and
suggested specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules (“System Standards®) that we
prescribe from time to time for the operation of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant and information
relating to your other obligations under this Agreement and related agreements. To the extent any of the
System Standards, or other resources in the Manuals, address personnel or employment matters, those are
not mandatory but are merely recommendations, suggestions or guidelines. System Standards do not
include any mandatory requirements on your employees’ wages, working conditions, hours, staffing
levels, shift timing or other terms of employment; but may specify uniforms and appearance to meet
brand standards. You agree to follow the standards, specifications and operating procedures we establish
periodically for the FIREHOUSE SUBS® System that are described in the Manuals. You also must
comply with all updates and amendments to the FIREHOUSE SUBS® System as described in newsletters
or notices we distribute, including via computer systems. You must maintain the Manuals as confidential
and maintain the information in the Manuals as secret and confidential. The Manuals may be modified,
updated and revised from time to time to reflect changes in System Standards. You agree to keep your
copy of the Manuals current and in a secure location at the Restaurant. In the event of a dispute relating
to its contents, the master copy of the Manuals we maintain at our principal office will be controlling.
You may not at any time copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce any part of the Manuals. If your
copy of the Manuals is lost, destroyed or significantly damaged, you agree to obtain a replacement copy
at our then applicable charge.
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10.2. Compliance with System Standards. You acknowledge and agree that your operation

and maintenance of the Restaurant in accordance with System Standards are essential to preserve the
goodwill of the Marks and all FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. Therefore, at all times during the Term,
you agree to operate and maintain the Restaurant in accordance with each and every System Standard, as we
periodically modify and supplement them during the Term. System Standards may regulate any one or more
of the following with respect to the Restaurant:

(a) design, layout, decor, appearance and lighting; periodic maintenance, cleaning and
sanitation; periodic remodeling; replacement of obsolete or worn-out leasehold improvements,
fixtures, furnishings, equipment and signs; periodic painting; and use of interior and exterior
signs, emblems, lettering and logos, and illumination;

(b) types, models and brands of required fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs,
software, materials and supplies;

(¢) required or authorized products and product categories including for all food and
beverage items and portions devoted to each supplier of products;

(d) designated or approved suppliers (which may include us) of fixtures, furnishings, Art,
equipment, signs, software, products, ingredients, materials and supplies including for all food
and beverage items;

(e) terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of, and terms and methods of payment
for, products, materials, supplies and services that you obtain from us, unaffiliated suppliers or
others;

(f) sales, marketing, advertising and promotional programs and materials and media used
in such programs;

(g) use and display of the Marks;

(h) matters relating to managing the Restaurant, and dress and appearance of employees
(all other matters pertaining to employment are suggestions or recommendations only);

(i) days and hours of operation of the Restaurant;

(j) participation in market research and testing and product and service development
programs;

(k) acceptance of credit cards, gift certificates, coupons, other payment systems and
check verification services;

() bookkeeping, accounting, data processing and record keeping systems, including
software, and forms; methods, formats, content and frequency of reports to us of sales, revenue,
financial performance and condition; and furnishing tax returns and other operating and financial
information to us;

(m) types, amounts, terms and conditions of insurance coverage required to be carried for
the Restaurant and standards for underwriters of policies providing required insurance coverage;
our protection and rights under such policies as an additional named insured; required or
impermissible insurance contract provisions; assignment of policy rights to us; periodic
verification of insurance coverage that must be furnished to us; our right to obtain insurance
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coverage for the Restaurant at your expense if you fail to obtain required coverage; our right to
defend claims; and similar matters relating to insured and uninsured claims;

(n) the maximum prices you may charge and advertise for certain menu items;

(o) complying with applicable laws; obtaining required licenses and permits; adhering to
good business practices; observing high standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical
business conduct in all dealings with customers, suppliers and us; and notifying us if any action,
suit or proceeding is commenced against you or the Restaurant; and

(p) regulation of such other aspects of the operation and maintenance of the Restaurant
that we determine from time to time to be useful to preserve or enhance the efficient operation,

image or goodwill of the Marks and FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants.

You agree to abide by all System Standards prescribed from time to time in the Manual, or
otherwise communicated to you in writing or other tangible form. All references to compliance with this
Agreement include compliance with all System Standards as periodically modified.

10.3. Modification of System Standards. We may periodically modify System Standards,
which may accommodate regional or local variations as we determine, and any such modifications may
obligate you to invest additional capital in the Restaurant (“Capital Modifications*) and/or incur higher
operating costs; provided, however, that such modifications will not alter your fundamental status and rights
under this Agreement. We agree to give you 30 days to comply with Capital Modifications we require, but
if a Capital Modification requires an expenditure of more than $2,500 we agree to give you 3 months from
the date such request is made to comply with such Capital Modification. You are obligated to comply with
all modifications to System Standards within the time period we specify. We will not require you to spend
more than $150,000 during the term of this Agreement in connection with Capital Modifications. Capital
Modifications are in addition to the costs you will incur to repair, replace or refurbish your equipment and
fixtures from time to time. Capital Modifications do not include any expenditures you must, or choose to
make solely in order to comply with applicable laws, or governmental rules or regulations (e.g. ADA
compliance).

10.4. Interior and Exterior Upkeep. You must at all times maintain the Restaurant’s interior
and exterior and the surrounding area in the highest degree of cleanliness, orderliness and sanitation and
comply with the requirements regarding the upkeep of the Restaurant established in the Manuals and by
federal, state and local laws.

10.5. Hours of Operation. You must operate the Restaurant during the hours and on the days
prescribed by us in the Manuals or otherwise approved in advance in writing by us.

10.6. Accounting, Computers and Records. You must obtain your accounting services and any
required hardware or software related to them. You must at all times maintain the records reasonably
specified in the Manuals, including, without limitation, sales, inventory and expense information. You must
report gross sales and other business information to us using the format, reporting system and accounting
system (the “Accounting System*) that we require from time to time. The Accounting System resides at a
location we designate, and you must establish access to the Accounting System via the Internet at your cost,
with your own internet service provider, with access via IDSL or such other means or baud width we
designate. You must use in developing and operating the Restaurant the computer equipment and operating
and accounting software (the “Computer System) that we periodically specify. We may require you to
obtain specified computer hardware or software and may modify specifications for any components of the
Computer System from time to time. Our modifications and specifications for components of the Computer
System may require you to incur costs to purchase, lease or license new or modified computer hardware or
software to obtain service and support for the Computer System during the Term. You agree to incur such
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costs in connection with obtaining the computer hardware and software comprising the Computer System (or
additions or modifications) as long as the Computer System we specify for use is the same Computer
System that we, or our affiliates, then currently use in FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants that we, or they,
own and operate. Within 30 days after you receive notice from us, you must obtain the components of the
Computer System that we designate and require. The Computer System must be capable of connecting with
our computer system so that we can daily review the results of your Restaurant’s operations. We also have
the right to charge you a reasonable systems fee (the “MIS Fees*) for modifications of and enhancements
made to any proprietary software that we license to you and other maintenance and support services that we,
or our affiliates, furnish to you related to the Computer System, including access to and use of the
FIREHOUSE SUBS® intranet system. You must: (a) supply us with any and all codes, passwords, and
information necessary to have access to your Computer System and not change any of them without first
notifying us; and (b) not load or utilize any software on the Computer System that we have not specified or
approved for use.

10.7. Trade Accounts and Taxes. You must: (a) maintain your trade accounts in a current
status and seek to resolve any disputes with trade suppliers promptly; and (b) timely pay all taxes incurred in
connection with your Restaurant’s operations. Your failure to do so is a material breach of this Agreement.
If you fail to maintain your trade accounts in a current status, timely pay such taxes or any other amounts
owing to any third parties or perform any non-monetary obligations to third parties, we may, but are not
required to, pay any and all such amounts and perform such obligations on your behalf. If we elect to do so,
then you must reimburse us for such amounts. You agree to repay us immediately upon receipt of our
invoice. We may also set-off the amount of any such reimbursement obligations against all amounts which
we may owe you.

10.8. Proprietary Materials. You must purchase from us, or approved manufacturers or
suppliers, all articles used in operating the Restaurant and bearing any of the Marks. These items may
include employee clothing (such as shirts, hats and aprons) and menus (collectively, the “Proprietary
Materials®), at then prevailing prices, plus freight, taxes and delivery costs.

10.9. Approved Products. You must not sell any food or beverage products or other items at
the Restaurant that we have not previously approved for sale. You must only use and display menus that
have been prescribed or approved (except for prices) in advance by us. You must sell all the food and
beverage products that are included on the prescribed or approved menus, and no others. We may negotiate
group or volume purchasing arrangements with approved suppliers and you must participate in the
arrangements. We will be entitled to all rebates, bonuses and promotional benefits associated with those
programs. You must strictly follow all of our recipes for all menu items as such recipes are specified from
time to time in the Manuals or otherwise. You must not, without our prior written consent, sell, dispense,
give away or otherwise provide food or beverage products or other items except by means of retail sales or
complimentary meals to employees or customers at the Restaurant, or a program of charitable giving. You
must immediately implement changes to the products, food, service or other items requested by us, including
menu changes. You must maintain an inventory of food and beverage products sufficient to meet the daily
demands of the Restaurant for all items specified in the menus. Any and all recipes or menu changes
submitted by you for inclusion on the menus will become our property and you agree to sign all documents
necessary to convey all rights and title, including all rights in such recipes to us.

10.10. Management. Unless we agree otherwise, you, or one of your owners, must assume
responsibility for the Restaurant’s day-to-day management and operation and supervise the Restaurant’s
personnel. The Restaurant must at all times be under your, or your owner’s, direct supervision and control,
but recognizing that you will employ agents (trained management personnel) on-site who will act at your
direction. Unless we approve otherwise, the operating partner must have and retain at least 50% ownership
of the Restaurant.
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10.11. Personnel. You are solely responsible for hiring, training and supervising Restaurant
personnel and must hire sufficient personnel to fully staff the Restaurant to operate in accordance with
System Standards. All personnel must meet every requirement imposed by applicable federal, state and local
law. All persons you employ that have access to any of the Confidential Information must sign a
confidentiality agreement, that will not otherwise contain any terms or conditions of employment, in a form
satisfactory to us. You are liable to us for any unauthorized disclosure of such information by any of your
Owners, directors, employees, representatives or agents.

11. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION.

11.1. Establishment of System Fund. We may establish a System Fund (the “System Fund“)
for such advertising, marketing and public relations programs and materials on a system-wide basis that
we deem necessary or appropriate in our sole discretion. You agree to contribute to the System Fund
such amounts that we prescribe from time to time (the “System Contributions®), not to exceed 1% of
your Gross Sales per Accounting Period (except as described below), payable in the same manner as the
Royalty. We reserve the right to defer or reduce System Contributions of a FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant franchisee and, upon 30 days’ prior written notice to you, to reduce or suspend System
Contributions to and operations of the System Fund for one or more periods of any length and to
terminate (and, if terminated, to reinstate) the System Fund. If the System Fund is terminated, all unspent
monies, less any outstanding accounts payable and other obligations, on the date of termination will be
distributed to our franchisees in proportion to their respective System Contributions to the System Fund
during the preceding 12 Accounting Periods. Our affiliates will contribute to the System Fund on the
same basis as franchise owners for any FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants they own and operate.

11.2. Use of the Funds. We will direct all programs financed by the System Fund, with sole
discretion over the creative concepts, materials and endorsements, and the geographic, market and media
placement and allocation. You agree that the System Fund may be used to pay the costs of preparing and
producing video, audio and written advertising materials; administering regional and multi-regional
advertising programs, including, without limitation, purchasing direct mail and other media advertising and
employing advertising, promotion and marketing agencies; marketing and advertising training programs and
materials; and supporting public relations, market research and other advertising, promotion and marketing
activities. The System Fund periodically will furnish you with samples of advertising, marketing and
promotional formats and materials at no cost. Multiple copies of such materials will be furnished to you at
our direct cost of producing them, plus any related shipping, handling and storage charges.

11.3.  Accounting for the Fund. The System Fund will be accounted for separately from our
other funds and will not be used to defray any of our general operating expenses, except for such reasonable
salaries, administrative costs, travel expenses and overhead, including rent and utilities, as we may incur in
activities related to the administration of the System Fund and its programs, including, without limitation,
conducting market research, preparing advertising, promotion and marketing materials and collecting and
accounting for contributions to the System Fund. All interest earned on monies contributed to the System
Fund will be used to pay advertising costs before other assets of the System Fund are expended. We may
spend, on behalf of the System Fund, in any fiscal year an amount greater or less than the aggregate
contribution of all FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants to the System Fund in that year. The System Fund
may borrow from us or others to cover deficits or invest any surplus for future use. If we lend money to the
System Fund, we may charge interest at an annual rate 1% greater than the rates we pay our lenders. We
will prepare an annual statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the System Fund and furnish the
statement to you upon written request. We administer the System Fund through a separate incorporated
Florida non-profit corporation, which has all of the rights and duties specified in this Agreement. We may
change that arrangement at any time and either administer the System Fund directly or though another entity.
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11.4. System Fund Limitations. You acknowledge that the System Fund is intended to
maximize recognition of the Marks and patronage of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. Although we will
endeavor to utilize the System Fund to develop advertising and marketing materials and programs and to
place advertising that will benefit all FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, we undertake no obligation to
ensure that expenditures by the System Fund in or affecting any geographic area are proportionate or
equivalent to the contributions to the System Fund by FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operating in that
geographic area or that any FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant will benefit directly or in proportion to its
contribution to the System Fund from the development of advertising and marketing materials or the
placement of advertising. Except as expressly provided in this section, we assume no direct or indirect
liability or obligation to you with respect to maintaining, directing, administering or collecting amounts due
to the System Fund.

11.5. Advertising and Promotion. You agree that any advertising, promotion and marketing
you conduct will be completely clear and factual and not misleading and conform to the highest standards of
ethical marketing and the promotion policies which we prescribe from time to time. Samples of all
advertising, promotional and marketing materials which we have not prepared or previously approved must
be submitted to us for approval before you use them. If you do not receive written approval within 15 days
after our receipt of such materials, we will be deemed to have disapproved the materials. You may not use
any advertising or promotional materials that we have not approved. You must spend a minimum of 2% of
your Gross Sales on approved forms of local advertising and promotion, measured over continuing 6
Financial Statement Periods.

11.6. Co-op Participation and Contributions. We have established an association of
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant Franchise Owners to do joint advertising, marketing and promotion (the
“Co-0p“). You must join and actively participate in the Co-op and sign such membership documents and
agreements it requires from time to time.

You must contribute to the Co-op such amounts as are determined from time to time by
management of the Co-op, but not less than 2% of your Gross Sales. Your local advertising requirement will
be reduced by the amount that you contribute to the Co-op. You will remain responsible to the Co-op for all
contributions due through the date of the closing of any transfer of this Agreement. If you sell or close your
Restaurant at a time when you have a credit balance with the Co-op, the credit balance will not be refunded,
but will either be: (i) retained for the benefit of the other members of the Co-op if the transaction involves a
closing of your Restaurant or the termination or expiration of this Agreement; (ii) credited to the
Restaurant’s purchaser if a sale, transfer or assignment is involved; or (iii) credited to any other
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants that you own that are not closing.

The Co-op will adopt its own rules, regulations and procedures, which you must follow. All
advertising utilized by the Co-op must not be used unless and until we have reviewed and approved it. The
Co-op uses our mandated accounting system and must pay us the MIS Fee. Your failure to timely contribute
the amounts required to the Co-op constitutes a material breach of the provisions of this Agreement and we
may offset against any amounts we otherwise owe to you the amount of your Co-op contributions and pay
such contributions for you.

11.7. Websites. We have the right to control or designate the manner of your use of all URLs,
domain names, website addresses, metatags, links, key words, e-mail addresses and any other means of
electronic identification or origin (“e-names*). We also have the right to designate, approve, control or
limit all aspects of your use of the Internet, Intranet, World Wide Web, wireless technology, digital cable,
use of e-names, e-mail, home pages, bulletin boards, chatrooms, linking, framing, on-line purchasing
cooperatives, marketplaces, barter exchanges, and related technologies, methods, techniques,
registrations, networking, and any electronic communication, commerce, computations, or any means of
interactive electronic documents contained in a network of computers or similar devices linked by
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communications software or hardware (collectively, “e-commerce*). You must follow all of our policies
and procedures for the use and regulation of e-commerce. We may require that you provide graphical,
photographic, written or other forms of artistic or literary content to us for use in e-commerce activities
associated with the Marks or the System which we may designate. We may restrict your use of
e-commerce to a centralized website, portal or network or other form of e-commerce that we designate or
operate. We may require that you provide information to us via e-commerce. You agree to be bound by
any terms of use, privacy policy and copyright notice and takedown policies and the like that we establish
from time to time. We may require you to, at your expense, coordinate your e-commerce activities with
us, other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, suppliers and affiliates. We may require you to participate in
any internet or intranet networks (the “MIS System*) we establish and obtain the services of and pay the
then current fees for ISP and ASP services and the like. You recognize and agree that we own all rights,
title and interest in and to any and all websites and any e-names we commission or utilize, or require or
permit you to utilize, in connection with the System which bear our Marks or any derivative of our
Marks. You also recognize and agree that we own all rights, title and interest in and to any and all data or
other information collected via e-commerce related to the System or the Marks, including any customer
data, click-stream data, cookies, user data, hits and the like. Such data or other information also
constitutes our Confidential Information.

11.8. Promotion of the Franchise System. You agree to place any and all materials
promoting the Franchise System that we from time to time provide to you. You will place all such
materials in the manner in which we designate.

12. RECORDS, REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

12.1. Accounting System. You must deliver to us the financial and operating reports in the
form, manner, content and time we specify from time to time, including via access to the Accounting
System. You will update all information in the Accounting System at least weekly, including but not limited
to revenues, expenditures and other pertinent data. We may periodically change the Accounting System and
the suppliers of accounting services. You will make available for our review and inspection during normal
business hours all original books and records that we want to ascertain and verify financial statements or
reports. You will maintain all of your books and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. You will maintain and preserve such records during the entire Term and for 7 years following
expiration or termination of this Agreement. Such records include deposit reports and receipts, cash receipts
journal, general ledgers, cash disbursement journals, weekly payroll registers, monthly bank statements,
supplier invoices (paid and unpaid), accounts payable journals, balance sheets, profit and loss statements,
inventory records, records of wholesale accounts and such other records as we may require. We may use the
information obtained as we deem appropriate, except that information you designate as confidential will not
be disclosed to third parties in a manner that identifies you as the subject or source except: (i) with your
permission, (ii) as may be required by law, (iii) in connection with audits or collections under this
Agreement; or (iv) shared within the FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant system (you understand that we
disseminate operational and financial data throughout the system and to prospects). We may require you to
use approved computer hardware and software in order to maintain the Accounting System and other
communication processes.

12.2.  Reports. You agree to furnish to us on such forms that we prescribe from time to time:

(a) on the Report Day, a report on the Restaurant’s Gross Sales during the preceding
Accounting Period;

(b) within 20 days after the end of each Accounting Period, a profit and loss statement

for the Restaurant for the immediately preceding Accounting Period and year-to-date and a
balance sheet as of the end of such Accounting Period; and

QB\138202-:0000211-0+8244514-47499756.2_ 23
62317~



(c) within 60 days after the end of the Restaurant’s fiscal year, annual profit and loss and
source and use of funds statements and a balance sheet for the Restaurant as of the end of such
fiscal year.

12.3.  Access to Information. You agree to verify and sign each report and financial statement
in the manner we prescribe. We have the right to disclose data derived from such reports. We also have the
right to require you to have reviewed or audited financial statements prepared on an annual basis if you have
been late in making payments or sending us reports or we determine that you have understated Gross Sales
by over 2% twice or more during any 18-month period. You will provide us copies of any reviewed or
audited financial statements (if any) promptly after you receive them. Moreover, we have the right as often
as we deem appropriate (including on a daily basis) to access all computer registers and other computer
systems that you are required to maintain in connection with the operation of the Restaurant and to retrieve
all information relating to the Restaurant’s operations. At our request, you will promptly send us true and
correct copies of all federal and state income, sales, excise and other tax returns.

13. INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS.

13.1. Our Right to Inspect the Restaurant. To determine whether you and the Restaurant are
complying with this Agreement and all System Standards, we and our designated agents have the right at
any time during your regular business hours, and without prior notice to you, to:

(a) inspect the Restaurant;

(b) observe, photograph and videotape the operations of the Restaurant for such
consecutive or intermittent periods as we deem necessary;

(c) remove samples of any products, materials or supplies for testing and analysis;
(d) interview personnel and customers of the Restaurant; and

(e) inspect and copy any books, records, tax returns and documents relating to your
operation of the Restaurant.

You agree to cooperate with us fully in connection with any such inspections, observations, photographing,
videotaping, product removal and interviews. You agree to present to your customers such evaluation forms
that we periodically prescribe and to participate and/or request your customers to participate in any surveys
performed by us or on our behalf. You must immediately correct or repair any unsatisfactory conditions we

specify.

13.2.  Our_Right to Audit. We have the right at any time during your business hours, and
without prior notice to you, to inspect and audit, or cause to be inspected and audited, your (if you are a
Business Entity) and the Restaurant’s business, bookkeeping and accounting records, sales and income tax
records and returns and other records. You agree to cooperate fully with our representatives and
independent accountants we hire to conduct any such inspection or audit. You must immediately pay us any
shortfall in the amounts you owe us (regardless of the degree), including late fees and interest. You agree to
reimburse us for the cost of such inspection or audit, including, without limitation, the charges of
attorneys and independent accountants and the travel expenses, room and board and compensation of our
employees if:

(a) our inspection or audit is made necessary by your failure to furnish reports,
supporting records or other information we require, or to furnish such items on a timely basis;
and/or
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(b) our audit or inspection reveals that you understated Gross Sales by over 2%.

The foregoing remedies are in addition to our other remedies and rights under this Agreement and
applicable law.

14. TRANSFER.

14.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully transferable by us and will inure to the benefit of any
transferee or other legal successor to our interests.

14.2. By You. You understand and acknowledge that the rights and duties created by this
Agreement are personal to you (or, if you are a Business Entity, to your owners) and that we have granted
the Franchise to you in reliance upon our perceptions of your (or your owners’) individual or collective
character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability and financial capacity. Accordingly, neither this
Agreement (nor any interest in it) nor any ownership or other interest in you or the Restaurant may be
transferred without our prior written approval. Any transfer without such approval constitutes a breach of
this Agreement and is void and of no effect. As used in this Agreement, the term “transfer includes your
(or your owners’) voluntary, involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale, gift or other disposition of any
interest in: (a) this Agreement; (b) you; or (c) the Restaurant.

An assignment, sale, gift or other disposition includes the following events:

1) transfer of ownership of 10% or more of any capital stock or a
partnership interest or any other interest that affects control over the
Business Entity;

(i1) merger or consolidation or issuance of additional securities or interests
representing an ownership interest in you,

(iii) any issuance or sale of your stock or any security convertible to your
stock;

(iv) transfer of an interest in you, this Agreement or the Restaurant in a
divorce, insolvency or corporate or partnership dissolution proceeding or
otherwise by operation of law;

v) transfer of an interest in you, this Agreement or the Restaurant, in the
event of your death or the death of one of your owners, by will,
declaration of or transfer in trust or under the laws of intestate
succession; or

(vi) pledge of this Agreement (to someone other than us) or of an ownership
interest in you as security, foreclosure upon the Restaurant or your
transfer, surrender or loss of possession, control or management of the
Restaurant.

14.3. Conditions for Approval of Transfer. If you (and your owners) are in full compliance
with this Agreement, then subject to the other provisions of this Section , we will approve a transfer that
meets all the applicable requirements of this Section. The proposed transferee and its direct and indirect
owners must be individuals of good character and otherwise meet our then applicable standards for
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant franchisees. A transfer of ownership, possession or control of the
Restaurant may be made only in conjunction with a transfer of this Agreement. If the transfer is of this
Agreement or a controlling interest in you, or is one of a series of transfers which in the aggregate constitute
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the transfer of this Agreement or a controlling interest in you, all of the following conditions must be met
prior to or concurrently with the effective date of the transfer:

(a) the transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial resources to
operate the Restaurant;

(b) you have paid all Royalties, System Fund contributions, Co-op fund contributions,
amounts owed for purchases from us and all other amounts owed to us or to third-party creditors
and have submitted all required reports and statements;

(c) the transferee (or its owners) have agreed to complete our standard training program,
at their expense;

(d) the transferee has agreed to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement;

(e) the transferee has entered into our then-current form of Franchise Agreement;

(f) the transferee agrees to upgrade the Restaurant to conform to our then-current
standards and specifications;

(g) you or the transferee pay us a transfer fee equal to Y2 of our then-current initial
franchise fee to defray expenses we incur in connection with the transfer, including the costs of
training the transferee (or its owners) and other personnel. If the proposed transfer is among your
owners, the transfer fee will be equal to $1,500;

(h) you (and your transferring owners) have signed a general release, in form satisfactory
to us, of any and all claims against us and our shareholders, officers, directors, employees and
agents;

(i) we have approved the material terms and conditions of such transfer and determined
that the price and terms of payment will not adversely affect the transferee’s operation of the
Restaurant;

() if you or your owners finance any part of the sale price of the transferred interest, you
and/or your owners have agreed that all of the transferee’s obligations pursuant to any promissory
notes, agreements or security interests that you or your owners have reserved in the Restaurant
are subordinate to the transferee’s obligation to pay Royalties, System Fund contributions, Co-op
fund contributions and other amounts due to us and otherwise to comply with this Agreement;

(k) you and your transferring owners (and your and your owners’ spouses and children)
have signed a non-competition covenant in favor of us and the transferee agreeing to be bound,
commencing on the effective date of the transfer, by the restrictions contained in this Agreement;
and

(I) you and your transferring owners have agreed that you and they will not directly or
indirectly at any time or in any manner (except with respect to other FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants you own and operate) identify yourself or themselves or any business as a current or
former FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant, or as one of our licensees or franchisees, use any Mark,
any colorable imitation of a Mark, or other indicia of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant in any
manner or for any purpose or utilize for any purpose any trade name, trade or service mark or
other commercial symbol that suggests or indicates a connection or association with us.
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14.4. Transfer to a Business Entity. If you are in full compliance with this Agreement, you
may transfer this Agreement to a Business Entity that conducts no business other than the Restaurant and, if
applicable, other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants so long as you own, control and have the right to vote
51% or more of its issued and outstanding ownership interests (like stock or partnership interests) and you
guarantee its performance under this Agreement. All other owners are subject to our approval. The
organizational or governing documents of the Business Entity must recite that the issuance and transfer of
any ownership interests in the Business Entity are restricted by the terms of this Agreement, are subject to
our approval, and all certificates or other documents representing ownership interests in the Business Entity
must bear a legend referring to the restrictions of this Agreement. As a condition of our approval of the
issuance or transfer of ownership interests to any person other than you, we may require (in addition to the
other requirements we have the right to impose) that the proposed owner sign an agreement, in a form
provided or approved by us, agreeing to be bound jointly and severally by, to comply with, and to guarantee
the performance of, all of your obligations under this Agreement.

14.5. Transfer Upon Death or Disability. Upon your death or disability or, if you are a
Business Entity, the death or disability of the owner of a controlling interest in you, we may require you (or
such owner’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal representative) to transfer your
interest in this Agreement (or such owner’s interest in you) to a third party. Such disposition (including,
without limitation, transfer by bequest or inheritance) must be completed within the time we designate, not
less than 1 month but not more than 6 months from the date of death or disability. Such disposition will be
subject to all of the terms and conditions applicable to transfers contained in this Section. A failure to
transfer your interest in this Agreement or the ownership interest in you within this period of time constitutes
a breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “disability means a mental or
physical disability, impairment or condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent
you or an owner of a controlling interest in you from managing and operating the Restaurant.

14.6. Operation Upon Death or Disability. If, upon your death or disability or the death or
disability of the owner of a controlling interest in you, the Restaurant is not being managed by a trained
manager, your or such owner’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal
representative must within a reasonable time, not to exceed 15 days from the date of death or disability,
appoint a manager to operate the Restaurant. Such manager will be required to complete training at your
expense. Pending the appointment of a manager as provided above or if, in our judgment, the Restaurant is
not being managed properly any time after your death or disability or after the death or disability of the
owner of a controlling interest in you, we have the right, but not the obligation, to appoint a manager for the
Restaurant. All funds from the operation of the Restaurant during the management by our appointed
manager will be kept in a separate account, and all expenses of the Restaurant, including compensation,
other costs and travel and living expenses of our manager, will be charged to this account. We also have the
right to charge a reasonable management fee (in addition to the Royalty, System Fund contributions and
Co-op fund contributions payable under this Agreement) during the period that our appointed manager
manages the Restaurant. Operation of the Restaurant during any such period will be on your behalf,
provided that we only have a duty to utilize our best efforts and will not be liable to you or your owners for
any debts, losses or obligations incurred by the Restaurant or to any of your creditors for any products,
materials, supplies or services the Restaurant purchases during any period it is managed by our appointed
manager.

14.7. Effect of Consent to Transfer. Our consent to a transfer of this Agreement and the
Restaurant or any interest in you does not constitute a representation as to the fairness of the terms of any
contract between you and the transferee, a guarantee of the prospects of success of the Restaurant or
transferee or a waiver of any claims we may have against you (or your owners) or of our right to demand the
transferee’s exact compliance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement.
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14.8.  QOur Right of First Refusal. If you (or any of your owners) at any time determine to sell,
assign or transfer for consideration an interest in this Agreement and the Restaurant or an ownership interest
in you, you (or such owner) agree to obtain a bona fide, executed written offer and earnest money deposit (in
the amount of 5% or more of the offering price) from a responsible and fully disclosed offeror (including
lists of the owners of record and all beneficial owners of any corporate or limited liability company offeror
and all general and limited partners of any partnership offeror and, in the case of a publicly-held corporation
or limited partnership, copies of the most current annual and quarterly reports and Form 10K) and within 5
days of receipt submit to us a true and complete copy of such offer, which includes details of the payment
terms of the proposed sale and the sources and terms of any financing for the proposed purchase price. To
be a valid, bona fide offer, the proposed purchase price must be denominated in a dollar amount. The offer
must apply only to an interest in you or in this Agreement and the Restaurant and may not include an offer to
purchase any of your (or your owners’) other property or rights. However, if the offeror proposes to buy any
other property or rights from you (or your owners) under a separate, contemporaneous offer, such separate,
contemporaneous offer must be disclosed to us, and the price and terms of purchase offered to you (or your
owners) for the interest in you or in this Agreement and the Restaurant must reflect the bona fide price
offered and not reflect any value for any other property or rights.

We have the right, exercisable by written notice delivered to you or your selling owner(s) within 30
days from the date of the delivery to us of both an exact copy of such offer and all other information we
request, to purchase such interest for the price and on the terms and conditions contained in such offer,
provided that:

(a) we may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in such offer (with a
discounted amount if an interest rate will be charged on any deferred payments);

(b) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed purchaser;

(c) we will have not less than 30 days after giving notice of our election to purchase to
prepare for closing; and

(d) we are entitled to receive, and you and your owners agree to make, all customary
representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or the capital stock of
an incorporated business, as applicable, including, without limitation, representations and
warranties as to:

(1) ownership and condition of and title to stock or other forms of ownership
interest and/or assets;

(i1) liens and encumbrances relating to the stock or other ownership interest
and/or assets; and

(i)  wvalidity of contracts and the liabilities, contingent or otherwise, of the
corporation whose stock is being purchased.

If we exercise our right of first refusal, you and your selling owner(s) agree that, for a period of 2
years commencing on the date of the closing, you and they will be bound by the noncompetition covenant
contained in this Agreement. You and your selling owner(s) further agree that you and they will, during this
same time period, abide by the restrictions of this Agreement.

If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, you or your owners may complete the sale to such
purchaser pursuant to and on the exact terms of such offer, subject to our approval of the transfer, provided
that, if the sale to such purchaser is not completed within 120 days after delivery of such offer to us, or if
there is a material change in the terms of the sale (which you agree promptly to communicate to us), we will
have an additional right of first refusal during the 30 day period following either the expiration of such 120
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day period or notice to us of the material change(s) in the terms of the sale, either on the terms originally
offered or the modified terms, at our option.

15. SUCCESSOR TERMS.

15.1. Acquisition. Upon expiration of this Agreement, subject to the conditions of this Section,
you will have the right to acquire a successor franchise to operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant for 24
additional 5-year periods on the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement we are then using in
granting franchises for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, if you (and each of your owners) have
substantially complied with this Agreement during its Term, and either:

(a) you maintain possession of and agree to remodel and/or expand the Restaurant, add
or replace improvements, equipment and signs and otherwise modify the Restaurant as we require
to bring it into compliance with specifications and standards then applicable for FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants; or

(b) if you are unable to maintain possession of the Site, or if in our judgment the
Restaurant should be relocated, you secure substitute premises we approve, develop such
premises in compliance with specifications and standards then applicable for FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants and continue to operate the Restaurant at the Site until operations are
transferred to the substitute premises.

15.2.  Grant. You must give us written notice of your election to acquire a successor franchise
during the last year of the Term, but no later than 180 days before expiration. We will respond (“Response
Notice*), within 90 days after we receive your notice, of our decision, either:

(a) to grant you a successor franchise;

(b) to grant you a successor franchise on the condition that deficiencies of the
Restaurant, or in your operation of the Restaurant, are corrected; or

(c) not to grant you a successor franchise based on our determination that you and your
owners have not substantially complied with this Agreement during its Term.

If applicable, our Response Notice will:

(a) describe the remodeling and/or expansion of the Restaurant and other
improvements or modifications required to bring the Restaurant into compliance with then
applicable specifications and standards for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants; and

(b) state the actions you must take to correct operating deficiencies and the time
period in which such deficiencies must be corrected.

If we elect not to grant a successor franchise, the Response Notice will describe the reasons for our decision.
Your right to acquire a successor franchise is subject to your continued compliance with all of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement through the date of its expiration, in addition to your compliance with the
obligations described in the Response Notice.

In our discretion, we may extend the Term for such period of time as we deem necessary in order to

provide you with either reasonable time to correct deficiencies or 90 days notice of our refusal to grant a
successor franchise.
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15.3. Agreements/Releases. If you satisfy all of the other conditions to the grant of a successor
franchise, you and your owners agree to sign the form of franchise agreement, renewal addendum (the form
of which is attached as Exhibit “C” to this Agreement) and any ancillary agreements we are then customarily
using in connection with the grant of successor franchises for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants. You and
your owners further agree to sign general releases, in form satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us
and our shareholders, officers, directors, employees, agents, successors and assigns. Failure by you or your
owners to sign such agreements and releases and deliver them to us for acceptance and signature within 60
days after their delivery to you will be deemed an election not to acquire a successor franchise.

15.4. Training and Refresher Programs. Our grant of a successor franchise is also
conditioned on the satisfactory completion by you (or your owners) of any new training and refresher
programs as we may reasonably require.

15.5. Fees and Expenses. Our grant of a successor franchise is contingent on your payment to
us of a successor franchise fee of ¥4 of our then-current initial franchise fee. We must receive the fee from
you at the time of your election, but not later than 180 days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement. In
addition, we have the right to charge you for services we render to you and expenses we incur in conjunction
with the grant of the successor franchise. Payment of those charges is due upon your receipt of our invoice.

15.6. Subsequent Successor Franchises. The fees and other conditions for any later granting of
subsequent successor franchises will be governed by the successor franchise agreement (as described above);
except that the first 5-year successor franchise will also be for 5 years.

16. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.
16.1. On Notice. We have the right to terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of
written notice of termination to you, if:
(a) you (or any of your owners) have made any material misrepresentation or omission in
connection with your purchase of the Franchise;
(b) you fail to either: (i) lease the Site we approved within 12 months of the Agreement
Date; or (ii) begin operating the Restaurant within 12 months of our approval of the Site for your

Restaurant;

(c) your, or your owners, failure to successfully complete initial or any other training to
our satisfaction;

(d) you abandon or fail to actively operate the Restaurant for 1 or more consecutive
business days, unless the Restaurant has been closed for a purpose we have approved or because
of casualty or government order;

(e) you surrender or transfer control of the operation of the Restaurant without our prior
written consent;

(f) you (or any of your owners) are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or plead or
have pleaded no contest, or guilty, to, a felony or other serious crime or offense;
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(g) you (or any of your owners) engage in any dishonest or unethical conduct which may

adversely affect the reputation of the Restaurant or another FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant or
the goodwill associated with the Marks;

(h) you understate Gross Sales by 5% or more, or our audits or investigations show that
you understated Gross Sales by 2% or more 2 or more times during any 18-month period;

(i) you (or any of your owners) make an unauthorized assignment of this Agreement or
of an ownership interest in you, the Restaurant or the Art;

() in the event of your death or disability or the death or disability of the owner of a
controlling interest in you, this Agreement or such owner’s interest in you is not assigned as
required under this Agreement;

(k) you lose the right to possession of the Site;

(I) you (or any of your owners) make any unauthorized use or disclosure of any
Confidential Information or use, duplicate or disclose any portion of the Manual in violation of
this Agreement;

(m) you violate any health, safety or sanitation law, ordinance or regulation and do not
cure the violation within 24 hours to both our satisfaction and that of the governmental authority;

(n) you fail to make payments of any amounts due to us or the Co-op and do not correct
such failure within 30 days after written notice of such failure is delivered to you;

(o) you fail to pay when due any federal or state income, service, sales or other taxes due
on the operations of the Restaurant, unless you are in good faith contesting your liability for such
taxes;

(p) you (or any of your owners) fail to comply with any other provision of this
Agreement or any System Standard and do not correct such failure within 30 days after written
notice of such failure to comply is delivered to you;

(q) you (or any of your owners) fail on 3 or more separate occasions within any period of
12 consecutive Accounting Periods or on 5 occasions during the Term to submit when due reports
or other data, information or supporting records, to pay when due any amounts due to us or
otherwise to comply with this Agreement, whether or not such failures to comply were corrected
after written notice of such failure was delivered to you; or

(r) you make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admit in writing your
insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due; you consent to the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all or the substantial part of your property; the
Restaurant is attached, seized, subjected to a writ or distress warrant or levied upon, unless such
attachment, seizure, writ, warrant or levy is vacated within 30 days; or any order appointing a
receiver, trustee or liquidator of you or the Restaurant is not vacated within 30 days following the
entry of such order.

16.2. After Notice. We may also terminate this Agreement after we notify you of our intention to

do so because of the occurrence of any of the following events and your failure to cure it within 30 days of

our notice:
(a) you or a trained manager is not present at the Restaurant during all open hours;
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17.

(b) failure to keep the Restaurant open during the required hours;

(¢) purchasing or leasing any product or service from an unapproved supplier;
(d) failure to participate in a Co-op;

(e) failure to pay taxes and assessments;

(f) failure to obtain and maintain required permits;

(g) if you are a Business Entity, failure to maintain active status in your state of
organization;

(h) failure to promptly pay any amounts due us or your suppliers;
(i) failure to timely make required reports;
(j) failure to maintain sufficient liquid funds to pay amounts to us via electronic transfer;

(k) you violate any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement with us or our
affiliates;

(1) failure to maintain System Standards or any required standards or procedures
contained in the Manuals;

(m) continued violation of any law, ordinance, rule or regulation of a governmental
agency; or

(n) failure to obtain any approvals or consents required by this Agreement.

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION.

17.1. Payment of Amounts Owed To Us. You agree to pay us within 15 days after the

effective date of termination or expiration of this Agreement, or on such later date that the amounts due to us
are determined, such Royalties, System Fund contributions, amounts owed for purchases from us, interest
due on any of the foregoing and all other amounts owed to us which are then unpaid.

17.2.  Marks. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement:

(a) you may not directly or indirectly at any time or in any manner (except with respect
to other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants you own and operate) identify yourself or any
business as a current or former FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant, or as one of our licensees or
franchisees, use any Mark, any colorable imitation of a Mark or other indicia of a FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurant in any manner or for any purpose or utilize for any purpose any trade name,
trade or service mark or other commercial symbol that indicates or suggests a connection or
association with us;

(b) you agree to take such action as may be required to cancel all fictitious or assumed
name or equivalent registrations relating to your use of any Mark;

(¢) if we do not have or do not exercise an option to purchase the Restaurant, you agree
to deliver to us within 30 days after, as applicable, the effective date of expiration of this
Agreement or the Notification Date all signs, sign-faces, sign-cabinets, marketing materials,
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forms and other materials containing any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to a

FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant and allow us, without liability to you or third parties, to remove
all such items from the Restaurant;

(d) if we do not have or do not exercise an option to purchase the Restaurant, you agree
that, after, as applicable, the effective date of expiration of this Agreement or the Notification
Date, you will promptly and at your own expense make such alterations we specify to distinguish
the Restaurant clearly from its former appearance and from other FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants so as to prevent confusion by the public;

(e) if we do not have or do not exercise an option to purchase the Restaurant, you agree
that, after, as applicable, the effective date of expiration of this Agreement or the Notification
Date, you will notify the telephone company and all telephone directory publishers of the
termination or expiration of your right to use any telephone, telecopy or other numbers and any
regular, classified or other telephone directory listings associated with any Mark, authorize the
transfer of such numbers and directory listings to us or at our direction and/or instruct the
telephone company to forward all calls made to your telephone numbers to numbers we specify;
and

(f) you agree to furnish us, within 30 days after, as applicable, the effective date of
expiration of this Agreement or the Notification Date, with evidence satisfactory to us of your
compliance with the foregoing obligations.

17.3. Confidential Information. You agree that, upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement, you will immediately cease to use any of our Confidential Information in any business or
otherwise and return to us all copies of the Manual and any other confidential materials that we have loaned
to you.

17.4. Competitive Restrictions. Upon our termination of this Agreement in accordance with
its terms and conditions, or expiration of this Agreement (if we offer, but you elect not to acquire, a
successor franchise),

(a) you and your owners agree that, for a period of 2 years commencing on the effective
date of termination or expiration or the date on which a person restricted by this Section begins to
comply with this Section, whichever is later, neither you nor any of your owners will have any
direct or indirect interest (e.g., through a spouse or child) as a disclosed or beneficial owner,
investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, representative or agent or in any other
capacity in any Competitive Business operating:

(1) at the Site;
(i1) within 10 miles of the Site; or

(ii1) within 10 miles of any other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant in
operation or under construction on the later of the effective date of the
termination or expiration or the date on which a person restricted by this
Section complies with this Section.

If any person restricted by this Section refuses voluntarily to comply with the foregoing obligations,
the 2-year period will commence with the entry of an order of an arbitrator, or court if necessary, enforcing
this provision. You and your owners expressly acknowledge that you possess skills and abilities of a general
nature and have other opportunities for exploiting such skills. Consequently, enforcement of the covenants
made in this Section will not deprive you of your personal goodwill or ability to earn a living.
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17.5. Our Right to Purchase.

(a) Exercise of Option. Upon our termination of this Agreement in accordance with its
terms and conditions or your termination of this Agreement without cause, we have the option,
exercisable by giving written notice to you within 60 days from the date of such termination, to
purchase the Restaurant from you, including the leasehold rights to the Site. (The date on which
we notify you whether or not we are exercising our option is referred to in this Agreement as the
“Notification Date”). We have the unrestricted right to assign this option to purchase the
Restaurant. We will be entitled to all customary warranties and representations in connection
with our asset purchase, including, without limitation, representations and warranties as to
ownership and condition of and title to assets; liens and encumbrances on assets; validity of
contracts and agreements; and liabilities affecting the assets, contingent or otherwise.

(b) Leasehold Rights. You agree at our election:
(1) to assign your leasehold interest in the Site to us; or

(i1) to enter into a sublease for the remainder of the lease term on the same
terms (including renewal options) as the prime lease.

(c) Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Restaurant will be its fair market value,
determined in a manner consistent with reasonable depreciation of the Restaurant’s equipment,
signs, inventory, materials and supplies, provided that the Restaurant will be valued as an
independent business and its value will not include any value for:

(1) the Franchise or any rights granted by this Agreement;
(i1) the Marks; or
(i)  participation in the network of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants.

The Restaurant’s fair market value will include the goodwill you developed in the market of the
Restaurant that exists independent of the goodwill of the Marks and the System. The length of the
remaining term of the lease for the Site will also be considered in determining the Restaurant’s fair
market value.

We may exclude from the assets purchased cash or its equivalent and any equipment, signs,
inventory, materials and supplies that are not reasonably necessary (in function or quality) to the
Restaurant’s operation or that we have not approved as meeting standards for FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant, and the purchase price will reflect such exclusions.

(d) Appraisal. If we and you are unable to agree on the Restaurant’s fair market value,
its fair market value will be determined by 3 independent appraisers who collectively will
conduct 1 appraisal. We will appoint one appraiser, you will appoint one appraiser and the two
party-appointed appraisers will appoint the third appraiser. You and we agree to select our
respective appraisers within 15 days after we notify you that we are exercising our option to
purchase the Restaurant, and the two appraisers so chosen are obligated to appoint the third
appraiser within 15 days after the date on which the last of the two party-appointed appraisers
was appointed. You and we will bear the cost of our own appraisers and share equally the fees
and expenses of the third appraiser chosen by the two party-appointed appraisers. The appraisers
are obligated to complete their appraisal within 30 days after the third appraiser’s appointment.

(¢) Payment of Purchase Price. The purchase price under this Section will be paid in 2
installments. The first installment of the purchase price consisting of an amount equal to the
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Franchise Fee you have paid to us (the “First Installment) which will be paid by us within 30
days of our notifying you of our election to purchase your Business. The second installment of
the purchase price (the “Second Installment*) will equal the total purchase price less the First
Installment. The Second Installment will be paid at a time of our choosing, not later than 90 days
after the later of closing or the determination of the purchase price. We have the right to set off
against the purchase price, and thereby reduce the purchase price by, any and all amounts you or
your owners owe to us or any amounts of rent you owe the landlord of the Site, or suppliers or
your creditors that we pay on your behalf in order to obtain lawful possession of the Site, any of
your assets or to cover amounts you owe suppliers we do business with.

(f) Closing. At the closing, or when we tender payment of the First Installment, at our
option, you agree to deliver instruments transferring to us:

1) good and merchantable title to the assets purchased, free and clear of all
liens and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests acceptable
to us), with all sales and other transfer taxes paid by you; and

(i1) all licenses and permits of the Restaurant which may be assigned or
transferred; and

(iii) the leasehold interest and improvements in the Site.

If you cannot deliver clear title to all of the purchased assets, or if there are other unresolved issues
(other than the payment of the Second Installment), the closing of the sale will be accomplished
through an escrow. You and your owners further agree to execute general releases, in form
satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our shareholders, officers, directors,
employees, agents, successors and assigns.

17.6. Continuing Obligations. All of our and your (and your owners’ and affiliates’)
obligations which expressly or by their nature survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement will
continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its expiration or termination and until
they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire. Examples include indemnification, payment,
de-identification and dispute resolution provisions.

18. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.

18.1. Independent Contractors. You and we understand and agree that this Agreement does
not create a fiduciary relationship between you and us, that we and you are and will be independent
contractors and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general or special
agent, joint venturer, partner or employee of the other for any purpose. You agree to conspicuously identify
yourself in all dealings with customers, suppliers, public officials, Restaurant personnel and others as the
owner of the Restaurant under a franchise we have granted and to place such notices of independent
ownership on such forms, business cards, stationery and advertising and other materials as we may require
from time to time.

18.2. No Liability for Acts of Other Party. You agree not to employ any of the Marks in
signing any contract or applying for any license or permit, or in a manner that may result in our liability for
any of your indebtedness or obligations, and that you will not use the Marks in any way we have not
expressly authorized. Neither we nor you will make any express or implied agreements, warranties,
guarantees or representations or incur any debt in the name or on behalf of the other, represent that our
respective relationship is other than franchisor and franchisee or be obligated by or have any liability under
any agreements or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized in writing. We will
not be obligated for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the
Restaurant’s operation or the business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement.
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18.3. Taxes. We will have no liability for any sales, use, alcohol surcharge, service, occupation,
excise, gross receipts, income, payroll, property or other taxes, whether levied upon you or the Restaurant, in
connection with the business you conduct (except any taxes we are required by law to collect from you with
respect to purchases from us). Payment of all such taxes are your responsibility.

18.4. Indemnification. You agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless us, our affiliates and
our respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assignees (the
“Indemnified Parties) against and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for all claims,
obligations and damages described in this Section, any and all taxes described in this Agreement and any and
all claims and liabilities directly or indirectly arising out of the Restaurant’s operation (even if our
negligence is alleged) or your breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this indemnification, “claims*
includes all obligations, damages (actual, consequential or otherwise) and costs reasonably incurred in the
defense of any claim against any of the Indemnified Parties, including, without limitation, reasonable
accountants’, arbitrators’, attorneys’ and expert witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court
costs, other expenses of litigation, arbitration or alternative dispute resolution and travel and living expenses.
We have the right to defend any such claim against us. This indemnity will continue in full force and effect
subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Under no circumstances
will we or any other Indemnified Party be required to seek recovery from any insurer or other third party, or
otherwise to mitigate our, their or your losses and expenses, in order to maintain and recover fully a claim
against you. You agree that a failure to pursue such recovery or mitigate a loss will in no way reduce or alter
the amounts we or another Indemnified Party may recover from you.

19. ENFORCEMENT.

19.1. Severability; Substitution of Valid Provisions. Except as otherwise stated in this
Agreement, each term of this Agreement, and any portion of any term, are severable. The remainder of this
Agreement will continue in full force and effect. To the extent that any provision restricting your
competitive activities is deemed unenforceable, you and we agree that such provisions will be enforced to
the fullest extent permissible under governing law. This Agreement will be deemed automatically modified
to comply with such governing law if any applicable law requires: (a) a greater prior notice of the
termination of or refusal to renew this Agreement; or (b) the taking of some other action not described in this
Agreement; or (c) if any FIREHOUSE SUBS® System Standard is invalid or unenforceable. We may
modify such invalid or unenforceable provision to the extent required to be valid and enforceable. In such
event, you will be bound by the modified provisions.

19.2. Waivers. We will not be deemed to have waived our right to demand exact compliance
with any of the terms, even if at any time: (a) we do not exercise a right or power available to us under this
Agreement; or (b) we do not insist on your strict compliance with the terms of this Agreement; or (c) if there
develops a custom or practice which is at variance with the terms of this Agreement; or (d) if we accept
payments which are otherwise due to us under this Agreement. Similarly, our waiver of any particular
breach or series of breaches under this Agreement or of any similar term in any other agreement between
you and us or between us and any other franchise owner, will not effect our rights with respect to any later
breach by you or anyone else.

19.3. Limitation of Liability. Neither of the parties will be liable for loss or damage or deemed
to be in breach of this Agreement if failure to perform obligations results from:

(a) compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulation, requirement or instruction of any
federal, state or municipal government or any department or agency thereof;
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(b) acts of God, war, terror or similar like;
(c) acts or omissions of a similar event or cause.
However, such delays or events do not excuse payments of amounts owed at any time.

19.4. Approval and Consents. Whenever this Agreement requires our advance approval,
agreement or consent, you agree to make a timely written request for it. Our approval or consent will not be
valid unless it is in writing. Except where expressly stated otherwise in this Agreement, we have the
absolute right to refuse any request by you or to withhold our approval of any action or omission by you. If
we provide to you any waiver, approval, consent, or suggestion, or if we neglect or delay our response or
deny any request for any of those, we will not be deemed to have made any warranties or guarantees which
you may rely on, and will not assume any liability or obligation to you.

19.5. Waiver of Punitive Damages. EXCEPT FOR YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO
INDEMNIFY US AND CLAIMS FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE MARKS OR
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION, YOU AND WE EACH WAIVE TO THE FULL EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO, OR CLAIM FOR, ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY
DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER. YOU AND WE ALSO AGREE THAT, IN THE EVENT OF
A DISPUTE BETWEEN YOU AND US, THE PARTY MAKING A CLAIM WILL BE LIMITED
TO EQUITABLE RELIEF AND RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES IT SUSTAINS.

19.6. Limitations of Claims. ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP AMONG YOU AND US MUST BE MADE BY
WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE OTHER PARTY WITHIN 1 YEAR FROM THE OCCURRENCE OF
THE FACTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM (REGARDLESS OF WHEN IT BECOMES
KNOWN); EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS ARISING FROM: (A) UNDER-REPORTING OF GROSS
SALES; (B) UNDER-PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO US OR OUR AFFILIATES; (C)
CLAIMS FOR INDEMNIFICATION; AND/OR (D) UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE MARKS.
HOWEVER, THIS PROVISION DOES NOT LIMIT THE RIGHT TO TERMINATE THIS
AGREEMENT IN ANY WAY.

19.7. Governing Law. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
PARTICULAR DISPUTE IS GOVERNED BY THE U.S. TRADEMARK ACT OF 1946 (LANHAM
ACT, 15 U.S.C. §1051 AND THE SECTIONS FOLLOWING IT) OR OTHER FEDERAL LAW,
THIS AGREEMENT AND THE FRANCHISE ARE GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE
IN WHICH OUR PRINCIPAL BUSINESS OFFICE IS LOCATED, EXCLUDING ANY LAW
REGULATING THE SALE OF FRANCHISES OR GOVERNING THE RELATIONSHIP
BETWEEN A FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISE OWNER, UNLESS THE JURISDICTIONAL
REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH LAWS ARE MET INDEPENDENTLY WITHOUT REFERENCE TO
THIS SECTION. ALL MATTERS RELATING TO ARBITRATION ARE GOVERNED BY THE
FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT. References to any law or regulation also refer to any successor laws or
regulations and any implementing regulations for any statute, as in effect at the relevant time. References to
a governmental agency also refer to any successor regulatory body that succeeds to the function of such
agency.

19.8. Jurisdiction. YOU AND WE CONSENT AND IRREVOCABLY SUBMIT TO THE
JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT OF COMPETENT
JURISDICTION LOCATED IN DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND WAIVE ANY OBJECTION
TO THE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF SUCH COURTS. THE EXCLUSIVE CHOICE OF
JURISDICTION DOES NOT PRECLUDE THE BRINGING OF ANY ACTION BY THE PARTIES
OR THE ENFORCEMENT BY THE PARTIES IN ANY JUDGMENT OBTAINED IN ANY SUCH
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JURISDICTION, IN ANY OTHER APPROPRIATE JURISDICTION OR THE RIGHT OF THE
PARTIES TO CONFIRM OR ENFORCE ANY ARBITRATION AWARD IN ANY APPROPRIATE
JURISDICTION.

19.9. Waiver of Jury Trial. YOU AND WE EACH IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN
EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER YOU OR US.

19.10. Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this Agreement are
cumulative and neither you nor we will be prohibited from exercising any other right or remedy provided
under this Agreement or permitted by law or equity.

19.11. Costs and Attorneys Fees. If a claim for amounts owed by you to us or any of our
affiliates is asserted in any legal or arbitration proceeding or if either you or we are required to enforce this
Agreement in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, the party prevailing in such proceeding will be entitled to
reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including reasonable accounting and attorneys’ fees. Attorneys’
fees will include, without limitation, reasonable legal fees charged by attorneys, paralegal fees, and costs and
disbursements, whether incurred prior to, or in preparation for, or contemplation of, the filing of written
demand or claim, action, hearing, or proceeding to enforce the obligations of the parties under this
Agreement.

19.12. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on and will inure to the benefit of our
successors and assigns. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this Agreement will also be
binding on your successors and assigns, and your heirs, executors and administrators.

19.13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the introduction, addenda and exhibits to it
and all ancillary agreements executed contemporaneously with this Agreement, constitutes the entire
agreement between you and us with reference to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede any and
all prior negotiations, understandings, representations and agreements; provided, however, that nothing in
this or any related agreement shall disclaim or require you to waive reliance on any representation
that Franchisor made in the most recent Franchise Disclosure Document (including its exhibits and
amendments) that Franchisor delivered to Franchisee or its representative, subject to any
agreed-upon changes to the contract terms and conditions described in that Franchise Disclosure
Document and reflected in this Agreement (including any riders or addenda signed at the same time
as this Agreement.. There are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between you and us
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement,
this Agreement may be modified only by written agreement signed by both you and us. Nothing contained
in the Agreement waives any of the Franchisee’s right to rely on the disclosure made by the Franchisor in its
Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document or any corresponding rights the Franchisee has under the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act

19.14. No Liability to Others; No Other Beneficiaries. We will not, because of this Agreement
or by virtue of any approvals, advice or services provided to you, be liable to any person or legal entity who
is not a party to this Agreement. Except as specifically described in this Agreement, no other party has any
rights because of this Agreement.

19.15. Construction. The headings of the sections are for convenience only. If two or more
persons are at any time franchise owners hereunder, whether or not as partners or joint venturers, their
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obligations and liabilities to us are joint and several. This Agreement may be signed in multiple copies, each
of which will be an original. “A or B” means “A” or “B” or both.

19.16. Certain Definitions. The term “family member* refers to parents, spouses, offspring and
siblings, and the parents and siblings of spouses. The term “affiliate means any Business Entity directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by a person, under common control with a person or controlled by a person.
The terms “franchisee, franchise owner, you and your* are applicable to one or more persons, a Business
Entity, as the case may be. The singular use of any pronoun also includes the plural and the masculine and
neuter usages include the other and the feminine. The term “person includes individuals or Business
Entities. The term “section refers to a section or subsection of this Agreement. The word “control“ means
the power to direct or cause the direction of management and policies. The word “owner* means any person
holding a direct or indirect, legal or beneficial ownership interest or voting rights in another person (or a
transferee of this Agreement or an interest in you), including any person who has a direct or indirect interest
in you or this Agreement and any person who has any other legal or equitable interest, or the power to vest
in himself any legal or equitable interest, in the revenue, profits, rights or assets.

19.17. Timing is of the Essence. It will be a material breach of this Agreement to fail to perform
any obligation within the time required or permitted by this Agreement. In computing time periods from one
date to a later date, the words “from‘ and “commencing on* (and the like) mean “from and including”;
and the words “to,” “until” and “ending on“ (and the like) mean “to but excluding.” Indications of time of
day mean Jacksonville, Florida time.

20. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

20.1. Mediation. During the Term, certain disputes may arise between you and us that may be
resolvable through mediation. To facilitate such resolution, you and we agree that each party must, before
commencing any arbitration proceeding, submit the dispute for non-binding arbitration at a mutually
agreeable location (if you and we cannot agree on a location, the mediation will be conducted at our
headquarters) to 1 mediator, appointed under the American Arbitration Association’s Commercial Mediation
Rules. The mediator will conduct a mediation in accordance with such rules. You and we agree that any
statements made by either you or us in any such mediation proceeding will not be admissible in any
subsequent arbitration or other legal proceeding. Each party will bear its own costs and expenses of
conducting the mediation and share equally the costs of any third parties who are required to participate.
Nevertheless, both you and we have the right in a proper case to obtain temporary restraining orders and
temporary or preliminary injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction. However, the parties must
immediately and contemporaneously submit the dispute for non-binding mediation. If any dispute between
the parties cannot be resolved through mediation within 60 days following the appointment of a mediator,
the parties must submit the dispute to arbitration subject to the following terms and conditions.

20.2. Agreement to Arbitrate. Except for claims (as defined below) related to or based on the
Marks (which at our sole option may be submitted to any court of competent jurisdiction) and except as
otherwise expressly provided by section 20.4 of this agreement, any litigation, claim, dispute, suit, action,
controversy, proceeding or otherwise (“Dispute*) between or involving you and us (and/or involving you
and/or any claim against or involving any of our or our affiliates’ shareholders, directors, partners, officers,
employees, agents, attorneys, accountants, affiliates, guarantors or otherwise) and/or between or involving
you and any of our area representatives, which are not resolved within 45 days of notice from either you or
we to the other, or you to one of our area representatives, will be submitted to arbitration to the office of the
American Arbitration Association closest to our headquarters in Jacksonville, Florida. The arbitration will
be conducted by the American Arbitration Association pursuant to its commercial arbitration rules. All
matters relating to arbitration will be governed by the federal arbitration act (9 U.S.C. §§1 et seq.) And not
by any state arbitration law. The parties to any arbitration will execute an appropriate confidentiality
agreement, excepting only such disclosures and filings as are required by law.
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20.3. Place and Procedure. The arbitration proceedings will be conducted at our headquarters
in Jacksonville, Florida. Any dispute and any arbitration will be conducted and resolved on an individual
basis only and not a class-wide, multiple plaintiff or similar basis. Any such arbitration proceeding will not
be consolidated with any other arbitration proceeding involving any other person, except for disputes
involving affiliates of the parties to such arbitration. The parties agree that, in connection with any such
arbitration proceeding, each must submit or file any claim which would constitute a compulsory
counterclaim (as defined by rule 13 of the federal rules of civil procedure) within the same proceeding as the
dispute to which it relates. Any such dispute which is not submitted or filed in such proceeding will be
barred.

20.4. Awards and Decisions. The proceedings will be heard by 1 arbitrator. The arbitrator will
have the right to award any relief which he deems proper in the circumstances, including, for example,
money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from their due date(s)), specific performance, temporary
and/or permanent injunctive relief, and reimbursement of attorneys’ fees and related costs to the prevailing
party. The arbitrator will not have the authority to award exemplary or punitive damages except as
otherwise permitted by this agreement, nor the right to declare any Mark generic or otherwise invalid. You
and we agree to be bound by the provisions of any limitations or the time on which claims must be brought
under applicable law or under this Agreement, whichever expires earlier. The award and decision of the
arbitrator will be conclusive and binding and judgment on the award may be entered in any court of
competent jurisdiction. The parties acknowledge and agree that any arbitration award may be enforced
against either or both of them in a court of competent jurisdiction and each waives any right to contest the
validity or enforceability of such award. Without limiting the foregoing, the parties will be entitled in any
such arbitration proceeding to the entry of an order by a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to an
opinion of the arbitrator for specific performance of any of the requirements of this Agreement. Judgment
upon an arbitration award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction and will be binding, final and
non-appealable.

20.5. Specific Performance. Nothing in this Agreement will prevent either you or we from
obtaining temporary restraining orders and temporary or preliminary injunctive relief in a court of competent
jurisdiction. However, you and we must contemporaneously submit the dispute for arbitration on the merits.

20.6. Third Parties. The arbitration provisions of this Agreement are intended to benefit and
bind certain third party non-signatories, and all of yours and our principal owners and affiliates.

20.7. Survival. This provision continues in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason.

21. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.

All notices and reports permitted or required under this Agreement or by the Manuals must be in
writing and will be deemed delivered:

(a) at the time delivered by hand;

(b) 1 business day after transmission by facsimile, telecopy, e-mail, or other electronic
system,

(c) 2 business days after being placed in the hands of a commercial airborne courier
service for next business day delivery; or
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(d) 3 business days after placement in the United States mail by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.

Delivery by facsimile, e-mailed and electronic means constitutes a writing and does not require
designation of a physical address (as otherwise stated below). All such notices must be addressed to
the parties as follows:

If to Us: FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC
12735 Gran Bay Parkway, Suite 150
Jacksonville, Florida 32258
Attention:

If to You:

Attention:

Either you or we may change the address for delivery of all notices and reports and any such notice
will be effective within 10 business days of any change in address. Any required payment or report not
actually received by us during regular business hours on the date due (or postmarked by postal authorities at
least 2 days prior to such date, or in which the receipt from the commercial courier service is not dated prior
to 2 days prior to such date) will be deemed delinquent.

This Agreement may be signed with full legal force and effect using electronic signatures and
records.

Intending to be bound, you and we sign and deliver this Agreement in 2 counterparts on the
Agreement Date.

GCUS”: GGYOU’ﬁ:

FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC

[Business Entity Name]

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

EXHIBIT “A”
TO THE
FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LL.C
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

INDEX

Account 11

Accounting Period 1011

Accounting System 19

affiliate 37

Agreement 1

Agreement Date 1
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Business Entity 3
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Co-op 21
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family member 37
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until 37
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EXHIBIT “B”
TO THE
FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LIABILITY WAIVER AND RELEASE

, want to enroll in the observation and evaluation process

and attend the initial and any other training programs offered by Firehouse of America, LLC (“FOA”) in
order to be qualified to own, operate and/or manage a Firehouse Subs® Restaurant, pursuant to a
franchise agreement between FOA and either me, my employer, or a company with which I am affiliated.
To induce FOA to allow me to observation and evaluation process and attend the initial and any other
training programs, I agree, attest and acknowledge the following:

(1)

2)
)

“4)

)

During the time period of observation and evaluation and the initial and any other
training programs, I will receive hands-on training at a Firechouse Subs® Restaurant and
through other training facilities during which I will operate food service equipment and
supplies and, therefore, there is a risk of injury and harm.

I understand and acknowledge that I am not an employee of FOA or its affiliates for any
purpose whatsoever.

Since I am not an employee of FOA, I will not be entitled to any workers compensation
coverage from FOA or any of its affiliates (although I may be entitled to such coverage
from my own employer).

I waive any right to sue for damages or other relief, and release any claim I may have
against FOA and/or any of its affiliates, agents, officers and directors, for any claims,
losses, damages, liabilities or obligations that arise out of any injury I suffer during and
as a result of my undergoing the initial training program with FOA.

My participation in the observation, evaluation and training programs does not entitle me
to a Firchouse Subs® franchise. Franchises are granted only by separate written
agreements.

Print Name:
Date:

Witness Signature

Print Name:

Date:
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JOTHE

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

RENEWAL ADDENDUM

nn

our" or the "Franchisor"), and
a(n) (collectlvelv 'vyou

us,

company ("we," "

nn

your" or

dated effective as of - 20_ (the "Current Agreement") for a
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant located at

1. Incornorangn and Precedence This Addendum: (a) is an integral part of and is

2 Status. You have been operating a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant at the Site under an
Agreement Wlth us dated (the "Prlor Agreement") The Prior

D n ntin for n11 he fore th h nni fh Eff r
20 ) Otherw1se references to Term will mean the foregomg S-year Derlod

7. Restaurant Opening. Neither vou nor we will have any obligations as to Restaurant
Opening.

8 Market Introduction Program. We will not require vou to conduct a market
- ucti 1 o | ional

9 Initial Training. We will not be required to provide, and vou will not be required to
attend, Initial Training.

10. Modlf" catlon of Svstem Sta_d_ards We W111 not reaulre you to snend more than




ren | unl im ltan ith signin th1 ndum:

Afician el | have ta
and all ratin ficienci

13 Remaining Terms Unaffected: The remaining terms of the Current Agreement are
naff his Addendum and remaining binding on th i

FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LL.C

By By
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:




EXHIBIT "A"
TO RENEWAL ADDENDUM
FORM OF RELEASE




THIS RELEASE is given by and its

Agreement dated ‘ and the Renewal Addendum dated as of
11 1 he "Current Agreement" he franchise relationshi n n fter

This Release is effective 20 notwithstanding the actual date of signatures

S JF. the undersigned his Reloase:

By:
Print Name:
Title:
STATE OF )
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 20 by
as. _of.
who is personally known to me or has produced (type of
dentificati dentificati

Signature of Notary

Printed Name of Notary.
Notary Public, State of Florida
Serial Number of Notary.




EXHIBIT D TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the *“Agreement”) is effective as of
, 20__ (the “Agreement Date”). The parties to this Agreement are FIREHOUSE OF
AMERICA, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, with its principal business address at 12735 Gran
Bay Parkway, Suite 150, Jacksonville, Florida 32258 (referred to in this Agreement as “we,” “us” or
“our”), and , whose principal business address is

(referred to in this Agreement as “you,” “your” or

“Developer™).

1.1. The FIREHOUSE SUBS® System. We and our affiliates have expended considerable
time and effort in a sandwich restaurant shop specializing in large portion hot submarine style sandwiches in
a unique fire-fighting atmosphere and decorum at an economical price (a “FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurant” or “Restaurant”). FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants operate under the service marks and
trade name “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Est. 1994 and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS® and design,
"FIREHOUSE SUBS®” and under distinctive business formats, methods, procedures, designs, layouts,
signs, equipment, menus, recipes, trade dress, standards and specifications, all of which we may improve,
further develop or otherwise modify from time to time (the “System”). We commission, use, promote and
license in the operation of a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant certain trademarks, service marks and other
commercial symbols, including the trade and service marks “FIREHOUSE SUBS® Est. 1994 and
design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS® and design,” “FIREHOUSE SUBS®” and other associated logos,
copyrighted works, designs, Art, trade dress, trademarks, service marks, commercial symbols, and e-names,
which will gain or have gained and continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and may create,
commission, use and license additional trademarks, service marks, e-names, copyrighted works, Art and
commercial symbols in conjunction with the operation of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants (collectively,
the “Marks”). We grant to persons who meet our qualifications and are willing to undertake the investment
and effort, the right to acquire franchises to own and operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within a
specific geographic area (a “Development Area”). You have applied for the right to develop, own and
operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants in a specific Development Area.

1.2. Intention and Purposes. Before or simultaneously with signing this Agreement, you and
we (or your Controlled Affiliate, as defined below) signed or are signing a Franchise Agreement pursuant to
which you (or such Controlled Affiliate) will operate a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant (the “Current
Franchise Agreement”). You and we are signing this Agreement because you would like the right to
develop and operate a number of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within a certain geographic area over a
certain period of time, and we are willing to grant you those rights if you comply with this Agreement’s
terms and conditions.

1.3. Business Organization. If you are at any time a business organization (“Business
Entity”) (like a corporation, limited liability company or partnership) you agree and represent that:

@ you have the authority to execute, deliver and perform your obligations under this
Agreement and are duly organized or formed and validly existing in good standing under the laws
of the state of your incorporation or formation;

(b) your organizational or governing documents will recite that the issuance and
transfer of any ownership interests in you are restricted by the terms of this Agreement, and all
certificates and other documents representing ownership interests in you will bear a legend referring
to the restrictions of this Agreement;

(© the Principal Owners Statement will completely and accurately describe all of your
owners and their interests in you. A copy of our current form of Principal Owners Statement is
attached to the Franchise Disclosure Document you were furnished;
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(d) you and your owners agree to revise the Principal Owners Statement as may be
necessary to reflect any ownership changes and to furnish such other information about your
organization or formation as we may request (no ownership changes may be made without our
approval);

Q)] each of your owners during the Term will sign and deliver to us our standard form
of Principal Owner’s Guaranty undertaking to be bound jointly and severally by all provisions of
this Agreement and any other agreements between you and us. A copy of our current form of
Principal Owners Guaranty is attached to the Franchise Disclosure Document; and

® at our request, you will furnish true and correct copies of all documents and
contracts governing the rights, obligations and powers of your owners and agents (like articles of
incorporation or organization and partnership, operating or shareholder agreements).

2. TERM

2.1.  Term of Agreement. This Agreement commences on the Agreement Date and expires on
the earlier of (the “Term”): (i) , 20___; (i) the last day of the Development
Schedule; or (iii) the opening of the last FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant specified in the Development
Schedule. This Agreement may be terminated before it expires in accordance with its terms. Upon
expiration or termination of this Agreement, you will not have any further rights to acquire franchises to
operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants; but you may continue to develop, own and operate all
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants subject to franchise agreements (the “Franchise Agreement(s)”) with
us in accordance with their terms.

2.2. Modification of Term. At the end of the 3rd Development Year, and every 36 months
thereafter, we will reassess the prospects for the development of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants in the
Development Area. At that time, we may adjust the number of Restaurants to be developed within the
Development Area to account for growth in population and other relevant demographics. If we do so, you
and we will agree on a new Development Schedule by increasing the number of Restaurants that you are to
develop and extending the Development Period , based on the average time for the development and
opening of new Restaurants in the current Development Schedule or as otherwise mutually agreed upon (the
“New Schedule”). If you do not agree to the New Schedule, then we may develop additional FIREHOUSE
SUBS® Restaurants within the Development Area either ourselves or through other franchisees, but you
will maintain the right and obligation to own, open and operate the number of Restaurants in accordance
with, and subject to, the Development Schedule.

3. DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS.

3.1. Development Rights. If you (and your affiliates) are in full compliance with all of the
provisions of this Agreement and all of the Franchise Agreements, then during the Term, we will grant to
you (or your Controlled Affiliate) franchises to develop, own and operate _ FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants (including the Restaurant covered by the Current Franchise Agreement) to be located within the
following Development Area encompassing the following geographic area:

in the state(s) of

If the Development Area is identified by city or other political subdivisions, political boundaries
will be considered fixed as of the Agreement Date, notwithstanding any political reorganization or change to
the boundaries. The parties may depict the Development Area on a map attached to this Agreement and
initialed by the parties as Exhibit “A.” However, if there is any inconsistency between the language in this
text and the attached map, the language in this text of this Agreement will control. All street boundaries
will be deemed to end at the street’s centerline unless otherwise specified. Pursuant to these development
rights, you must open the Restaurants according to the mandatory Development Schedule described below.
In this Agreement, the term “Controlled Affiliate” means any Business Entity of which you or one or more
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of your majority owners owns at least 51% of the total authorized ownership interest, as long as you or such
owner(s) have the right the control the Business Entity’s management and policies.

3.2. Exclusivity. If you and your Controlled Affiliates are in full compliance with this
Agreement and all other agreements between you (or any of your Controlled Affiliates) and us, including,
without limitation, any franchise agreement then in effect between you (or any Controlled Affiliate) and us
for the operation of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants, then during the Term only, and except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement, neither we nor our affiliates will operate, or authorize any other party to
operate, a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant, the physical premises of which are located within the
Development Area. You acknowledge and agree that we may exercise any and all other rights that we now
reserve in any Franchise Agreement (and related documents). After this Agreement ends, regardless of the
reason, we and our affiliates may engage, and allow others to engage, in any activities we desire within and
outside the Development Area, without any restrictions whatsoever, subject to only your (or any affiliate’s)
rights under Franchise Agreements with us then in effect.

3.3. Rights We Reserve. We (and our affiliates) retain the right in our sole discretion to:

@ solicit prospective Franchisees and grant other persons Franchises, or other rights
to operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants: through national or regional advertising, trade shows
or conventions, or using or through the Internet, Intranet or other forms of e-commerce or through
similar means;

(b) own and operate FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants ourselves or through affiliates
anywhere, except your Development Area unless otherwise authorized pursuant to Section 3.2
above.;

©) sell, solicit, recruit and provide services for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants or
any franchised business not defined as a FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant in this Agreement;

(d) sell, and provide the services authorized for sale by, FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants under the Marks or other trade names, trademarks, service marks and commercial
symbols through similar or dissimilar channels (like telephone, mail order, kiosk, co-branded sites
and sites located within other retail businesses, stadiums, Intranet, Internet, web sites, wireless,
email or other forms of e-commerce) for distribution within and outside of your Development Area
and pursuant to such terms and conditions as we consider appropriate;

(e solicit prospective franchisees for, and own and operate, businesses and restaurants
of any other kind or nature, anywhere.

3.4. Development Obligations. During the Term, you will at all times faithfully, honestly and
diligently perform your obligations and continuously exert your best efforts to promote and enhance the
development of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within the Development Area. You agree to:

@ Obtain locations and premises for FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within the
Development Area approved by us; and

(b) Sign Franchise Agreements to develop and open, and continue in operation, the
number of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within the time periods (the “Development
Periods”) mandated by the schedule (the “Development Schedule™) below:
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Cumulative
Number of
Development Restaurant Dates Restaurants Restaurants Open
Year Openings Must Be Opened By | and in Operation
1 December 31
2 December 31
3 December 31
4 December 31
5 December 31
Development Year 1 ends on December 31, . After that, each Development Year begins
on January 1 and ends on December 31 of each succeeding year ( , ,
and ).
(© However, we will not grant you a franchise for the second Restaurant until the first

Restaurant has achieved certification as a training Restaurant for your Franchise organization. We
will not grant you a franchise for an additional Restaurant unless (a) each preceding Restaurant has
been open and in operation for at least 3 months, unless otherwise specified; (b) is profitable based
on the accounting system we specify; (c) is operated in full compliance with their respective
Franchise Agreements; and (d) has a Certified General Manager assigned to the Restaurant on a
full-time capacity. You are solely responsible for the terms and conditions of the Certified General
Manager’s employment.

3.5. Effect of Failure. Strict compliance with the Development Schedule is of the essence. If
you do not timely meet the Development Schedule, you will be in default. Any such default constitutes a
material breach of this Agreement and we may:

@ Terminate this Agreement;

(b) Have the right to operate or grant franchises to operate FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants within the Development Area;

(© Grant you an extension under the Development Schedule for such time period and
for a nonrefundable extension fee equal to the balance of the Franchise Fees for the number of
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants remaining to be opened under the Development Schedule; or

(d) Reduce the Development Area and the Development Schedule to a size and
magnitude that we estimate you are capable of operating otherwise in accordance with this
Agreement.

4, DEVELOPMENT FEE

4.1.  Amount. You agree to pay us a Development Fee of $ , Which is % of the
current initial franchise fee times the number of additional Restaurants to be developed. The Development
Fee constitutes payment only for the exclusive rights we grant you under this Agreement. The Development
Fee must be paid on the Agreement Date. The Development Fee is fully earned by us and non-refundable.

4.2. New Schedule. If you and we agree to the New Schedule, you will, at that time, pay us an
additional nonrecurring and nonrefundable Development Fee in an amount equal to 1/2 of the then-current
initial franchise fee times the number of additional Restaurants to be developed based on the New Schedule.

If we do so, you and we will agree on a new Development Schedule (the “New Schedule”). The basis of
the New Schedule will be that a minimum of one new Restaurant will be open and in operation every 6
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months. If this pace does not deliver the number of total Restaurants specified in the New Schedule within
the original time frame designated in the original Development Schedule, then the New Schedule will be
extended so as to allow for the development of the new total number of units, with a pace of development of
1 Restaurant per 6 months. If you do not agree with the New Schedule, then we may develop additional
FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants within the Development Area either ourselves or through other
franchisees, but you will maintain the right and obligation to own, open and operate the Restaurants subject
to the original Development Schedule.

S. GRANT OF FRANCHISES

5.1. Franchise Agreements. You (or a Controlled Affiliate) must enter into our then-current
form of franchise agreement for each Restaurant, and your guarantors must personally guaranty your
obligations under them pursuant to our then-current form of Principal Owners Guaranty. However, such
Franchise Agreements will be modified by this Agreement as follows:

@ Initial Franchise Fee The initial franchise fee for each Restaurant will be reduced
to ¥ of our then current initial franchise fee and must be paid on the effective date of the Franchise
Agreement for that Restaurant.

(b) Trade Area: The Trade Area of each Restaurant will consist of the Site and the
entire geographic area within a 1-mile radius unless otherwise specified in the franchise agreement.

(c) Initial Training:. You are responsible for the training of the General Manager for
each subsequent Restaurant on your Development Schedule (or New Schedule). At least one
General Manager must have satisfactorily completed our certification training program conducted
in Jacksonville, Florida (or at an alternative location that we may designate), and meet all
gualifications as a Certified General Manager. We set and change the standards and qualifications
for meeting that status from time to time. All Certified General Managers must maintain their
status based on our then-current standards. Approval for the development of subsequent
Restaurants is contingent upon satisfaction of our Certified General Manager requirements. Our
certification training does not address in any way the terms and conditions of employment; only
Restaurant operations, opening and training.

5.2. Grant of Franchises. You agree to give us all information and materials we request to
assess each proposed Restaurant site and your (or your Controlled Affiliate’s) financial and operational
ability to develop and operate each proposed Restaurant. We will not unreasonably withhold approval of
any site you propose that meets our then-current criteria for population density and other demographic
characteristics, visibility, traffic flow, competition, accessibility, parking, size and other physical and
commercial characteristics. We have the absolute right to disapprove any site that does not meet these
criteria and other criteria that we may develop from time to time. We agree to use reasonable efforts to
review and approve the sites that you propose within 30 days after we receive all requested information and
materials. If we approve a proposed site and your (or your Controlled Affiliate’s) financial and operational
ability to develop and operate the proposed Restaurant, then you or your approved Controlled Affiliate,
must sign a separate franchise agreement for that Restaurant. If neither you nor your Controlled Affiliate do
so (including the owners for documents that need to be signed by them), or are unable to obtain lawful
possession of the proposed site within a reasonable time after we approve of the proposed site, then we may
withdraw our approval. Neither you nor any Controlled Affiliate may sign any lease or sublease for a site
without our prior acceptance and without first signing and complying with any Franchise Agreement. After
you (or your Controlled Affiliate) sign the Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of it will control
the development and operation of that Restaurant, with the exception that it must be opened within the time
limits specified in the Development Schedule.

5.3. Franchise Status. This Agreement does not create a franchise relationship between you
and us. Any franchise relationship between you and us is created solely by signing a Franchise Agreement.

QB\138202.00002\10182568.12 5
4/5/17



6. TRANSFER.

6.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully transferable by us and will inure to the benefit of any
transferee or other legal successor to our interests.

6.2. By You. You understand and acknowledge that the rights and duties created by this
Agreement are personal to you (or, if you are a Business Entity, to your owners) and that we have granted
the development rights outlined in this Agreement to you in reliance upon our perceptions of your (or your
owners’) individual or collective character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability and financial capacity.
Accordingly, this Agreement (or any interest in it) is not transferable by you under any circumstances
whatsoever. Furthermore, this Agreement will automatically terminate if any other transaction or event
occurs that constitutes a “transfer” under this Agreement, including any sale, exchange or disposition of any
ownership or other interest in you or any of the Restaurants. As used in this Agreement, the term
“transfer” includes your (or your owners’) voluntary, involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale, gift or
other disposition of any interest in: (a) this Agreement or your rights under it; or (b) you. An assignment,
sale, gift or other disposition includes the following events:

Q) transfer of ownership of 10% or more of any capital stock or a partnership
interest or any other interest that affects control over the Business Entity;

(i) merger or consolidation or issuance of additional securities or interests
representing an ownership interest in you;

(iii) ~ any issuance or sale of your stock or any security convertible to your
stock;

(iv) transfer of an interest in you, this Agreement or any of the Restaurants in a
divorce, insolvency or corporate or partnership dissolution proceeding or
otherwise by operation of law;

(V) transfer of an interest in you, this Agreement or the business, in the event
of your death or the death of one of your owners, by will, declaration of or
transfer in trust or under the laws of intestate succession; or

(vi) pledge of this Agreement (to someone other than us) or of an ownership
interest in you as security.

Furthermore, this Agreement and your and our respective obligations under it will automatically
terminate if (a) you sell any of your Restaurants or transfer any of the Franchise Agreements without our
prior written permission; and/or (b) you attempt to transfer or assign any rights under this Agreement.

6.3.  Transfer to a Business Entity. If you are in full compliance with this Agreement, you
may transfer this Agreement to a Business Entity that conducts no business other than the development of
the Restaurants and, if applicable, other FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants so long as you own, control and
have the right to vote 51% or more of its issued and outstanding ownership interests (like stock or
partnership interests) and you guarantee its performance under this Agreement. All other owners are subject
to our approval. The organizational or governing documents of the Business Entity must recite that the
issuance and transfer of any ownership interests in the Business Entity are restricted by the terms of this
Agreement, are subject to our approval, and all certificates or other documents representing ownership
interests in the Business Entity must bear a legend referring to the restrictions of this Agreement. As a
condition of our approval of the issuance or transfer of ownership interests to any person other than you, we
may require (in addition to the other requirements we have the right to impose) that the proposed owner sign
an agreement, in a form provided or approved by us, agreeing to be bound jointly and severally by, to
comply with, and to guarantee the performance of, all of the your obligations under this Agreement.
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6.4. Transfer Upon Death or Disability. Upon your death or disability or, if you are a
Business Entity, the death or disability of the owner of a controlling interest in you, we may require you (or
such owner’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal representative) to transfer
your interest in this Agreement (or such owner’s interest in you) to a third party. Such disposition
(including, without limitation, transfer by bequest or inheritance) must be completed within the time we
designate, not less than 1 month but not more than 6 months from the date of death or disability. Such
disposition will be subject to all of the terms and conditions applicable to transfers contained in this Section.
A failure to transfer your interest in this Agreement or the ownership interest in you within this period of
time constitutes a breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “disability” means a
mental or physical disability, impairment or condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does
prevent you or an owner of a controlling interest in you from managing and operating the Restaurants. If,
upon your death or disability or the death or disability of the owner of a controlling interest in you, the
business is not being managed by a trained manager, 15 days from the date of death or disability, we may
appoint a manager to operate the business.

7. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

7.1. On Notice. We have the right to terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of
written notice of termination to you, if:

(@) you (or any of your owners) have made any material misrepresentation or omission
in connection with your purchase of these development rights;

(b) you fail to meet the Development Schedule;

(©) you surrender or transfer control of this Agreement or the business without our
prior written consent;

(d) you (or any of your owners) are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or plead
or have pleaded no contest, or guilty, to, a felony or other serious crime or offense;

©)] you (or any of your owners) engage in any dishonest or unethical conduct which
may adversely affect the reputation of the Restaurant or another FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurant
or the goodwill associated with the Marks;

(j)] you (or any of your owners) make an unauthorized assignment of this Agreement
or of an ownership interest in you, the Restaurant or the Art;

(9) in the event of your death or disability or the death or disability of the owner of a
controlling interest in you, this Agreement or such owner’s interest in you is not assigned as
required under this Agreement;

(h) you (or any of your owners) fail to comply with any other provision of this
Agreement or any other agreements with us; or

0] you make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admit in writing your
insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due; you consent to the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all or the substantial part of your property; unless
any order appointing a receiver, trustee or liquidator of you is not vacated within 30 days following
the entry of such order.

7.2.  After Notice. We may also terminate this Agreement after we notify you of our intention
to do so because of the occurrence of any of the following events and your failure to cure it within 30 days
of our notice:
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@ if you are a Business Entity, failure to maintain active status in your state of
organization;

(b) you violate any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement with us or any
of our affiliates;

) continued violation of any law, ordinance, rule or regulation of a governmental
agency; or

(d) failure to obtain any approvals or consents required by this Agreement.

8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.

8.1. Independent Contractors. You and we understand and agree that this Agreement does
not create a fiduciary relationship between you and us, that we and you are and will be independent
contractors and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general or special
agent, joint venturer, partner or employee of the other for any purpose. You agree to conspicuously identify
yourself in all dealings with customers, suppliers, public officials, Restaurant personnel and others as the
owner of the business under an Area Development Agreement we have granted and to place such notices of
independent ownership on such forms, business cards, stationery and advertising and other materials as we
may require from time to time.

8.2. No Liability for Acts of Other Party. You agree not to employ any of the Marks in
signing any contract or applying for any license or permit, or in a manner that may result in our liability for
any of your indebtedness or obligations, and that you will not use the Marks in any way we have not
expressly authorized. Neither we nor you will make any express or implied agreements, warranties,
guarantees or representations or incur any debt in the name or on behalf of the other, represent that our
respective relationship is other than franchisor and developer or be obligated by or have any liability under
any agreements or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized in writing. We will
not be obligated for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the operation
of the business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement.

8.3. Indemnification. You agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless us, our affiliates and
our respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assignees (the
“Indemnified Parties™) against and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for all claims,
obligations and damages described in this Section, any and all taxes described in this Agreement and any
and all claims and liabilities directly or indirectly arising out of the operation of your business (even if our
negligence is alleged) or your breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this indemnification, “claims”
includes all obligations, damages (actual, consequential or otherwise) and costs reasonably incurred in the
defense of any claim against any of the Indemnified Parties, including, without limitation, reasonable
accountants’, arbitrators’, attorneys’ and expert witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court
costs, other expenses of litigation, arbitration or alternative dispute resolution and travel and living
expenses. We have the right to defend any such claim against us. This indemnity will continue in full force
and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Under no
circumstances will we or any other Indemnified Party be required to seek recovery from any insurer or other
third party, or otherwise to mitigate our, their or your losses and expenses, in order to maintain and recover
fully a claim against you. You agree that a failure to pursue such recovery or mitigate a loss will in no way
reduce or alter the amounts we or another Indemnified Party may recover from you.

9. ENFORCEMENT.

9.1. Severability; Substitution of Valid Provisions. Except as otherwise stated in this
Agreement, each term of this Agreement, and any portion of any term, are severable. The remainder of this
Agreement will continue in full force and effect. To the extent that any provision restricting your
competitive activities is deemed unenforceable, you and we agree that such provisions will be enforced to
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the fullest extent permissible under governing law. This Agreement will be deemed automatically modified
to comply with such governing law if any applicable law requires: (a)a greater prior notice of the
termination of or refusal to renew this Agreement; or (b) the taking of some other action not described in
this Agreement; or (c) if any FIREHOUSE SUBS® System Standard is invalid or unenforceable. We may
modify such invalid or unenforceable provision to the extent required to be valid and enforceable. In such
event, you will be bound by the modified provisions.

9.2.  Waivers. We will not be deemed to have waived our right to demand exact compliance
with any of the Terms, even if at any time: (a) we do not exercise a right or power available to us under this
Agreement; or (b) we do not insist on your strict compliance with the terms of this Agreement; or (c) if there
develops a custom or practice which is at variance with the terms of this Agreement; or (d) if we accept
payments which are otherwise due to us under this Agreement. Similarly, our waiver of any particular
breach or series of breaches under this Agreement or of any similar term in any other agreement between
you and us or between us and any other franchise owner, will not effect our rights with respect to any later
breach by you or anyone else.

9.3. Limitation of Liability. Neither of the parties will be liable for loss or damage or deemed
to be in breach of this Agreement if failure to perform obligations results from:

@ compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulation, requirement or instruction of
any federal, state or municipal government or any department or agency thereof;

(b) acts of God, war, terror or similar like;
(c) acts or omissions of a similar event or cause.
However, such delays or events do not excuse payments of amounts owed at any time.

9.4. Approval and Consents. Whenever this Agreement requires our advance approval,
agreement or consent, you agree to make a timely written request for it. Our approval or consent will not be
valid unless it is in writing. Except where expressly stated otherwise in this Agreement, we have the abso-
lute right to refuse any request by you or to withhold our approval of any action or omission by you. If we
provide to you any waiver, approval, consent, or suggestion, or if we neglect or delay our response or deny
any request for any of those, we will not be deemed to have made any warranties or guarantees which you
may rely on, and will not assume any liability or obligation to you.

9.5. Waiver of Punitive Damages. EXCEPT FOR YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO
INDEMNIFY US AND CLAIMS FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE MARKS, YOU AND WE
EACH WAIVE TO THE FULL EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO, OR CLAIM
FOR, ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER. YOU AND WE
ALSO AGREE THAT, IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN YOU AND US, THE PARTY
MAKING A CLAIM WILL BE LIMITED TO EQUITABLE RELIEF AND RECOVERY OF ANY
ACTUAL DAMAGES IT SUSTAINS.

9.6. Limitations of Claims. ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP AMONG YOU AND US MUST BE MADE BY
WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE OTHER PARTY WITHIN 1 YEAR FROM THE OCCURRENCE
OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM (REGARDLESS OF WHEN IT BECOMES
KNOWN); EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS ARISING FROM: (A) UNDER-REPORTING OF GROSS
SALES; (B) UNDER-PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO US OR OUR AFFILIATES;
(C) CLAIMS FOR INDEMNIFICATION; AND/OR (D) UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE MARKS.
HOWEVER, THIS PROVISION DOES NOT LIMIT THE RIGHT TO TERMINATE THIS
AGREEMENT IN ANY WAY.
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9.7. Governing Law. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
PARTICULAR DISPUTE IS GOVERNED BY THE U.S. TRADEMARK ACT OF 1946 (LANHAM
ACT, 15 U.S.C. 81051 AND THE SECTIONS FOLLOWING IT) OR OTHER FEDERAL LAW,
THIS AGREEMENT AND THE FRANCHISE ARE GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE
IN WHICH OUR PRINCIPAL BUSINESS OFFICE IS LOCATED, EXCLUDING ANY LAW
REGULATING THE SALE OF FRANCHISES OR GOVERNING THE RELATIONSHIP
BETWEEN A FRANCHISOR AND DEVELOPER, UNLESS THE JURISDICTIONAL
REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH LAWS ARE MET INDEPENDENTLY WITHOUT REFERENCE
TO THIS SECTION. ALL MATTERS RELATING TO ARBITRATION ARE GOVERNED BY
THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT. References to any law or regulation also refer to any successor
laws or regulations and any implementing regulations for any statute, as in effect at the relevant time.
References to a governmental agency also refer to any successor regulatory body that succeeds to the
function of such agency.

9.8.  Jurisdiction. YOU AND WE CONSENT AND IRREVOCABLY SUBMIT TO THE
JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT OF COMPETENT
JURISDICTION LOCATED IN DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND WAIVE ANY OBJECTION
TO THE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF SUCH COURTS. THE EXCLUSIVE CHOICE OF
JURISDICTION DOES NOT PRECLUDE THE BRINGING OF ANY ACTION BY THE PARTIES
OR THE ENFORCEMENT BY THE PARTIES IN ANY JUDGMENT OBTAINED IN ANY SUCH
JURISDICTION, IN ANY OTHER APPROPRIATE JURISDICTION OR THE RIGHT OF THE
PARTIES TO CONFIRM OR ENFORCE ANY ARBITRATION AWARD IN ANY
APPROPRIATE JURISDICTION.

9.9.  Waiver of Jury Trial. YOU AND WE EACH IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN
EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER YOU OR US.

9.10. Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this Agreement are
cumulative and neither you nor we will be prohibited from exercising any other right or remedy provided
under this Agreement or permitted by law or equity.

9.11. Costs and Attorneys Fees. If a claim for amounts owed by you to us or any of our
affiliates is asserted in any legal or arbitration proceeding or if either you or we are required to enforce this
Agreement in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, the party prevailing in such proceeding will be entitled to
reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including reasonable accounting and attorneys’ fees. Attorneys’
fees will include, without limitation, reasonable legal fees charged by attorneys, paralegal fees, and costs
and disbursements, whether incurred prior to, or in preparation for, or contemplation of, the filing of written
demand or claim, action, hearing, or proceeding to enforce the obligations of the parties under this
Agreement.

9.12. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on and will inure to the benefit of our
successors and assigns. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this Agreement will also be
binding on your successors and assigns, and your heirs, executors and administrators.

9.13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the introduction, addenda and exhibits to it
and all ancillary agreements executed contemporaneously with this Agreement, constitutes the entire
agreement between you and us with reference to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede any and
all prior negotiations, understandings, representations and agreements; provided, however, that nothing in
this or any related agreement shall disclaim or require you to waive reliance on any representation
that Franchisor made in the most recent Franchise Disclosure Document (including its exhibits and
amendments) that Franchisor delivered to Developer or its representative, subject to any agreed-
upon changes to the contract terms and conditions described in that Franchise Disclosure Document
and reflected in this Agreement (including any riders or addenda signed at the same time as this
Agreement. There are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between you and us
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concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agree-
ment, this Agreement may be modified only by written agreement signed by both you and us. Nothing
contained in the Agreement waives any of the Franchisee’s right to rely on the disclosure made by the
Franchisor in its Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document or any corresponding rights the Franchisee has
under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

9.14. No Liability to Others; No Other Beneficiaries. We will not, because of this
Agreement or by virtue of any approvals, advice or services provided to you, be liable to any person or legal
entity who is not a party to this Agreement. Except as specifically described in this Agreement, no other
party has any rights because of this Agreement.

9.15. Construction. The headings of the sections are for convenience only. If two or more
persons are at any time Developers hereunder, whether or not as partners or joint venturers, their obligations
and liabilities to us are joint and several. This Agreement may be signed in multiple copies, each of which
will be an original. “A or B” means “A” or “B” or both.

9.16. Certain Definitions. The term “family member” refers to parents, spouses, offspring and
siblings, and the parents and siblings of spouses. The term “affiliate” means any Business Entity directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by a person, under common control with a person or controlled by a person.
The terms “Developer, franchisee, franchise owner, you and your” are applicable to one or more
persons, a Business Entity, as the case may be. The singular use of any pronoun also includes the plural and
the masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine. The term “person” includes
individuals or Business Entities. The term “section” refers to a section or subsection of this Agreement.
The word “control” means the power to direct or cause the direction of management and policies. The
word “owner” means any person holding a direct or indirect, legal or beneficial ownership interest or voting
rights in another person (or a transferee of this Agreement or an interest in you), including any person who
has a direct or indirect interest in you or this Agreement and any person who has any other legal or equitable
interest, or the power to vest in himself any legal or equitable interest, in the revenue, profits, rights or
assets.

9.17. Timing is of the Essence. It will be a material breach of this Agreement to fail to perform
any obligation within the time required or permitted by this Agreement. In computing time periods from
one date to a later date, the words “from” and “commencing on” (and the like) mean “from and
including”; and the words “to,” “until” and “ending on” (and the like) mean “to but excluding.”
Indications of time of day mean Jacksonville, Florida time.

10. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

10.1. Mediation. During the Term, certain disputes may arise between you and us that may be
resolvable through mediation. To facilitate such resolution, you and we agree that each party must, before
commencing any arbitration proceeding, submit the dispute for non-binding mediation at a mutually
agreeable location (if you and we cannot agree on a location, the mediation will be conducted at our
headquarters) to 1 mediator, appointed under the American Arbitration Association’s Commercial
Mediation Rules. The mediator will conduct a mediation in accordance with such rules. You and we agree
that any statements made by either you or us in any such mediation proceeding will not be admissible in any
subsequent arbitration or other legal proceeding. Each party will bear its own costs and expenses of
conducting the mediation and share equally the costs of any third parties who are required to participate.
Nevertheless, both you and we have the right in a proper case to obtain temporary restraining orders and
temporary or preliminary injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction. However, the parties must
immediately and contemporaneously submit the dispute for non-binding mediation. If any dispute between
the parties cannot be resolved through mediation within 60 days following the appointment of a mediator,
the parties must submit the dispute to arbitration subject to the following terms and conditions.

10.2. Agreement to Arbitrate. Except for claims (as defined below) related to or based on the
Marks (which at our sole option may be submitted to any court of competent jurisdiction) and except as
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otherwise expressly provided by section 10.4 of this agreement, any litigation, claim, dispute, suit, action,
controversy, proceeding or otherwise (“Dispute”) between or involving you and us (and/or involving you
and/or any claim against or involving any of our or our affiliates’ shareholders, directors, partners, officers,
employees, agents, attorneys, accountants, affiliates, guarantors or otherwise) and/or between or involving
you and any of our area representatives, which are not resolved within 45 days of notice from either you or
we to the other, or you to one of our area representatives, will be submitted to arbitration to the office of the
American Arbitration Association closest to our headquarters in Jacksonville, Florida. The arbitration will
be conducted by the American Arbitration Association pursuant to its commercial arbitration rules. All
matters relating to arbitration will be governed by the federal arbitration act (9 U.S.C. 881 et seq.) And not
by any state arbitration law. The parties to any arbitration will execute an appropriate confidentiality
agreement, excepting only such disclosures and filings as are required by law.

10.3. Place and Procedure. The arbitration proceedings will be conducted at our headquarters
in Jacksonville, Florida. Any dispute and any arbitration will be conducted and resolved on an individual
basis only and not a class-wide, multiple plaintiff or similar basis. Any such arbitration proceeding will not
be consolidated with any other arbitration proceeding involving any other person, except for disputes
involving affiliates of the parties to such arbitration. The parties agree that, in connection with any such
arbitration proceeding, each must submit or file any claim which would constitute a compulsory
counterclaim (as defined by rule 13 of the federal rules of civil procedure) within the same proceeding as
the dispute to which it relates. Any such dispute which is not submitted or filed in such proceeding will be
barred.

10.4. Awards and Decisions. The proceedings will be heard by 1 arbitrator. The arbitrator will
have the right to award any relief which he deems proper in the circumstances, including, for example,
money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from their due date(s)), specific performance, temporary
and/or permanent injunctive relief, and reimbursement of attorneys’ fees and related costs to the prevailing
party. The arbitrator will not have the authority to award exemplary or punitive damages except as
otherwise permitted by this Agreement, nor the right to declare any Mark generic or otherwise invalid. You
and we agree to be bound by the provisions of any limitations or the time on which claims must be brought
under applicable law or under this Agreement, whichever expires earlier. The award and decision of the
arbitrator will be conclusive and binding and judgment on the award may be entered in any court of
competent jurisdiction. The parties acknowledge and agree that any arbitration award may be enforced
against either or both of them in a court of competent jurisdiction and each waives any right to contest the
validity or enforceability of such award. Without limiting the foregoing, the parties will be entitled in any
such arbitration proceeding to the entry of an order by a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to an
opinion of the arbitrator for specific performance of any of the requirements of this Agreement. Judgment
upon an arbitration award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction and will be binding, final and
non-appealable.

10.5. Specific Performance. Nothing in this Agreement will prevent either you or we from
obtaining temporary restraining orders and temporary or preliminary injunctive relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction. However, you and we must contemporaneously submit the dispute for arbitration on
the merits.

10.6. Third Parties. The arbitration provisions of this Agreement are intended to benefit and
bind certain third party non-signatories, and all of your and our principal owners and affiliates.

10.7. Survival. This provision continues in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason.

11. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.

All notices and reports permitted or required under this Agreement or by the Manuals must be in
writing and will be deemed delivered:
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@ at the time delivered by hand;

(b) 1 business day after transmission by facsimile, telecopy, e-mail, or other electronic
system;

(c) 2 business days after being placed in the hands of a commercial airborne courier
service for next business day delivery; or

(d) 3 business days after placement in the United States mail by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.

Delivery by facsimile, e-mailed and electronic means constitutes a writing and does not require designation
of a physical address (as otherwise stated below). All such notices must be addressed to the parties as
follows:

If to Us: FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC
12735 Gran Bay Parkway, Suite 150
Jacksonville, Florida 32258
Attention:

If to You:

Attention:

Either you or we may change the address for delivery of all notices and reports and any such notice
will be effective within 10 business days of any change in address. Any required payment or report not
actually received by us during regular business hours on the date due (or postmarked by postal authorities at
least 2 days prior to such date, or in which the receipt from the commercial courier service is not dated prior
to 2 days prior to such date) will be deemed delinquent.

This Agreement may be signed with full legal force and effect using electronic signatures and
records.

Intending to be bound, you and we sign and deliver this Agreement in 2 counterparts on the
Agreement Date.
HUS”: HYOUH:

FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC

[Business Entity Name]

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
QB\138202.00002\10182568.12 13
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EXHIBIT “A”
TO THE
FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

MAP OF DEVELOPMENT AREA

“Us™ “DEVELOPER”:

FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC

[Business Entity Name]

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
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EXHIBIT E-1 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF

NE GROWTH INCENTIVE ADDENDUM TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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NE GROWTH INCENTIVE ADDENDUM TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS_NE GROWTH INCENTIVE ADDENDUM (this “Addendum”) is as of the Agreement

Date (regardless of the actual date of signature) and amends the Area Development Agreement dated

, (the “ADA”) simultaneously entered into between FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC,

a Florida limited liability company (“we,” “us,” or “our”) and
(“you,” “your,” or “Developer”).

1. Precedence and Defined Terms. This Addendum is an integral part of, and is incorporated
into, the ADA. Nevertheless, this Addendum supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting provisions of the
ADA. Terms not otherwise defined in this Addendum have the meanings as defined in the ADA. This
Addendum also modifies and supersedes certain Franchise Agreements between you and us.

2. Development Fee. You are not required to pay us a Development Fee attributable to the first
5 Restaurants to be developed under the Development Schedule. For example, if you are required to open
8 Restaurants under your Development Schedule, then the Development Fee is $30,000 ($10,000 X (8 -
5)). The first 5 Restaurants to be opened under the Development Schedule pursuant to ADA are the “NE_
Incentive Restaurants”.

3. Franchise Agreements:

(a) When you sign the Franchise Agreement for each Restaurant, you will pay us a
$10,000 initial franchise fee.

(b) During the first 2 years after each Restaurant opens, the Royalty due and payable to
us for each Incentive Restaurant will be reduced to 3% of Gross Sales. However, the royalty
reduction will automatically cease on notice from us if: (i) you fail to meet the Development
Schedule; or (ii) as to any Restaurant, if you violate the associated Franchise Agreement.

(c) The Royalty due for any Restaurants other than the Incentive Restaurants to be
opened pursuant to the Development Schedule and the ADA will not be modified by this

Addendum and will remain at 6% of Gross Sales.

4. Remaining Terms Unaffected. The remaining terms of the ADA are unaffected by this
Addendum and remain binding on the parties.

Intending to be bound, the parties sign and deliver this Addendum to each other as shown below:
“US”: ‘GYOU”:

FIREHOUSE OF AMERICA, LLC

By: By:
Name:_ Name:
Title:___ Title:_
Date: Date:
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EXHIBIT E-2 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF

NE GROWTH INCENTIVE AMENDMENT TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR EXISTING DEVELOPERS
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NE GROWTH INCENTIVE AMENDMENT TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR EXISTING DEVELOPERS

THIS NE_GROWTH INCENTIVE AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”) is effective as of

, 201 (the “Effective Date”) (regardless of the actual date of signature) and amends the

Area Development Agreement dated , (the “ADA”) between FIREHOUSE OF

AMERICA, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“we,” “us,” or “our”) and

(“you,” “your,” or “Developer”). This Amendment also amends certain Franchise
Agreements between you and us as described below.

1. Precedence and Defined Terms. This Amendment is an integral part of, and is incorporated
into, the ADA. Nevertheless, this Amendment supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting provisions of
the ADA. Terms not otherwise defined in this Amendment have the meanings as defined in the ADA.

2. Current ADA Commitment. Pursuant to the ADA, you have committed to open and
maintain in operation a total of  FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants (the “Current Commitment”).
Also, in accordance with the ADA, you have entered into the following Franchise Agreements with us
relating to the Current Commitment:

Franchise Date Opened Location or Pending
Agreement Date or Pending

Your Development Area is in or located around a geographic region in which we are offering special
incentives to expand the number of FIREHOUSE SUBS® Restaurants by reducing Development Fees
and Royalties.

3. Term. The Term is extended so that it will now expire on the earlier of: (i) ,20 ;5 (i)
the last day of the New Schedule (as defined below); or (iii) the opening of the last FIREHOUSE SUBS®
Restaurants specified in the New Schedule.

4. Development Area. The Development Area is amended to encomp